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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present to shareholders of Allied Group Limited (“Company”) the annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year 2017. The performance
of the Group has been pleasing as the Group’s core operating divisions continued to deliver solid
performances.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group’s revenue was HK$4,540.7 million (2016:
HK$4,101.9 million). Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$3,235.9 million in 2017
(2016: HK$3,263.2 million), a slight decrease of 0.8%. Earnings per share amounted to HK$18.35, as
compared to HK$18.34 in 2016.

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared a second interim dividend of HK$2.35 per share (in lieu of a final dividend)
for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (2016 second interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend):
HK$1.85 per share) payable on or around Wednesday, 9th May, 2018 to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 17th April, 2018, making a total dividend for the year 2017 of HK$2.5 per share (2016:
HK$2.0 per share).

It should be noted that the Company undertook share repurchases for cancellation during the year at
an aggregate consideration (before expenses) of approximately HK$52.3 million. Accordingly, both net
asset value per share and earnings per share have been enhanced. The Board will give consideration to
further repurchases of shares for cancellation when opportunities arise.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(1) For determining the entitlement to the second interim dividend

For determining the entitlement to the second interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2017, the register of members of the Company is closed from
Friday, 13th April, 2018 to Tuesday, 17th April, 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to qualify for
the second interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend), all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
12th April, 2018.

(2) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (“2018 AGM”)

The 2018 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 25th May, 2018. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 21st May, 2018 to Friday, 25th May, 2018 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18th May, 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont'd)

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The “Review of Operations” by the Chief Executive, which immediately follows this statement,
incorporates the Group’s business outlook for the future.

APPRECIATION

We have experienced a strong performance in 2017. The Group expects there will be various
challenges arising from economic and geopolitical issues during 2018. We believe that with its prudent
strategy, and the dedication, loyalty, professionalism of its staff, the Group is well prepared to meet the
challenges.

I would like to express the Group’s appreciation for the efforts of our staff and look forward to their

continued support. | would also like to thank my fellow Directors, our professional advisors and our
Shareholders for their support during the year.

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2018
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Review of Operations

INTRODUCTION

The Company is primarily an investment holding company, with a stated strategy of focusing its
management and financial resources on its core businesses of property investment and development
and financial services together with elderly care services. The Company’s interests in property
investment and development and elderly care services in Hong Kong and overseas and in mainland
China are mainly held through its 74.99% holding in Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“Allied
Properties”), Allied Properties’ associate Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”) and
TACI’s subsidiary Asiasec Properties Limited. The Company’s financial services business is mainly
conducted through Allied Properties” 57.29% holding in Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”) as well
as SHK'’s effective 58.18% holding in United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”). SHK Hong Kong Industries
Limited (“SHK HK IND”), a 74.98% subsidiary of the Company, is engaged in investments in listed and

unlisted securities.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2017 2016

HKS$ Million  HK$ Million

Revenue 4,540.7 4,101.9
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 3,235.9 3,263.2
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 25,069.4 21,758.3
Return on equity attributable to owners of the Company 12.9% 15.0%
Earnings per share HK$18.35 HK$18.34
At At

31st December, 31st December,

2017 2016

Net asset value per share HK$142.6 HK$123.1
Gearing ratio 32.6% 14.1%
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year was HK$4,540.7 million (2016: HK$4,101.9 million). The
increase is mainly due to higher revenue arising from SHK, higher rental income and building services
income, as well as full year income generated from the elderly care business which was acquired in the

second half of 2016.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year was HK$3,235.9 million (2016:
HK$3,263.2 million), a slight decrease of 0.8%.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company was primarily a mixed result of:—

- lower contribution from associate TACI;

- good performance of the consumer finance business and principal investments of SHK;
- a turnaround from loss into profit of SHK HK IND; and

a higher fair value gain on revaluation of the investment properties.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share amounted to HK$18.35 (2016: HK$18.34), a slight increase of 0.1%. This increase
contrasts with the decrease in the profit amount due to the share repurchase during the year.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the
year.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure

On 11th September, 2017, under the guaranteed medium term note programme, Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) Limited further issued US$550 million (including intra-group holdings of US$4.4 million) 4.65%
US dollar denominated notes (“4.65% Notes”) for a net consideration of HK$4,289.0 million. The
4.65% Notes are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The 4.65% Notes will mature
on 8th September, 2022. During the year, the Group purchased part of the 4.65% Notes with a total
nominal value of US$$4.8 million from the market at a total consideration of HK$37.7 million. The
nominal value of the 4.65% Notes after eliminating the intra-group holdings was US$540.8 million or
equivalent to HK$4,228.0 million at the reporting date.

On 20th November, 2017, under the guaranteed medium term note programme, Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) Limited further issued HK$447.5 million 2.8% HK dollar denominated notes (“2.8% Notes”) at
discount for a net consideration of HK$446.7 million. The 2.8% Notes will mature on 20th November,
2018.

The 6.375% US dollar denominated notes and 3% US dollar denominated notes matured in September
and December 2017 respectively and the outstanding balance was repaid.

BeEsEBEBERLXA Annual Report 2017



Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$25,069.4 million, representing an increase of HK$3,311.1 million or approximately 15.2%
from 2016. The Group maintained a strong cash and bank balance position and had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$4,119.2 million as at 31st December, 2017 (2016: HK$7,553.8 million).
The Group’s bank and other borrowings and notes issued totalling HK$12,283.5 million (2016:
HK$10,630.1 million) of which the portion due on demand or within one year was HK$3,848.7 million
(2016: HK$5,011.3 million) and the remaining long-term portion was HK$8,434.8 million (2016:
HK$5,618.8 million). The liquidity of the Group as evidenced by the current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 4.01 times (2016: 3.71 times). The Group’s gearing ratio (net bank and other borrowings
and notes issued/equity attributable to the owners of the Company) was 32.6% (2016: 14.1%).

2017 2016
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
Bank loans are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year 1,752.9 2,004.9
More than one year but not exceeding two years 1,395.8 1,753.4
More than two years but not exceeding five years 309.6 1,074.2
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
repayable as follows:
Within one year 1,018.0 260.8
More than one year but not exceeding two years 14.0 450.8
More than two years but not exceeding five years - 9.2
4,490.3 5,553.3
Other borrowings are repayable as follows:
Within one year - 24.0
Over five years 35.0 35.0
35.0 59.0
Renminbi denominated notes are repayable as follows:
Within one year 528.0 6.2
More than one year but not exceeding five years - 543.7
US dollar denominated notes are repayable as follows:
Within one year 87.6 2,255.4
More than one year but not exceeding five years 6,694.4 2,212.5
HK dollar denominated notes are repayable within one year 448.2 -
7,758.2 5,017.8
12,283.5 10,630.1
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure (Cont’d)

Other than the Renminbi denominated notes, US dollar denominated notes and HK dollar denominated
notes, most of the bank and other borrowings of the Group are charged at floating interest rates. There
are no known seasonal factors in the Group’s borrowing profile.

The banking facilities of the Group are reviewed from time to time and new banking facilities will
be obtained or renewed to meet the funding requirements for capital commitments, investments and
operations of the Group.

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,066,000 own shares at an aggregate consideration (before
expenses) of approximately HK$52.3 million, details of which are outlined in the section “Purchase,
Sale or Redemption of Shares” below.

Segment Information

Detailed segmental information in respect of the revenue and profit or loss is shown in note 6 to the
consolidated financial information.

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to cater for its recurring operating
activities and present and potential investment activities, meaning it will be subject to reasonable
exchange rate exposure. However, the Group will closely monitor this risk exposure as required.
Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

Details regarding pledge of assets are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

BeEsEBEBERLXA Annual Report 2017
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Financial Services
Investment and Finance

o The profit attributable to owners of SHK was HK$1,824.3 million (2016: HK$1,109.6 million).
The better performance during the year was mainly due to improved performances of all main
sectors of SHK’s businesses.

] SHK’s principal investments division which included the structured finance business provided
a pre-tax contribution of HK$1,082.3 million (2016: HK$472.6 million) to its earnings. An
improved performance from UAF and a net valuation gain of HK$108.6 million (2016: HK$203.5
million) from its 30% stake in Everbright Sun Hung Kai Company Limited (previously Sun Hung
Kai Financial Limited) also contributed significantly.

J Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited (“SHKC”) made a pre-tax profit contribution of HK$35.0 million
for the year (2016: HK$1.8 million). The loan portfolio of SHKC now exceeds HK$2 billion
and based on the latest data available from the Land Registry, is now the top-ranked non-bank
mortgage provider in terms of the number of new loans originated for first mortgages.

Consumer Finance

o Profit before tax of UAF, the 58% owned subsidiary of SHK, amounted to HK$1,444.7 million for
the year, an increase of 99% from 2016.

. The improved performance was due to a turnaround of its mainland China business which
registered a profit before tax of HK$302.6 million whilst UAF’s Hong Kong business continued to
maintain a steady increase in profitability.

. At the end of the year, the consolidated consumer finance gross loan balance amounted to
HK$9.8 billion, representing an increase of 15% from the end of 2016. The use of technology to
improve online reach and productivity has allowed UAF to close 23 underperforming branches
in mainland China and 1 branch in Hong Kong during the year. Currently, UAF has 84 branches
operating on the mainland and 49 branches in Hong Kong.

BEEBEBERXA Annual Report 2017



Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Properties

Hong Kong

Allied Properties reported a profit attributable to its owners of HK$3,991.1 million (2016:
HK$4,352.9 million).

Allied Properties’ rental income from its Hong Kong property portfolio increased slightly when
compared to 2016.

The net gain in the value of the Allied Properties’ property portfolio, including investment
properties owned by SHK, was HK$982.3 million during the year, higher than that of 2016 by
HK$402.2 million.

The hotel division reported an increase in average room rates and occupancies, resulting in an
increased contribution.

Allied Kajima Limited, Allied Properties” 50% joint venture holding various properties including
Allied Kajima Building, Novotel Century Hong Kong hotel, Sofitel Philippine Plaza Hotel and the
Wanchai Jaffe Road hotel redevelopment, contributed a profit increase of 176% mainly due to
increase in fair value of its property portfolio during the year. Foundation work on the Jaffe Road
hotel site is being carried out.

In December 2017, Allied Properties” associate APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”) completed its
share repurchase offer. As a result, Allied Properties” interest in APAC increased to 33.91% at the
end of 2017 (2016: 28.44%). APAC contributed a profit of HK$207.5 million (2016: HK$118.3
million) to Allied Properties during the year.

BEEBEERLRQEA Annual Report 2017
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Properties (Cont’d)

Mainland PRC

. The profit attributable to the owners of TACI was HK$2,054.1 million (2016: HK$5,713.0
million).

. The decrease in profit of TACI was mainly due to a lower contribution from disposal of non-

core assets and the absence of a large one-off gain from a bargain purchase of an interest in a
Hong Kong listed subsidiary, Asiasec Properties Limited. For 2017, disposal of non-core assets
contributed HK$1,634.0 million (2016: HK$3,937.7 million). By increasing its stake in an
Australian listed company, Tian An Australia Limited, at a discount to the stated net asset value,
TACI also recorded a gain of HK$60.9 million in 2017 (2016: HK$1,588.6 million).

J There are a total of 15 cyberparks over 12 cities. The overall contribution of TACI’s cyberpark
unit has increased, with sales and leasing improved in most of its cyberparks. Those on the
Pearl River Delta have been contributing most and TACI will concentrate on developing
new cyberparks and urban renewal projects in this region where it has ample manpower and
marketing resources.

. Phase 2 of TACI’s urban renewal project, Tian An Cloud Park, in Huawei New City Area in the
Longgang District of Shenzhen, with a gross floor area of approximately 599,400 m? is under

construction and expected to be completed in 2018.

. Asiasec Properties Limited reported a profit attributable to its shareholders of HK$169.2 million
(2016: HK$61.8 million).

Investments
SHK HK IND

. SHK HK IND reported a net profit attributable to its owners of HK$166.7 million (2016: loss of
HK$73.6 million).

. The profit mainly arose from equity related investments and profit contribution from bond
investments.
EMPLOYEES

The total number of headcount of the Group as at 31st December, 2017 was 5,080 (2016: 5,343). This
net decrease in headcount reflects mainly the rationalisation of UAF’s branch network in mainland
China. Total staff cost, including Directors” emoluments, amounted to HK$1,102.7 million (2016:
HK$983.3 million). The Group reviews remuneration packages from time to time. In addition to salary
payments, other staff benefits include contributions to employee provident funds, medical subsidies
and a discretionary bonus scheme. The Group recognises the importance of continuing professional
education and development, and appropriate courses are arranged on a periodical basis as well as
subsidies are granted to employees who take job-related courses.

BEEBEBERXA Annual Report 2017



Review of Operations (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk management policies and
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to react to changes in market conditions and the
Group’s business strategy. The audit committee of the Company, or in the case of SHK, its risk
management committee, reviews risk-related policies and scrutinises that management has performed
its duty to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary for monitoring and
controlling major risks arising from the Group’s business activities, changing external risks and the
regulatory environment, and reports to the Board on the above.

Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk concerns that the value
of an investment will change due to movements in market factors and which can be further divided
into equity risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Credit risk is the risk of losses arising from
clients or counterparties failing to make payments as contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given
security or asset cannot be traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events. Operational risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing
robust internal controls, setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate culture that the business and
operating line management are fully aware of, and responsible for, managing the operational risks
of their business units on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted by
the internal audit team which reports regularly to the respective senior management and the audit
committee.

RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is highly committed to comply with laws and regulations that govern our businesses. As
a listed company in Hong Kong, the company has to comply with the listing rules of the Hong Kong
Exchange. Our loan businesses in Hong Kong are governed by the Money Lender’s Ordinance. The
lending businesses in the PRC are operated in accordance with the regional guidelines announced by
the provincial governments under the Guiding Opinions of the China Banking Regulatory Commission
and the People’s Bank of China on the Pilot Operation of Small Loan Companies as well as the Special
Rectification Documents of their special working group on cash loans, internet loans and P2P loans
including B A KR SR UHBE o BESEBS AN, Bl A BN % /NRR AR R ) A9 A/ N VB S gy ST A
TEE M RN (G ERIEHER[2017]56%%) 7 and “BIRMYLT P2 PAAAS (5 S5 R S E B IR B BBl T
R3804 B3 6 K (2017157957, Our rental businesses are governed by the Landlord and Tenant
(Consolidation) Ordinance.

BEEBEERLRQEA Annual Report 2017

13



14

Review of Operations (Cont'd)

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

The Group is engaged in its businesses of investment, structured finance, consumer finance, property
and related businesses, elderly care services and other investments. The Group’s policy has been to
adopt the following long term strategies:—

1. To maintain the organic growth of its core businesses;

2. To maintain a balance between the demands of short term returns and long term capital
appreciation; and

3. To seek investment opportunities that assist in strengthening and broadening its earnings base.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

It is expected that global economic growth will strengthen in 2018. However, significant risk factors
such as geopolitical issues and the pace of the US interest rate hike still remain. It is expected that
interest rate pressure will bear upon the local economy.

The outlook for the consumer finance and mortgage loans businesses is expected to remain positive
barring any disruptive market development.

The shortage in the supply of land of Hong Kong when compared to demand remains a main issue of
the local economy. It is expected that downturn of the property market may happen if mortgage interest
rates increase substantially in 2018.

For the mainland property market, there have been various measures by the authorities to regulate the
high housing demand and cool down the overheated property market, so as to restore a healthy and
stable property market.

The Board will continue to adopt a prudent approach in implementing the Group's stated strategies

with the aim of consolidating its solid financial position and diversified income streams for the benefit
of the Group and all its shareholders.
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank all the staff for their effort and contribution in 2017, and would like to
express appreciation to the Shareholders for their continued support.

Lee Seng Hui
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2018
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ARTHUR GEORGE DEW

Mr. Arthur George Dew, aged 76, Chairman of the Company since January 2007, was appointed
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in December 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2002. Mr. Dew is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. He graduated from the Law School of the University of Sydney, Australia, and was admitted as
a solicitor and later as a barrister of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia. He is currently
a non-practising barrister. He has a broad range of corporate and business experience and has served as
a director, and in some instances chairman of the board of directors, of a number of public companies
listed in Australia, Hong Kong and elsewhere. He is also the chairman and a non-executive director of
each of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL”), APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”), Dragon Mining
Limited (“Dragon Mining”) and Tian An Australia Limited (“Tian An Australia”), and a non-executive
director of each of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK HK IND”) and Tanami Gold NL (“Tanami
Gold”). Dragon Mining, Tanami Gold and Tian An Australia are companies listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange.

LEE SENG HUI

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, aged 49, Chief Executive of the Company since January 1998, was appointed a
Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 1992 and became an Executive Director of the
Company in December 1993. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lee is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. He graduated from the Law School of the University of Sydney with Honours. Previously,
he worked with Baker & McKenzie and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Lee is the
chief executive and an executive director of APL, the chairman and a non-executive director of Tian
An China Investments Company Limited (“Tian An”) and a non-executive director of APAC. He is a
non-executive chairman of Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”), a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange. Mr. Lee resigned as the chairman and a non-executive director of Asiasec
Properties Limited (“Asiasec”, formerly known as Dan Form Holdings Company Limited) in January
2018. He is a brother of Ms. Lee Su Hwei (a Non-Executive Director of the Company).

EDWIN LO KING YAU

Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 57, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in May 2000.
Mr. Lo is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a Master’s Degree in Applied
Finance from Macquarie University, Australia and is a chartered company secretary. He had served
various executive roles in several companies in Hong Kong including as company secretary for public
listed companies. He is also an executive director of each of Tian An and Asiasec.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

MAK PAK HUNG

Mr. Mak Pak Hung, aged 71, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in January 2006.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts Honours Degree in Economics from the University of Hong Kong and a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of Western Ontario, Canada. Formerly,
Mr. Mak was the Chief Financial Officer of SHK. Prior to joining SHK, Mr. Mak was with A.S. Watson
& Company Limited, a subsidiary company of CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Hutchison Whampoa Limited), as Chief Operating Officer and Group Finance Director. Before that,
he was the Managing Director of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce for Hong Kong and China and
has also held senior positions with Manufacturers Hanover Trust Co. and Citibank N.A., with extensive
experience in banking and finance. He is also a director of United Asia Finance Limited.

LEE SU HWEI

Ms. Lee Su Hwei, aged 47, was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company in May 2000.
She holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the University of Sydney and has experience as an
investment analyst and in the securities industry generally in Hong Kong and the region. She is the
sister of Mr. Lee Seng Hui (the Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Company).

DAVID CRAIG BARTLETT

Mr. David Craig Bartlett, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in December 1999. He graduated with honours in law from Exeter University in the United
Kingdom in 1988 and subsequently qualified as a solicitor in England & Wales, The Republic of Ireland
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. A former partner of the international law firm Clyde
& Co., he regularly acted for and advised the Company and its subsidiaries before leaving private
practice for a career in industry. Now based primarily in Europe, Mr. Bartlett is also an independent
non-executive director of each of APL and SHK.

ALAN STEPHEN JONES

Mr. Alan Stephen Jones, aged 74, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in January 2006. Mr. Jones, a chartered accountant, has extensive experience in management,
administration, accounting, property development, carpark management, finance and trading, and has
been involved in successful mergers and acquisitions of a number of public companies in Australia and
internationally. Mr. Jones is an independent non-executive director of each of APL and SHK. He is also
an independent non-executive director of Mount Gibson, a company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange, and a non-executive chairman of Air Change International Limited, a company listed on the
National Stock Exchange of Australia Limited. He is also a non-executive director of Mulpha Australia
Limited.

LISA YANG LAI SUM

Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 51, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in November 2013. She graduated from the University of Sydney with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Law and Economics and is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England. She is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms. Yang is also an independent non-
executive director of Tian An. She was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Asiasec
in March 2017.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

KENNETH LI CHI KONG

Mr. Kenneth Li Chi Kong, aged 64, joined the Company in January 1996 and is the Group Financial
Controller of the Company. Mr. Li is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from the University of Edinburgh in Scotland, United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s Degree
of Science and obtained a Post-graduate Diploma in Accounting from Heriot-Watt University in
Edinburgh. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in finance and
accounting. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for two major audit firms and acted as the group
financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li is also the financial controller
and an executive director of APL.

MARK WONG TAI CHUN

Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun, aged 53, took up the post of director of investment of the Company in
September 2007. Mr. Wong is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He has a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Wong was the financial
controller of other listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an executive director of each of APL
and SHK HK IND and an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in APAC, Tanami Gold, Dragon
Mining and Tian An Australia. Tanami Gold, Dragon Mining and Tian An Australia are companies
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

KELVIN LAM KAM WING

Mr. Kelvin Lam Kam Wing, aged 51, is the Assistant Financial Controller of the Company. He obtained
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1999
and is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Before Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1992, he had
worked in an international accounting firm for four years.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within a sensible
framework with an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence. The
board of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report.
The Company has applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the
CG Code during the year ended 31st December, 2017, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review the current practices
at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors (“Directors”) in total, with three Executive Directors,
two Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The
composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive)
Edwin Lo King Yau
Mak Pak Hung

Non-Executive Directors: Arthur George Dew (Chairman)
Lee Su Hwei
Independent Non-Executive Directors: David Craig Bartlett

Alan Stephen Jones
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the Profile of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 16 to 18. Other than that Mr. Lee Seng Hui, the Chief Executive of the
Company, is a brother of Ms. Lee Su Hwei, a NED of the Company, there are no family or other
material relationships among members of the Board.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Process

During the year, the NEDs (a majority of whom are independent) provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings brought independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group’s strategy, performance and management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has had at least three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his/her
independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and other
ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During the year, five Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and general meeting during the year ended 31st December, 2017 are set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration Audit General
Name of Directors Board  Committee =~ Committee Meeting
Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) 5/5 1/1
Edwin Lo King Yau 3/5 0/1
Mak Pak Hung 5/5 171
Non-Executive Directors:
Arthur George Dew (Chairman) 5/5 1/1 2/2 0/1
Lee Su Hwei 4/5 01
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
David Craig Bartlett 3/5 11 2/2 0/1
Alan Stephen Jones 4/5 1/1 2/2 1/1
Lisa Yang Lai Sum 4/5 11 2/2 171
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering mainly the Group’s overall
strategy, annual operating budget, annual and interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment
or re-appointment (based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee), material
contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other significant policy and financial
matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive management under the
instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms of reference.
The respective functions of the Board and management of the Company have been formalised and set
out in writing and will be reviewed and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles of association of
the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided therein,
a Director shall abstain from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her close
associates has a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure
has been established since June 2005 to enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and review
of papers and circulars sent by the management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development Activities
Attending trainings/
briefings/seminars/

conference
Reading Regulatory relevant to the
Name of Directors Updates Directors’ duties

Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) v v
Edwin Lo King Yau v v
Mak Pak Hung v v

Non-Executive Directors:

Arthur George Dew (Chairman) v v
Lee Su Hwei v X
Independent Non-Executive Directors:

David Craig Bartlett v v
Alan Stephen Jones 4 v
Lisa Yang Lai Sum v/ v

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013 which sets out the objectives
and principles regarding board diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives
of balanced diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be based on merit
and candidates will be considered against measurable objectives, taking into account the Company’s
business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to
the Board.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Arthur George Dew, being
the Chairman of the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that
(i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii)
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, timely and clear information. The functions of the chief executive are performed by Mr. Lee
Seng Hui, the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business. Their responsibilities are clearly segregated and have been set out in writing and
approved by the Board in June 2005, and subsequently updated in April 2012.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the nomination procedure specifying
the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from the Company Secretary on the
first occasion of his/her appointment. This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction
package includes materials briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously updated on any major developments
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term of appointment of the NEDs
(including INEDs) has been renewed for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2017.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company whilst for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until
the next following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the
relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and has adopted the written terms
of reference on its corporate governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

In 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination Committee, a Remuneration
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written
terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept
by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this report,
have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012 and is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of four
members, including Mr. Arthur George Dew (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), being a NED,
Mr. David Craig Bartlett, Mr. Alan Stephen Jones and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary. The
major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are included in its terms of reference, which
are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in accordance with its terms of reference
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation. In 2017, no Nomination Committee meeting was
held while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation. In 2017 and up to the
date of this report, the Nomination Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the proposed resolution for re-election of the
retiring Directors at 2017 AGM and 2018 AGM; and

(ii) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and assessed the independence
of each INED.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established for more than 10 years and currently consists of
four members, including Mr. David Craig Bartlett (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Alan
Stephen Jones and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs, and Mr. Arthur George Dew, being a
NED. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are included in its terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance with the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors only
and not senior management (as opposed to executive directors and senior management under the code
provision). The reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly in a position to evaluate the
performance of senior management and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out
by the Executive Directors;

(ii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and control senior management and thus
must be able to control their compensation; and

(i) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management more than industry standards
and thus Shareholders will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance with its terms of reference.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2017 and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “The Board” of this report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee also dealt with
matters by way of circulation during 2017. In 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the existing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Group Financial
Controller and the director of investment;

(i) reviewed the existing remuneration of the NEDs (including the INEDs);

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus for the year ended 31st December,
2016 and the increment in the remuneration for the year 2017 of the Executive Directors, the
Chairman, the Group Financial Controller and the director of investment;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the renewal of a tenancy agreement for
provision of an accommodation to the Chief Executive whereby the monthly rental payable by the
Company decreased by HK$5,500 effective from 1st January, 2018; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the change of residence provided to the
Chief Executive as accommodation, the relevant surrender agreement and the tenancy agreement
thereof.

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the emoluments of certain Directors
during the interim period and up to the date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim
Report of the Company dated 22nd August, 2017. Details of the emolument policy of the Group are
also set out in the “Emolument Policy” section contained in the Directors’ Report on page 53.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established for more than 10 years and currently consists of four NEDs,
three of whom are INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by
an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), being an INED, Mr. Arthur George Dew, being a NED, Mr. David Craig Bartlett and
Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, both being INEDs. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are included in
its terms of reference, which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time to time to comply with the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as opposed to implement under the
code provision) the policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for
the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to develop policy and make
appropriate recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such policy and recommendations is
through the Executive Directors and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day
basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses the effective ability to scrutinize
(as opposed to ensure under the code provision) whether management has performed its duty to have
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not equipped to
ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day supervision and the employment of
permanent experts. The Audit Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit Committee is not in a
position to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is
adequately resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with its terms of reference. Two
Audit Committee meetings were held in 2017 and the attendance of each member is set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2017. In 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the
works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the external auditor;
(ii) reviewed the reports of findings/independent review report from the external auditor and the
management’s response in relation to the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2016, the

interim results review for the six months ended 30th June, 2017 and the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 of the Group;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the financial reports for the year ended 31st
December, 2016, for the six months ended 30th June, 2017 and for the year ended 31st December,
2017 together with the relevant management representation letters and announcements;

(iv) reviewed the Group Internal Audit Plan prepared by the Internal Audit Department (“IAD");

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the updated report on substantiation of the
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget;

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Related Party Transaction Policies
and Procedures, Procedures for the Identification and Monitoring of Connected Transactions,
Whistle Blower Policy, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information, Manual of Company
Management Authority and Policy on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control
Procedures; and

(vii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since January 1993 and currently consists of two
Executive Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and Edwin Lo
King Yau. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers of management and control of
the activities of the Group as are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the Executive Committee.
The terms of reference of the Executive Committee were revised in November 2007 following the
adoption of the Whistle Blower Policy by the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the operating affairs of the Group
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible

for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities, internal control and administration
of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business activities of the Group within the
overall strategy of the Group as determined by the Board.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lau Tung Ni is the Company Secretary of the Company. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board
governance matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for
facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the Shareholders and management.

Ms. Lau is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. During 2017, Ms. Lau undertook over 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees to regulate dealings in securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside information in relation to
the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the support from the Accounts
Department, the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2017, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe that they have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 107 to 116.

BeEsEBEBERLXA Annual Report 2017

29



30

Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONT’D)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. In 2017, the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate
the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals.
They have a key role in the management of risks that are significant to the fulfilment of business
objectives. In addition, they should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different
businesses and activities. The annual assessment is performed through the completion by the relevant
business units and department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-ordinated by the
IAD. The result and findings are reported by the management to the Chairman of Executive Committee
who puts forward the same to the Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems, which have been considered effective and adequate.

The Company’s principal subsidiaries are managed under independent systems of risk management
and internal controls. These subsidiaries have provided appropriate assurance to the Company on their
compliance with the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control systems in general to
the Company.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of the major types of risk
which the Group is facing is included in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements and under the
“Principal Risks” section contained in the Review of Operations on page 13.

Internal Audit

The Head of Internal Audit reports to the Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee. The IAD
generally carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.

The Group Internal Audit Plan was prepared by the IAD and issued to the Audit Committee and the
Board for review.

Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information (“Policy”) effective on 1st
January, 2013 with respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Policy sets out guidelines and procedures to the directors of the Company
and relevant officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to the
public on an equal basis and in timely manner. Directors and relevant officers in possession of potential
inside information and/or inside information are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that
proper safeguards are in place to preserve strict confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that
its recipients recognise their obligations to maintain the information confidential. The Policy shall be
updated and revised as and when necessary in light of changes in circumstances and changes in the
Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
BEEBEAER2A Annual Report 2017



Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONT’D)
External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group’s external auditors is set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group HK$ Million
Audit services 8.2
Non-audit services
— Taxation services 0.9
— Other professional services 0.8

Total 9.9

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with Shareholders. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly with Shareholders. The
Chairman actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions
from Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or in their absence, another member of the respective committees or failing that their
respective duly appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of any independent board committee formed as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such
chairman is appointed, at least a member of the independent board committee) will also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’” approval.

During the year, the 2017 AGM was held on 26th May, 2017. The attendance records of the Directors
at the general meeting are set out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Mr. Arthur George Dew (“Mr. Dew”, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee), by reason of undergoing a medical procedure, and Mr. David Craig Bartlett (“Mr. Bartlett”,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), due to other business engagements, were unable to
attend the 2017 AGM resulting in a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. Despite
his absence, Mr. Dew had reviewed all the documents and procedures of the 2017 AGM before
the meeting, and all records and minutes of the 2017 AGM have been circulated to Mr. Dew and
Mr. Bartlett after the meeting for information. Moreover, Mr. Lee Seng Hui, the Chief Executive and
Executive Director of the Company, who attended and chaired the meeting as Mr. Dew’s delegate in
the Board, and Mr. Alan Stephen Jones, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and
a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, who attended
the meeting as Mr. Dew’s and Mr. Bartlett’s delegate in such committees, were available to answer
questions to ensure effective communication with the Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days in case of all other general meetings. An
explanation of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions from Shareholders regarding voting
by way of a poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM”) by sending a written request to the registered office
of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the EGM and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written
form to the Board at the Registered Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the
Articles of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a proposed resolution,
which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s
business scope.

The Board established a shareholders” communication policy in April 2012, and subsequently updated
in December 2015. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for
making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the CG Code of
the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.
We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to
promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

Allied Group Limited believes in delivering long-term, sustainable value creation to our shareholders.
In doing so, we recognise that the choices we make will have an impact on the communities in which
we carry on our business and we should make such impact a positive one. The Company has adopted
a Sustainability Policy which covers our principles in the area of employment and labour practices,
business integrity, the environment and the community and we shall endeavour to embrace these
principles as part of our practice and governance to contribute to the sustainable development of
society and the environment.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has overall responsibility for the Company’s strategy
and reporting in respect of Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) issues and has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, which are put in place to
identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different businesses and activities, including the ESG-related
risks. Based upon the assessments made by the Company’s senior management, subsidiaries’ respective
management and the external auditors, the Board considered that such systems are effective and
adequate.

This report outlines the Group’s sustainability initiatives and selected Key Performance Indicators (“KP1”)
that are material to the Group and its stakeholders on ESG issues for the year ended 31st December,
2017. This report supplements information disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report, and was
approved by the Board on 26th March, 2018.

REPORTING SCOPE

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the ESG Guide within the scope of
sustainability, the below are the list of issues that are considered to be material and relevant to the
Group. The priorities are set based on management’s view as well as conclusions from stakeholders’
engagement. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily operations through meetings, events, and
other communications and feedback channels. Based on management’s assessment, the aspects and
KPIs relevant for this report’s disclosure are set out as follows:

Material and relevant issues:

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI B5.1, B5.2
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2

Other relevant issues:

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure

Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general disclosure, KPI A3.1
Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1, B3.2
Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure

Product responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.5
Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure, KPI B8.1, B8.2

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
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All other aspects of KPI not mentioned above were concluded to be not relevant for disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of provisions by the Stock
Exchange’s ESG Guide.

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Group’s Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach towards environmental issues.
We endeavour to:

observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond minimum requirements;

— prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste;

- make efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials;
— minimise the impact of the Group's activities on the environment and natural resources; and

— engage our staff, customers and partners to promote environmentally sustainable business
practices and constantly re-assess our processes to minimise environmental impact.

This report does not include the disclosure of all the environmental KPIs as they are not considered
material or relevant as a conclusion of our stakeholder engagement as well as management’s view.
Instead, we have discussed our general approach and effort to reduce the Group’s environmental
footprint in various aspects.

Emissions (Aspect A1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities. Emissions produced directly by the
Group only related to the executive passenger vehicles (36) and company boats (8) in Hong Kong
and mainland China. These are used for senior staff’s local travel only as well as for entertainment.

It is therefore that the scale and usage are immaterial given the size of the Group's assets and staff.

Other emissions produced are mostly on a “second degree” basis as incurred during occasional
business travels.

In line with our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, major operations are
equipped with video conferencing facilities to reduce the need for face to face meetings and keep

business travelling to a minimum. Only a small percentage of employees travel for business.

There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our business in this aspect.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (CONT’D)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2), and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We have adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures to enhance the efficiency
in consumption of resources including energy, water and other paper. With 5,080 staff across the
Group, we consume considerable amounts of electricity and paper and with the efficient use of
such, we hope to minimise our impact on the environment while we grow our businesses. Water
consumption is not material to our business as it relates mainly to the personal consumption of our
staff or for their personal hygiene.

Since June 2013, electronic board paper systems have been promoted and implemented
throughout the Group, allowing our directors to access meeting papers online anytime, anywhere
with the use of portable electronic devices, improving Board efficiency whilst saving paper.

The Company has for some years established an electronic communication channel with
shareholders, allowing shareholders to select to receive our corporate communications, such as
annual reports, interim reports and circulars, by accessing online versions instead of receiving hard
copies in mail. As a result, printing quantities of our corporate communications are substantially
reduced and consumption of paper are thus minimised.

Environmental protection guidelines for energy savings and reduction in paper consumption are
circulated to all staff at head office and branches. For instance, staff are reminded to switch off
lights and equipment after work, during lunch break or during the time working outside the office
and wherever possible. Energy efficient office equipment is always preferred in making purchase
decisions. During 2017, the Group's total electricity consumption was approximately 7.6 million
kwh (2016: 8.2 million kwh).

In Hong Kong, United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”) has joined the “Charter on External Lighting”
(the “Charter”) launched by the Environment Bureau since 2016 and the external lighting of
advertising and shop signage be switched off after midnight. One of the Group’s subsidiary
companies, Protech Property Management Limited, has for many years participated in the Earth
Hour Campaign (the “Campaign”) and encouraged owners/tenants of the flats and buildings which
it manages to turn off lights every year for one hour at 8:30 pm on the Campaign nights. The
purpose of the Charter and the Campaign is to minimise light nuisance and energy wastage and to
bring general awareness of environmental protection.

Throughout the Group, the following business processes were implemented to improve efficiency
and to reduce paper usage:

—  On-line or mobile loan applications channels

—  Web-based application system such as Document Management Systems of UAF and Sun Hung
Kai Credit Limited (“SHK Credit”)

—  Electronic loan statements
— Recycling schemes of office equipment and supplies

— Internal electronic administration and communication platform

BEEBEERLRQEA Annual Report 2017

35



36

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (CONT’D)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2), and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3) (Cont’d)

In the property and hotel business, eco-friendly options are often considered and where possible/
appropriate are implemented in operations, construction and maintenance works.

These include:

1.

9.

Building Environmental Assessment Method Plus applied to demolition and new building
project.

Replace air-cool with water-cool air-conditioning system with selection of more efficient oil-
free chillers.

Up-grade building management system with better control for air-handling units.
Carry out energy audits.

Replace energy wasting lights with LED lights.

Change diesel boilers to gas boilers and heat pumps for hot water system.

Use of syphonic double flush WC units where appropriate.

Roof waterproofing system using more economical and efficient method to reduce noise, dust
and debris.

Use of non-Chlorofluorocarbon based refrigerants in air-conditioning unit selection.

Recycling scheme for materials, such as paper, plastic, glass bottle, cooking oil and electronic
materials, has been launched in certain restaurants and within internal departments. Food saving
has also been encouraged in joining the Waste Check Charter with the Environmental Protection
Department.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group’s businesses have no direct impact on the environment
and natural resources.
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SOCIAL ISSUES
Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards (Aspect B1, B2, B4)

The Company is substantially an investment holding company and with subsidiaries involved in
real estate, finance and money lending, property leasing, management services and elderly care
services. Our people are our most important assets that drive the long-term development and
sustainability of the Company. The Group’s policy on employment is as follows:

observing relevant laws and regulations;

— being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare for our staff;

- providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting employees from occupational
hazards;

—  promoting a good work-life balance for staff;

— investing in training and professional development of our staff for the purpose of improving
their knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work;

— maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent two-way communication;
and

— no child and forced labour.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employment of staff is subject to the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. In mainland
China, staff employment is subject to the Labour Law and the Employment Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ([ #1% N RILFNE 5581k & 55 8) 5 [7]i% |). The Group has no known
non-compliance with the above relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods, welfare) need to be
competitive with other peers in the same sectors and in general exceeds the minimum as
required by the relevant regulations. Owing to the nature of our businesses, work related injuries,
occupational health issues and the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk factors.

Further information on the Group’s human resources is also detailed in the section headed “Review
of Operations” on page 12 of this Annual Report.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment for our staff. On top
of this, well-being programmes such as those promoting a good work-life balance are regularly
offered to staff such as the handling of stress and parenting skills. The Group also sponsors and
organises various company teams across the Group for team sports and community service. Sports
teams include dragon boating, soccer, basketball, bowling and charity marathon to name a few
whereas Volunteer teams visited Elderly Homes/Centers and joined Recreational Activities for
Disabled Persons organised by Hong Kong PHAB Association. The Group also participates in
various donation campaigns organised by the Community Chest, The World Wildlife Fund Hong
Kong and Oxfam Hong Kong, like Walk for Millions, Walk for Nature @ Mai Po and Oxfam Rice
Event. Certain operations also publish staff magazines to share Group, industry and staff news and
to promote internal communication.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group employs a total of 5,080 staff compared against 5,343 at the
end of 2016 as UAF consolidated its consumer finance branches in mainland China and increased
its online presence.
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B. SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards (Aspect B1, B2, B4) (Cont’d)
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B. SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)
Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards (Aspect B1, B2, B4) (Cont'd)
Human Resources and sustainability related awards:

—  Good MPF Employer Award 2014-2017 (Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"))

—  Caring Company Award 2005-2018 (UAF); 2016-2018 (SHK); 2009-2018 (Protech Property
Management Limited)

—  Partner Employer Award 2016-2018 (UAF)

- ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme 2012-2018 (UAF)

—  Social Capital Builder Award 2016-2018 (UAF)

- Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Awards 2016-2018 — Enterprise Category (UAF)

- Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Awards 2016-2018 — Volunteer Category (UAF)

—  Young Entrepreneurs Development Council — Long-Term Voluntary Service to the School-
Company-Parent Program (10 years) 2016-2017 (UAF)

- Young Entrepreneurs Development Council — School-Company-Parent Program’s Best
Performance of School-Company Partnership 2016-2017 (UAF)

—  Corporate Volunteer Long Service Award Five Years Plus — 2017 (UAF)

—  Environmental Bureau — The Charter on External Lighting Award Ceremony 2017 (UAF)

— Hong Kong Green Organization Certification — Wastewi$e Certificate 2017 (UAF) (Protech
Property Management Limited)

— Happy Company 2016-2018 (UAF)

— Hong Kong Citizen Hong Kong Heart — Volunteer Ambassador Program 2017 (UAF)

Development and Training (Aspect B3)

The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning in our organisation. Heavy
emphasis is placed on staff training which is tailored to equip our workforce with the necessary
knowledge and skills relevant for their work, as well as to build our talent pool. Management
is involved, together with professional trainers, in designing training programmes that meet the
demands of the workplace. Training content and topics are set to cover the key aspects of our
operations. These include:

Compliance and regulatory — general compliance, market and regulatory updates, prevention of
bribery, bankruptcy laws, data privacy, the Money Lenders Ordinance (“MLO”).

Management skills and personal — leadership skills, supervisory skills, KPI setting, communication
and interpersonal skills, creative thinking and problem solving skills, self-development skills.

Job skills — language skills, computer skills, debt collection skills, customer service skills.

UAF has a comprehensive graduate training programme to train up talented university graduates
for future advancement to the management team. The 25-month programme provides training on
their knowledge and skill sets for consumer financing industry.

On top of internal training, UAF and SHK Credit also provide a study subsidy for staff to advance
their education outside of office hours. UAF Hong Kong has received the honour of “Manpower
Developer” from the Employees Retraining Board every year since 2012.

In the hotel sector, as talents are our most valuable assets, we have formulated strategic plans for
talent retention, growth and development. We also provide training courses on regular basis for

talents.

Staff training across the Group amounted to 85,483 hours in total.
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B. SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)

Development and Training (Aspect B3) (Cont’d)
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B. SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)
Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group’s general business suppliers include providers of information technology and
communication, premises, legal and other business services as well as vendors for office supplies.
These are not considered to pose significant social risks for our business and procurement decisions
are based on pricing, suitability as well as the general reputation of suppliers.

For UAF and SHK Credit businesses specifically, external debt collection agents are engaged only
after internal collection efforts have failed to collect overdue debts. More than 22 and 45 of such
agents were engaged by both businesses in Hong Kong and mainland China respectively. UAF and
SHK Credit both have well-defined policies and procedures for the selection, monitoring of their
debt collection agents. The agents are selected carefully based on track record of good practices
and reputation. They are required to abide by a Code of Conduct and are subject to benchmarking,
audits and rotation. As UAF and SHK Credit do not sell their receivables, they can retain control
over the collection process. Under the Code of Conduct, the agents shall not:

- sub-contract, delegate the whole or any part of their duties under the debt service agreement
with UAF and SHK Credit;

— violate the relevant laws and regulations; and

— engage in any action or conduct which is prejudicial to the business, integrity, reputation or
goodwill of UAF and SHK Credit.

As part of monitoring these agents, regular surveys are conducted with customers and the general
public for feedback. During 2017, the number of complaints received on debt collection is
minimal, which is less than 0.01% of the UAF’s and SHK Credit’s customer base. We understand
that this is a very low ratio by industry standards according to management’s knowledge. Over the
years, UAF’s market share by customer numbers (outside of banks) in Hong Kong continued to lead
as a result of its solid reputation.

Product Responsibility (Aspect B6)

The Group provides loan products to individuals and corporates in Hong Kong and mainland
China. These include private credit extended to corporates under the Principal Investments
Segment of SHK, consumer finance and small business loans through UAF, as well as mortgage
loans through SHK Credit.

In Hong Kong, all the relevant loan businesses above operate under the MLO, being licensed
money lenders. In mainland China, UAF’s operations follow the regional guidelines announced
by the provincial governments under the Guiding Opinions of the China Banking Regulatory
Commission and the People’s Bank of China on the Pilot Operation of Small Loan Companies as
well as the Special Rectification Documents of their special working group on cash loans, internet
loans and P2P loans including “ [ i #8835 <5 S SEBSAmAN, “ B ENEE/NER B A W A A% /)
RHEL S L ey SR TR I B it 7 8 19 288 R0 (R B R E R ER (2017156 5%) and Bl R UL P2 PRE A& 15
B T R VA R i A A A N (A R TR EK (2017157987, During the year, there were no
known cases of non-compliance with the above laws or regulations.
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SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)
Product Responsibility (Aspect B6) (Cont’d)

In Hong Kong, the MLO focuses on borrowers’ rights as well as lenders’ practices. UAF, as a
founding member of The Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed Money Lenders Association Limited (“LMLA"),
has led the drafting of the Code of Practice (the “Code”) for the money lending industry. The Code
was promoted for application by all the members of the LMLA including UAF and SHK Credit.
The Code is a comprehensive framework of market practice and standard, developed based on
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s guidelines to banks, in the various business aspects such as
customer relationships, know-your-customer, anti-money laundering, credit evaluation, collection
and recovery and data privacy. UAF is on the executive committee of LMLA and leads the task
force for regular review of the Code. UAF also holds regular dialogues with the Companies Registry
(which reviews the licensing matters of money lenders) to discuss best practices and industry
trends.

Servicing approximately 210,000 customers in Hong Kong and mainland China, UAF and SHK
Credit place a very high priority to uphold customers data privacy. Measures and clear guidelines
are in place and observed to ensure customers’ relevant data are protected against unauthorized
or accidental access, processing or erasure. Appropriate levels of security protection were
implemented by adequate physical, electronic and managerial measures to safeguard and secure
customers’ personal data. In addition, all Hong Kong staff are required to complete a Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance e-learning course annually.

Owing to the nature of the consumer finance business where debt collection is involved,
reputational risk monitoring and preventions are of utmost importance. At both UAF and SHK
Credit, various measures are in place to minimise risks. Results and response to collection efforts
are monitored on a timely basis. Dedicated telephone hotlines are set up for customer complaints
and dispute resolution. External agents engaged for collection are tightly monitored as discussed
above.

Anti-corruption (Aspect B7)

A Whistle Blower Policy has been established to facilitate employees’ direct reporting of any
unlawful conduct, any incident of corruption, avoidance of internal controls, incorrect or improper
financial or other reporting to senior management. This policy is either circulated to employees
periodically or placed on the corporate electronic platform by the Group to facilitate employees’
easy access and reporting.

All relevant staff in Hong Kong are required to complete Money Laundering & Counter-Terrorist

Financing e-learning courses annually. Seminar of the Independent Commission Against Corruption
on anti-corruption is organised periodically for employees.
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B. SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)
Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel for our customers and undertake the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
contributing to the community by encouraging our staff to enrol in charity and social services.

UAF had a long history of participation in volunteering activities to service our communities. It was
also named a “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for 12 consecutive
years. Since 2015, the UAF volunteer team has participated in community services projects serving
the underprivileged, such as low-income senior citizens, senior citizens living alone, children from
low-income families etc. As at 31st December, 2017, UAF had a total of 53 volunteer members
and served a total of 1,040 hours in various community activities during 2017.

The key activities in 2017 include the following:

—  Po Leung Kuk: Elderly Visit and Gathering — Community Canteen

—  HK Family Welfare Society: Cultural Preservation Trip for Elders

— Po Leung Kuk: Eastern Green Community Station Visit

- Po Leung Kuk: Roof Greening for Po Leung Kuk Elderly Centre

—  St. James Settlement: Environmental Protection Education for Children from Low Income
Family — City Fisherman Experience Day

—  St. James Settlement: Go Run Together Charity Run 2017
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B. SOCIAL ISSUES (CONT’D)
Community Investment (Aspect B8) (Cont’d)

Apart from charitable activities, the Group is also actively involved in the community via our
participation as well as our senior management’s roles in industry organisations, schools, chambers
and Non-Governmental Organisations. By sharing our knowledge and best practices, we aim to
contribute to the long term development of the communities we operate in.

Role of Company/Senior Management Organisation

SHK

Committee Member The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies

Corporate Member The Malaysian Chamber of Commerce
(Hong Kong and Macau) Ltd.

Corporate Member The Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

UAF

Founding member, Chairman The Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed Money Lenders
Association Limited

Trustee member New Asia College of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong

Director Hong Kong and Macau Taiwanese Charity Fund
Limited

The Group’s total charitable donations during the year amounted to approximately HK$23.3
million, benefiting causes for education, health, and charity services for the underprivileged.

In addition the Sun Hung Kai & Co. Foundation (the “Foundation”) sponsored by SHK also served as
a platform for SHK and its business associates and partners to support our community, in particular,
to improve the lives of the underprivileged. The Foundation’s principal interests are in the areas of
poverty relief, education and the environment.

In the hotel sector, we promote community contribution within the organisation. In 2017, we
have committed to reconciliation through Non-Governmental Organisations, e.g. Orbis, St. James
Settlement and World Wildlife Fund Hong Kong, for various programmes which encouraged social
responsibility between the staff and the community.
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Directors’ Report

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate management services.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at 31st December, 2017
are set out in notes 52, 53 and 54 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. The business
review of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017, as well as further discussion and analysis
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are set out in the section headed
“Review of Operations” on pages 6 to 15, the section headed “Communication with Shareholders”
under “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 31 and 32 and the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 33 to 44 of this Annual Report, the discussions of which form part of this
directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 117 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board has declared a second interim dividend of HK$2.35 per share (in lieu of a final dividend)
for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (2016 second interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend):
HK$1.85 per share) payable on or around Wednesday, 9th May, 2018 to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 17th April, 2018, making a total dividend for the year 2017 of HK$2.5 per share (2016:
HK$2.0 per share). Details are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31st December, 2017 at HK$9,048.1 million.
The net increase in fair value of HK$979.1 million attributable to investment properties held at
31st December, 2017 has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of the changes in the investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

During the year, the Group’s interest in Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”)
remained at 48.66%. In view of the provisions of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements”, the Group has considered whether TACI is a subsidiary when
preparing its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2017 and has
concluded that it does not have unilateral ability to direct the relevant activities of TACI based on the
facts and circumstances as detailed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the Group continues to account for its interest in TACI as an associate.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of major properties of the Group at 31st December, 2017 are set out on pages 298 to 304.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES
The Group had the following debentures in issue as at 31st December, 2017:

- US$550,000,000 4.65% Guaranteed Notes due September 2022 issued under its
US$2,000,000,000 Guaranteed Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”) were listed on
11th September, 2017 as to US$400,000,000 and on 19th September, 2017 as to US$150,000,000
(stock code: 5267). The issuer of the Programme is Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited (“SHK
BVI”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

- US$361,639,000 4.75% Guaranteed Notes due May 2021 issued by SHK BVI under the
Programme was listed on 1st June, 2016 (stock code: 5654).

-  HK$447,500,000 2.8% Guaranteed Notes due November 2018 issued by SHK BVI under the
Programme on 20th November, 2017.

—  RMB447,010,000 6.9% Notes due May 2018 issued under the US$3,000,000,000 Medium Term
Note Programme by UA Finance (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

For further details of the abovementioned issued Notes, please refer to note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui
Edwin Lo King Yau
Mak Pak Hung

Non-Executive Directors:
Arthur George Dew
Lee Su Hwei

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
David Craig Bartlett

Alan Stephen Jones

Lisa Yang Lai Sum
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DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”), Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau and Ms. Lee Su Hwei shall retire from office
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during
the year are available on the website of the Company under the “Corporate Governance” section.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”)) were
appointed for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December, 2018 but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the
Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2017, Mr. Lee Seng Hui and Ms. Lee Su Hwei, Directors, had the following interests
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

Approximate %
Number of of the total number
Name of Directors Name of companies shares interested of issued shares  Nature of interests

Lee Seng Hui the Company 131,729,301 74.95%  Personal interests (held as beneficial
owner) in 22,921 shares and other
interests in 131,706,380 shares (Note 1)

Lee Su Hwei the Company 131,706,380 74.93%  Other interests (Note 1)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Hui and Ms. Lee Su Hwei are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust which indirectly
held 131,706,380 shares of the Company.

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2017, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not being the INEDs) are
considered to have interests in the businesses listed below which compete or are likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

(i) Messrs. Arthur George Dew and Lee Seng Hui are directors of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited
(“APL") which, through certain of its subsidiaries and close associates, is partly engaged in the
business of money lending and is partly involved in the investment and trading in securities in the
resources and related industries and financial instruments;

(i) Mr. Lee Seng Hui and Ms. Lee Su Hwei are two of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which is a
deemed substantial shareholder of each of APL, Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”), SHK Hong
Kong Industries Limited (“SHK HK IND”), TACI, Asiasec Properties Limited (“Asiasec”, formerly
known as Dan Form Holdings Company Limited) and APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”) which,
through their subsidiaries and/or close associates, are partly engaged in the businesses as follows:

—  APL, through a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending;

—  APL, through certain of its subsidiaries and close associates, is partly involved in the investment
and trading in securities in the resources and related industries and financial instruments;

— SHK, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending
and property investment;

—  SHK HK IND, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in trading in securities and
investment in financial instruments;

—  TACI, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending,
property development and investment and property management;

- Asiasec, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of property
investment and property management; and

— APAC, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the business of money lending
and is partly involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and
related industries;

(iii) Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of Allied Kajima Limited which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of property rental and hospitality related activities;

(iv) Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Edwin Lo King Yau are directors of TACI which, through certain of its
subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending, property development and
investment and property management;

(v) Messrs. Lee Seng Hui was a director of Asiasec until 4th January, 2018 and Mr. Edwin Lo King
Yau is also a director of Asiasec which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the
businesses of property investment and property management;

(vi) Mr. Lee Seng Hui and Mr. Arthur George Dew are directors of APAC which, through certain of

its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the business of money lending and is partly involved in the
investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and related industries;
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES (CONT’D)

(vii) Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of Mount Gibson Iron Limited which, through certain of its
subsidiaries, is partly involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and
related industries;

(viii) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a director of SHK HK IND which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly involved in trading in securities and investment in financial instruments;

(ix) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a non-executive director of each of Tanami Gold NL and Dragon
Mining Limited which, through certain of their subsidiaries, are partly involved in the investment
and trading in listed securities in the resources and related industries; and

(x)  Mr. Arthur George Dew is the non-executive chairman of Tian An Australia Limited which, through
certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in property development.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other companies by virtue of their
respective common directorship or shareholding, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure
that they will act in the best interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times.
Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year. For information only:

(i) a tenancy agreement dated 19th November, 2015 entered into between Mr. Lee Seng Hui as the
tenant and a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as the landlord had expired on 18th
November, 2017 and was renewed by a tenancy agreement dated 29th November, 2017 for a term
commencing from 19th November, 2017. The total rental of HK$4.1 million received therefrom
during the year ended 31st December, 2017 is considered insignificant in relation to the Group’s
business. Such tenancy agreement was subsequently terminated on 14th February, 2018.

(i) (a) a tenancy agreement dated 12th July, 2016 was entered into between San Pack Properties
Limited (“San Pack”, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the landlord and San
Tai Distribution Company Limited (“San Tai”, a company of which Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau can
exercise more than 50% of the voting rights at the general meetings) as the tenant for the period
from 1st July, 2016 to 30th June, 2019; (b) a tenancy agreement dated 4th November, 2016 was
entered into between San Pack as the landlord and China Pacific Group Limited (“China Pacific”,
a company of which Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau can exercise more than 50% of the voting rights at
the general meetings) as the tenant for the period from 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2019; and (c)
a logistics and warehouse services agreement dated 27th March, 2017 was entered into between
San Pack as the client and San Tai as the service provider for the period from 1st April, 2017 to
30th June, 2019. The total rental of HK$14.1 million received therefrom and the total service
fee of HK$0.3 million paid thereto during the year ended 31st December, 2017 are considered
insignificant in relation to the Group’s business.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts, relating to the management and/or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

To the best of Directors’” knowledge, at 31st December, 2017, the following Shareholders had interests
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate %
Number of  of the total number

Name of Shareholders shares interested of issued shares Notes
Cashplus Management Limited (“Cashplus”) 55,861,688 31.78% -
Zealous Developments Limited (“Zealous”) 55,861,688 31.78% 1,2
Minty Hongkong Limited (“Minty”) 75,844,692 43.15% —
Lee and Lee Trust 131,706,380 74.93% 3,4
Dalton Investments LLC 10,663,938 6.06% -
Notes:

1. This represents the same interest of Cashplus in 55,861,688 shares.

2. Cashplus is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zealous. Zealous was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in
which Cashplus was interested.

3. Minty and Zealous are wholly-owned by the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust.
4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui and Ms. Lee Su Hwei, both Directors, together with Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee
Trust, being a discretionary trust, and were therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which Minty and Zealous

were interested.

5. All interests stated above represent long positions.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27th March, 2017, subsequent to the
obtaining of 65% shareholding interests in a target company on 23rd December, 2016 by Mr. Edwin
Lo King Yau, Director, which such target company indirectly holds the entire shareholding interest in
China Pacific and 68% shareholding interest in San Tai, China Pacific and San Tai became connected
persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As a result, the following tenancy
agreements entered into between the Group and San Tai and China Pacific respectively prior to them
becoming connected persons of the Company constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company:

(@) a tenancy agreement dated 12th July, 2016 (“Tenancy Agreement |”, as supplemented by a side
letter dated 26th August, 2016) entered into between San Pack as the landlord and San Tai as
the tenant in relation to the leasing of certain industrial premises and parking spaces at Allied
Cargo Centre for a term of 3 years from Tst July, 2016 to 30th June, 2019 (both days inclusive) at
a monthly rental of HK$1,156,960 (in respect of the industrial premises, with a rent-free period
on the 12th, 24th and 36th month) and HK$10,800 (in respect of the parking spaces), inclusive of
management fees but exclusive of rates; and

(b) a tenancy agreement dated 4th November, 2016 (“Tenancy Agreement I1”) entered into between
San Pack as the landlord and China Pacific as the tenant in relation to the leasing of certain
industrial premises at Allied Cargo Centre for a term of 3 years from 1st April, 2016 to 31st March,
2019 (both days inclusive) at a monthly rental of HK$105,144 (inclusive of management fees but
exclusive of rates).

Allied Cargo Centre is held by San Pack for property investment purposes. The relevant rents were
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between San Pack and San Tai/China Pacific with reference
to the prevailing market conditions and rental levels of similar properties in the vicinity of the leased
premises.

Moreover, on 27th March, 2017, a logistics and warehouse services agreement (“Services Agreement”)
was entered into between San Pack as the client and San Tai as the service provider, pursuant to which
San Tai agreed to provide logistics and warehouse services to San Pack for a term of 27 months from
1st April, 2017 to 30th June, 2019 (both days inclusive) at a service fee of HK$36,000 per month,
which has been determined with reference to the prevailing market conditions and costs of providing
such services.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

The annual caps for the transactions under the Tenancy Agreement |, Tenancy Agreement Il and
Services Agreement for each of the three financial years ending 31st December, 2019 were set out
below. The aggregate amount of rental and service fee for the year ended 31st December, 2017 was
HK$14,441,888.

Annual cap for Annual cap for Annual cap for

the year ended the year ending the year ending

31st December, 2017 31st December, 2018 31st December, 2019

HK$ HK$ HK$

Tenancy Agreement | 12,856,160 12,856,160 6,428,080
Tenancy Agreement Il 1,261,728 1,261,728 315,432
Services Agreement 324,000 432,000 216,000
Total 14,441,888 14,549,888 6,959,512

Since China Pacific and San Tai became connected persons of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement I, Tenancy Agreement Il and Services Agreement
(collectively “Continuing Connected Transactions”) constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but are exempt from the independent shareholders” approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed the Continuing Connected
Transactions and have confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform

a review in respect of the above Continuing Connected Transactions and the auditor has reported its
conclusion to the Board, confirming the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments and of the five highest paid individuals
in the Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Executive Committee on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the total turnover for the year. Also, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers taken together were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued shares, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Save for the Company’s purchases of its own shares on the Stock Exchange as disclosed below, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31st December, 2017.

Number of Purchase consideration Aggregate

shares per share consideration paid

Month repurchased Highest Lowest  (before expenses)
HK$ HK$ HK$

March 20,000 50.00 50.00 1,000,000
April 62,000 53.00 50.00 3,240,000
June 134,000 49.00 47.75 6,453,200
July 850,000 49.00 49.00 41,650,000
1,066,000 52,343,200
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$23.3 million during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 19 to 32.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2018
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allied
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 117 to 296, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31st December, 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st December, 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

BREZER

BRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMEERRELSEE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEZHE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole and level of judgment in determining their
respective fair values.

Approximately 94% of the investment properties
represent residential properties, car parking spaces,
commercial properties and a godown located in Hong
Kong. The carrying amount of investment properties
was HK$9,048.1 million as at 31st December, 2017
with a resulting change in fair value of HK$979.1
million recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties are held
at fair value based on valuations performed by
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group (the “Valuers”).

Details of the valuation methodology and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements. The
valuations are dependent on certain key inputs that
involve management judgment, including term
yield, reversionary yield and reversionary rental
for investment properties. A table showing the
relationship of significant unobservable inputs to fair
value is also disclosed in this note.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers and an understanding of
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgment on key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
source data used in the valuations by management
and the Valuers by comparing them, on a sample
basis to publicly available information of similar
comparable properties; and

Re-performing a sensitivity analysis on the key
inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on
the fair values.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

BRELER

RRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMEERRERSEE

Impairment assessments of interests in associates

R D7) 2 sk 2 R ERE

We have identified the impairment assessments of
interests in associates as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and level of judgment
(as stated in note 4) in determining the estimated
recoverable amount of the relevant interests in the
associates.

As at 31st December, 2017, the management has
conducted an impairment assessment to ensure that
the carrying amount of the interests in Tian An China
Investments Company Limited (“TACI”) and Sun
Hung Kai Financial Group Limited (“SHKFGL”) are
lower than their respective estimated recoverable
amounts. The estimated recoverable amounts of TACI
and SHKFGL have been determined with reference to
their value in use and fair values less costs of disposal
respectively, which are inherently subjective being
dependent on the inputs that require management
judgment and assumptions about the discounted
future cash flows of the respective associates and the
related discount rates.

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amounts of TACI and
SHKFGL are HK$10,756.7 million and HK$1,084.0
million respectively. The management has concluded
that there is no impairment in respect of the Group's
interest in TACI as its value in use is higher than
its carrying amount. An impairment allowance of
HK$572.6 million is recognised for the Group’s
interest in SHKFGL as the carrying amount is higher
than its fair value less cost of disposal.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessments
of interest in associates included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the process and
testing the internal controls over the annual
impairment assessment including the Group’s
assessment of indicators of impairment, preparation
of the cash flow forecasts, setting of reasonable and
supportable assumptions and inputs to the models
used to estimate the recoverable amount;

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the models used, with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialist, where
appropriate;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used to determine the cash flow
forecasts with reference to historical performance,
economic and industry indicators, publicly available
information and the Group’s strategic plans;

e  Checking the arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
of discounted future cash flows prepared by the
respective management; and

e Re-performing the underlying calculations used in
the Group’s assessment and performing sensitivity
testing of the inputs used.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

HARELER

BRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMEERRELSEE

Valuation of loans and advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans

MAMBEFERRBN  RBERURBHER 2 AE

We identified the impairment of loans and advances
to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and
term loans as a key audit matter due to application
of significant judgment and use of subjective
assumptions by management.

As shown in notes 26, 27 and 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has loans and
advances to consumer finance customers of
HK$9,163.6 million, after recognising an impairment
allowance of HK$663.3 million, mortgage loans of
HK$2,120.4 million, after recognising an impairment
allowance of HK$5.0 million and term loans of
HK$3,458.3 million after recognising an impairment
allowance of HK$87.3 million as at 31st December,
2017.

Loans and advances to consumer finance customers
and mortgage loans, which are individually
not significant and assessed not to be impaired
individually, are assessed for impairment collectively.
The collective impairment allowance for loans
and advances to consumer finance customers and
mortgage loans were based on an evaluation of their
collectability with reference to an ageing analysis of
accounts and management judgment.

E A ERDAL N 2 5 HEK - S B G R
S Al 5 — o S A S I T o S 9 A L
AR I 7 % E RS (] -

A4 A RS IR M 5E26 ~ 27 R30FT R > R FE
—tE+A=+—H > BEEMNAARBEES &
I BRGR A AR I (93 663 .3 H B i 012 49,1636
HOEHE T RS RS TE R EIB M S.0 T BT
1% £52,120.4 H BT > 1A B8 3K A e 5 U (B 4 A
87.3'A M o1& £53,458.3 H BT o

FAN B 5 75 5 50 B g I 4% oy 45 K (AR 9l Jo A E R
L EAG 2 A S A8 Al W) T 4 55k MR A AT S (E T
fiti o FANBAHS % 5 R0 M B I 3% 4 B R 2 B B
(BT A8 T AR P i [ P 7 i 255 MR 20 AT B A7 2 4
B -

Our procedures in relation to the collective impairment
of loans and advances to consumer finance customers
and mortgage loans included:

Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the valuation methodology and assumptions
used by management, as well as checking the
reasonableness of inputs applied in determining and
calculating the collective impairment allowance
with reference to the underlying loan data and past
collection statistics of respective loan portfolios; and

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the collective
impairment based on the input data.

EAE A BRI B 5 P B R BGR RAR B B e
BUE P AT 2 R PP A

TR T A EE R BT A A Ik ARG M 2
2 R B RO B A B B AL Y A A WA R T
188 E I w08 4 A UL ARL T A IR T R 1) s A B0 1) 5 B
s K

R A AR Bl (R A TR 1



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

BREZER

RRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMEERRELRSEE

Valuation of loans and advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans (Cont’d)

IAMBEFERRBR  RBERURBHER 2 HE ()

Term loans are assessed for impairment individually.
The consideration for an impairment allowance
for term loans is done on an individual basis and
involves significant management judgment including
the determination of present value of estimated
future cash flows taking into account the borrower’s
financial situation and the net realisable value of the
underlying collateral or guarantees received.

The basis of determining the impairment allowances
is disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A B AR | B SR SAE - % A R E
SR T 5 18 | FEVEAEA T HL 0 R P EOR K > LA
FliFT R A B S B BLE A RE 5 25 B s A BB
DU L% C WSCHORR B R (i B PR 2 v 5 B

iR R Y (498 ) RE VAR B A o 1 BB TR M 4

Our procedures in relation to the individual impairment
of term loans included:

Obtaining an understanding from management of
the established policies and procedures on credit
risk approval and monitoring;

On a sample basis, evaluating management’s
assessment of the credit quality of the borrowers
by examining the credit files, including overdue
records, the borrowers’ financial information
and other relevant information, and checking the
existence and recoverable amount of the collateral
and the charge over the collateral, as applicable;
and

For those term loans with impairment indicators,
checking on a sample basis management’s
computations of the recoverable amounts and the
impairment allowance.

S5 A B A R MR I BT A T 2 A LA

it
#r

MR T A 15 B R I B P 2 EAF AR B
R

DA BR 27 S B > i A B0 £ B SO (R AR aan e ok
N B 5 R b AR B DR ) A A8 B ) i
ANMEEE R ARG - Sl A R i B A7 A1 DL &
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AT AE WA P 500 A B BESKIM & > DASAR 2 2Lt
v 7 B S T o [ < A TR A A PO A B o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

BHREELER

BRELEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMEERRERSEE

Valuation of financial instruments classified as level 3 under fair value hierarchy

PERPNVEESRE=ZLAZERIAZMAE

We identified the valuation of financial instruments
classified as level 3 under fair value hierarchy (“Level
3 financial instruments”) as a key audit matter due
to the degree of complexity involved in valuing the
instruments and the significance of the judgments and
estimates made by management. In particular, the
determination of unobservable inputs is considerably
more subjective given the lack of availability of
market-based data.

E AR BUR AT EEE R = M TR (M5
=R TR ) 2 A5 ER — E A % IH Y f R
%5 T RAEAT fh(E 9 b () #E MR 2 L% 8 AL T A1 ) 22
RFVE P ftint o JLHIE > didsk DTG BdE » REAR
AT 3B A AR T A R B o

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial
instruments classified as level 3 under fair value
hierarchy included:

Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
methodology and the processes performed by the
management with respect to the valuation of Level 3
financial instruments;

For a sample of financial instruments, performing
the following procedures, with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialist, as appropriate:

— Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology and valuation technique used by
management for Level 3 financial instruments;

— Assessing the reasonableness and relevance
of key assumptions and inputs based on our
industry knowledge;

FHEMA B AT EESREE =R &M TR 4
{EFTHAT Z R P L4

AR A P LA = AR e R 2 A (T HUAT 2 A (E
TitE K

MM TR S » 155 % 2 RS a5 1 B

AT R (RS UL E)

— PR AR = A T L T R 0 7 K
FEAE T R R 1
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) HREREEE)

Key audit matter

BHRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNMEERRERSE

Valuation of financial instruments classified as level 3 under fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

PERBAFPEESRE=RZeRMTAZGEE)

At 31st December, 2017, HK$6,302.2 million of the
Group'’s total financial assets (including available-
for-sale financial assets of HK$41.4 million and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$6,260.8 million) and HK$8.8 million of
the Group’s total financial liabilities carried at fair
value were classified as level 3 under fair value
hierarchy. These include unlisted put right for shares
in an associate — SHKFGL, unlisted overseas equity
securities with a put right for shares and unlisted
investment funds with carrying amount at 31st
December, 2017 of HK$1,053.0 million, HK$811.5
million and HK$4,302.2 respectively. Further details
of the valuation technique and unobservable inputs
of material Level 3 financial instruments are disclosed
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

MRoEz—tHE+"HAH=+—H > HEBWHEESH
G (G E S RE A4 4 F Bl T LB IRE
T 2 N P (B i PR 2 4 Al & 7EE 6,260.8 1 1 HE T
6,302.2 H B TC > K& BB TE(E S BRI 4
SRl B ES.8 H B s L 8IS AN TS =4
HATEIE LT 2 — S A7) s 5= 4 m e ) i
I eB T HE ~ S ROy sR T E 2 JE L T W A AR B R e
FLEHmEERESE AR _F—LFE T _A=1—H
Z R (4 F £51,053.0 F E5HE G ~ 811.5H Mt K&
4,302.2 F & #s 0 o B S AR AR T B 2 AR (E Bl
iﬁé;&ﬁ%ﬂ%@ﬁﬁ)\ﬁ%z%E*ﬁ%i‘f%f&%ﬁ%%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ
5125 o

In respect of unlisted put right for shares in an
associate and unlisted overseas equity securities
with a put right for shares, in addition to the above
procedures, testing the mathematical accuracy of
the valuation model, with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialist; and

In respect of the unlisted overseas investment funds,
checking the net asset value against the financial
information provided by fund managers of fund
administrators, as appropriate.

W FE T 22— [ w0 ik e A B R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Sze Ching Yiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26th March, 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

Revenue
Other income

Total income

Cost of sales and other direct costs
Brokerage and commission expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Changes in values of properties

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities
Net exchange (loss) gain

Bad and doubtful debts

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F TN
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
i BEBTT A&
A 5&6 4,540.7 4,101.9
HAob i A 140.6 57.9
LA 4,681.3 4,159.8
BH B AR K LA 42 A (365.6) (335.3)
Ba A2 (46.7) (51.0)
B T T 3 A (145.6) (120.3)
1TECE H (1,476.8) (1,349.6)
Y)EE (AR ) 7 978.3 574.1
SRV EE I BRI R 1 A 8 1,469.2 713.7
[ifE 5, (5480 Wi i V3 4E (102.4) 8.1
SRR 9 (388.1) (893.6)
HAth #2452 F (287.5) (271.0)
Pl AR 12 (369.8) (283.6)
JEAG Bk A R 24 1,276.3 2,900.2
FEAG 68N R e 4 659.4 193.9
o ot T ¥ ) 13 5,882.0 5,245.4
FiJH 14 (331.2) (164.2)
AAE B Y65 ) 5,550.8 5,081.2
JREAG T
AN R 3,235.9 3,263.2
IE P IEHE 72 2,314.9 1,818.0
5,550.8 5,081.2
BT HIT
HK$ HKS$
BRER 15
HA 18.35 18.34
i 18.35 18.34
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expenses):

Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
Share of other comprehensive income
(expenses) of associates
Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets
— Net fair value changes during the year
— Reclassification adjustment to

profit or loss on disposal
— Reclassification adjustment to
profit or loss on impairment

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment to profit or
loss on disposal/liquidation of
subsidiaries

Share of other comprehensive income
(expenses) of associates

Share of other comprehensive income
(expenses) of joint ventures

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT H H#IT
A 5 ¥ | 5,550.8 5,081.2
Hofth ATy U4 (22 ) -
A A E IR e
ZIEH -
JREAG g i) At 4 T A 25
(ZH) 337.3 (422.6)
AL A48 N & HoA 4 T
Wi 4 0.2 0.4
337.5 (422.2)
HE ] FEHE R M E 1B a2
EH :
AT H B 4 A
— AR TE (E A B VAR (136.7) (25.4)
— At S B S o A
SRR 5.2 1.6
— 7 AL PR T A0 S
EEEiEErl 176.2 -
44.7 (23.8)
Y/ TS IRIA T AR 2
ifE b0, 2= %A 465.6 (491.7)
S NG
T 8 e B 0
R EE IR - (0.1)
JREAL B2 ) HL A 4 T Wi 2
(ZH) 70.8 (106.7)
JEAL A48 N ) HoA 4 i i g
() 2.3 (4.2)
583.4 (626.5)
AR A A RS () o
EHIBRBLIA 920.9 (1,048.7)
ASAE A TH WA 6 AR 6,471.7 4,032.5
JEAL T
VNN 3 3,700.8 2,719.4
FEFE B 4= 2,770.9 1,313.1
6,471.7 4,032.5




at 31st December, 2017

Non-current assets
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial assets

Amounts due from associates

Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers due after one year

Mortgage loans

Deposits for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Properties held for sale and
other inventories

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Prepaid land lease payments
Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers due within one year

Mortgage loans
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from brokers

Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets

Tax recoverable

Short-term pledged bank deposit

Bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

R_F—tEFE+_A=1—H

FERBEE

&Yk

LE WY G

TEAH S

P R

T

=N P

NEB AT R

A R

L= /NI 4
—AEBFIHZ FAN
AR 5 Bk BBk
FE3E B

W HEMIZE - R K
R 4
TRIERL A&

A TE R R N T B AE
i P 2 4 S

& 5 J HoAt B i 5k 0E

REBEE

15 th &3 K HoAth
ZEa
AR f AR AR NP (E
S B 2 4l
T
—ERNEIHZFAN

A % BB B BGR
AR K

5 5 B HAt R R IE
REACRK
L NIV
BENTFREK
]t e

AT Ui [ A JE

JE A SRATHE A 3K
ATHFK

B R e%EY

Notes

W &E

17
18
19
20
21
23
24
25
31

26

27

28

25
30

29

25
19

26
27
30

31
31
25

32
32

2017 2016
—E—tfF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEWHIT
9,048.1 7,793.7
1,120.2 1,077.9
4.4 4.2
134.1 134.1
21.9 22.7
13,291.1 11,685.8
3,163.7 2,422.1
621.0 631.6
284.8 257.4
2,322.8 2,190.8
1,243.1 330.4
- 44.8
649.6 652.5
5,067.2 3,650.6
505.8 507.3
37,477.8 31,405.9
0.2 44 .4
7,081.5 3,790.2
0.1 0.1
6,840.8 5,469.5
877.3 282.7
3,211.7 2,911.3
728.7 1,059.9
233.8 121.0
9.1 11.1

86.6 -

5.9 1.9

1.2 —
787.7 1,257.7
3,330.3 6,296.1
23,194.9 21,245.9
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at 31st December, 2017

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities for repurchase
agreements

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings due
within one year

Notes issued

Provisions

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

REBEE

B’ 5y K HAtE A 2R0A
(o] S e T 2 <z
B

2R AR A IR N B (E
B L2 4 il R

VNG NS E e

RAEE Al HRIA

A BLIE

—AEN B2 SR AT K
HAt &

BT RE

i fh

REEEFE

REERRBAEE

R_F—tLFE+_A=1—H

2017 2016

—E—tfF TN

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
iR BHEBT HEHIT
33 463.4 376.9
34 1,071.0 -
25 166.0 125.8
7.4 7.3

0.1 0.1

161.0 148.6

38 2,784.9 2,749.7
39 1,063.8 2,261.6
40 71.1 56.4
5,788.7 5,726.4

17,406.2 15,519.5

54,884.0 46,925.4




at 31st December, 2017

Capital and reserves RA R

Share capital JBeAs

Reserves Tl s

Equity attributable to owners RRBRREG
of the Company R

Shares held for employee F AR B IR AT T
ownership scheme R ety

Employee share-based PAIBcAR SAY 22 1 M <
compensation reserve fié i

Share of net assets of subsidiaries JREAL Y g 2 ) 1

Non-controlling interests FiEZRER

Total equity ERERE

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Bank and other borrowings due — RN T K
after one year HAbfE £

Notes issued #1754

Deferred tax liabilities R AL TE 1 5

Provisions i

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 296
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26th March, 2018, and are signed on its behalf by:

Arthur George Dew
NEESE
DIRECTOR
HE

R_F—tEFE+_A=1—H

2017 2016

—E—tfF TN

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
oS BHEBT HEWHIT
35 2,221.7 2,221.7
37 22,847.7 19,536.6
25,069.4 21,758.3

(7.6) (9.1)

5.1 4.8

21,193.6 19,357.6

21,191.1 19,353.3

46,260.5 41,111.6

38 1,740.4 2,862.6
39 6,694.4 2,756.2
28 185.4 192.1
40 3.3 2.9
8,623.5 5,813.8

54,884.0 46,925.4

BI7HEF 296 H Z 4 M AR ER G
A F— = H N B RIRET) S
iR A AR

Edwin Lo King Yau
DIRECTOR
HE
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 B2 Xt +A=+—HILFEE
2017 2016
ZB—tF TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET A BT
Operating activities REXK
Profit for the year ARAF: B i 5,550.8 5,081.2
Adjustments for: PRIEH
Bad and doubtful debts SRIEIE 388.1 893.6
Finance costs A 369.8 283.6
Taxation BLIH 331.2 164.2
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ESMEE L
financial assets B 176.2 -
Net exchange loss (gain) 5t s 4 (fic i) A 104.6 (7.9)
Depreciation e 80.9 79.4
Expenses recognised for employee ownership  #tHTHE A R/ A
scheme of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (FHrieAE |) 2 18 B Mk iy
(“SHK”) At B R 2 22 6.4 2.8
Amortisation of intangible assets LA 1.8 1.5
Net loss on disposal/write-off of property, &SI - R R
plant and equipment B{ipd 2t 1.5 1.1
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) for TR (458 10] ) I FE W 2E 2
hotel property Al 0.8 6.1)
Loss on redemption of notes issued OISR gt ¥ 7 0.8 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments A EHES 0.1 0.2
Net fair value gain on financial SREE AR
assets and liabilities OB (R T (1,333.3) (789.4)
Share of results of associates 3 NEE S (1,276.3) (2,900.2)
Net increase in fair value of investment BREME LN TEME
properties B (979.1) (568.0)
Share of results of joint ventures R = NEIE (659.4) (193.9)
Net impairment loss (reversed) recognised (H[0]) R I B A Rl 2
on interests in associates Wi WA 1R A (103.5) [E285
Net realised gain on disposal of HETHRNESMEEL
available-for-sale financial assets C 2B (0.3) (1.1
Net realised loss on disposal of HESEAT D
joint ventures e 1R A - 14.1
Impairment loss on amounts due from B R R
joint ventures W EE 1R - 1.0
Net realised gain on disposal of HEWE AR Z
subsidiaries By Silieat il - (9.7)
Net realised gain on disposal of HE—HBE AR
an associate C & B4 B - (3.9)
Operating cash flows before movements ARFHEE B S B 2
in working capital WEEBEH SR 2,661.1 2,185.0
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

Net changes in financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Increase in loans and advances to consumer
finance customers and mortgage loans
(Increase) decrease in amounts due
from associates
(Increase) decrease in trade and
other receivables
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from brokers
Decrease (increase) in other inventories
Increase in financial liabilities for
repurchase agreements
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Cash (used in) from operations
Taxation paid
Interest paid

Net cash (used in) from operating
activities

Investing activities

Net fixed deposits with banks withdrawn

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Proceeds on disposal of long-term financial
assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Amounts repaid by associates

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of long-term financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Additions to investment properties

Capital injection to associates

Amounts advanced to associates

Capital injection to a joint venture

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of associates

Amounts advanced to joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds on disposal of associates

Proceeds on disposal of joint ventures

Dividends received from joint ventures

Amounts repaid by joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Payment of deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
BEEREERALA

BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—t& RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAT H BT
BRI R A T EEREE

GG E R ERA R

5 Y VR AR (2,820.6) 127.5
INGUE Y-SRk ¢ 0 & 50

T 48 B (3,071.2) (460.1)
Wi 08 ) Sk (38 m)

B (74.7) 103.6
5 B HAh i 2 (388 m)

%A (532.2) 478.2
AL (B ) 331.2 (913.3)
HbrE & () 0.1 0.1)
] ok 2 2 EfE

Hm 1,071.0 -
Z 5y B HA A R (D) 98.9 (1.0)
AR 1.7 21.1
(TR TEAZ B4 (2,324.7) 1,540.9
EAIBIH (294.9) (330.0)
EfIALE (311.9) (234.7)
LR (TR TEEZ

BEFHE (2,931.5) 976.2
RE£K
TR T E IR T AR 539.9 154.2
H BN FZ R 264.1 139.4
B AT e A

REE ¢ 179.6 7.8
HERE A BRI IR

AN TEEERZ R

S RE R TS EOR 90.2 90.2
/NI 5 44.0 298.7
HEYIZE -~ FE K

S A 0.3 0.3
1A FE 52 By IR R IR AT

EEEE RIS Mg E (603.4) (253.3)
i AT R 4 B (398.9) (114.1)
TEREYE (207.2) (1.2)
s A RS (128.0) (180.8)
PR T A W (81.0) (489.8)
m—HEEAFRIEE (69.7) (23.4)
REAWI ~ W7 B (55.7) 47.1)
W b A ) 9.9) (546.3)
AT HE AT 0.2) (45.0)
BB R T AR 3UR - 104.1
B I A R TS 30 - 57.9
& AN A TR E0R - 35.1
KEAEAFRZIE - 1.8
BB TR - 0.3
Wi i BRI /A ) - (45.5)
W EYIZE ~ BR Rk dts

BT - (44.8)
JE AT - (6.5)
REEKFMAZHSFHE (435.9) (898.0)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of notes

New bank and other borrrowings raised

Disposal of notes held by subsidiaries
of the Company

Amounts advanced from associates

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Repayment of notes

Dividends by subsidiaries to
non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to equity shareholders

Amounts paid for shares repurchased and
cancelled by subsidiaries

Repayment of capital contributions by
non-controlling interests

Redemption of notes

Repurchase of notes issued

Amounts paid for shares repurchased and
cancelled by the Company

Purchase of shares for employee
ownership scheme of SHK

Proceeds from issue of shares of a subsidiary

Amounts advanced from joint ventures

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

MEXK

R ER PR

BRI ERAT R

HERLFME A AR
2Rk

T o wl B

TR RAT B A

RS

W 2 ] 1 42
A IR A IRLS.

BT HE AR BRI B

W 2~ i [ 2 RS A A 2
BT

R R a2
&

R

IR E BT = 4%

A w ] R R A 2
B

BT B IR BEA
af FICE A £

AT IR 2w I B A5 0R

BER TR

MEXBHE (R 2RERE
RERREEEWADFE
EX@HsTE

REQZHEERRE
@Y

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year RERZEERELZEY

2017 2016

—E—+tfF ZE—RE

Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
Bk BHEBT A &SI
4,694.6 1,823.7

1,695.5 1,445.4

334.9 18.5

0.1 0.1
(2,800.6) (2,760.4)

(2,300.8) -
(591.2) (423.9)
(353.5) (311.9)
(196.2) (179.2)

(66.9) -

(60.5) -
(37.7) (121.1)
(52.5) (57.3)
(4.8) (1.4)

- 0.1

- 0.1
260.4 (567.3)
(3,107.0) (489.1)
141.2 (140.8)

6,296.1 6,926.0

32 3,330.3 6,296.1




for the year ended 31st December, 2017

1.

GENERAL

Allied Group Limited (“Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate controlling party of the Company
is the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust. The address of the
principal place of business of the trustees of Lee and Lee
Trust is 24/F, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company is 22/F,
Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture are set out in notes 52, 53 and 54 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to As part of the Annual
HKFRS 12 Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

1.

—RER

A EEARAR ([ARNH ) B—HER
AR RIAT B ([ & ) sE o 2 A A
FROAT] > HBAEF s B 658 2 i A FRA
A (TBEse i )) BT o AR 7 2 e A4 il
77 FiLee and Lee TrustZ Z#E N > Lee and
Lee TrustZ Z it N2 E 54 20 BL 2> Hohk
BE S EAT S L1385 B A S K
248t o AN G M R i K R S Hb
ik A 7 s AT 4 T3 138 5 A RE
K224 -

Ay 7] B M A R ([ A4 ) 2 47
BRI TR - BALN T 2 DIhE
MR

o
%

A7) oy — PRI E N 7 R AR A S5
HRPs > HEZMEAF - BrE A r ks
BT 2 EEEBE B 7 IR M EES2 -
5354 °

AR RAMET N E R B RERE
AT &BM B HREZER D)

W R NN BRI RS ERE
e

AR AL 6K T T it
U523 6 (s 24 ) LI 2 s
B R T

i et PesE TH
H7RBATA
it et 39 A A28 B fls 5 T B AE
1258 T A BUHEE
FBIAB AR R A B R A
29T A —F-NEEZF
—NERBZEEY
2~
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Cont’d)

Except as described below, the application of the above
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 43. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 43, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods
of computation have been followed in these consolidated
financial statements as were applied in the preparation of
the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2016.

wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

Ze

RAMTREETNEBUBRESE
AT ERMEREZER ) (F])

RAFERFERNE BB RELEUE
HENE))

RN SCRR AL ob > AR BEER A L AlHr e T
Je AEAGE T 1A 75 s B 65 i o Y R S A SR [ A
A I R ST R AR B BB R B BOIRIL B, B
% S5 A TV S R BT ) 4 R R

2

BB R 7 JE I 7T Wk B
AR BN AE L W % 5 80T - %%
B AT R AE T B0 % R R B R ) 2
fili B S BT EE AR 9 R (AR ) > LBl
LBl a5 ®) o BuAh o %5 e EE N
B i B O A8 (SRR B B i A% ) wh A
B SEB  BL e R BRT IR BRI
PR RUEE ) o

JEHGR > BRTHUE BER THIATA « ()R H
Rl B < B ) 5 (i) B U B
I o 2~ ) LA S5 42 U RE ) S ) S (i)
HIMERERSA BN YRR 5 (iv) - FHEERE)
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Bl e -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40
Amendments to

HKFRSs

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments!
Leases?

Insurance Contracts?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Considerations'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts!

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle?

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

RAFITREETNEBUBRESE
AT ERMEREZER ) (F])

e
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements
for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

— all recognised financial assets that are within the

scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt instruments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

- with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities

designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

for non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition, the
carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities
will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows and discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
Currently, the Group revises the effective interest rates
for non-substantial modification of financial liabilities
with no gain/loss being recognised in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31st December, 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following potential
impact on initial application of HKFRS 9.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(@) Classification and measurement
Based on assessment of the Group, the financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) will continue
with their respective classification and measurements
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9. With respect to
the Group’s financial assets currently classified as
“available-for-sale financial assets”, the Group will
designate an amount of HK$666.2 million as FVTOCI.
The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9
requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of
that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in
other comprehensive income (without reclassification
to profit or loss). The Group currently has an
insignificant amount of financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement may not
have material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements upon the application of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, it will result in an increase
in the amount of impairment and earlier recognition
of credit losses. Such further impairment recognised
under expected credit loss model, mainly attributable
to provision on loans and advances to consumer
finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans,
would reduce the opening accumulated profits,
attributable to owners of the Company and non-
controlling interests and increase the deferred tax
assets at 1st January, 2018.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective. The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

—  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

—  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

—  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

— Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

—  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company do not expect that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a significant impact,
when applied, on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 — Leases(Cont’d)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$318.5
million as disclosed in note 45(a). A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property, supported by observable evidence
that a change in use has occurred. The amendments
further clarify that situations other than the ones listed in
HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and that a change
in use is possible for properties under construction. For
example, change in use for transfer from properties under
development for sale in the ordinary course of business to
investment properties could be evidenced by inception of

an operating lease to another party.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments will result in early
recognition of such transfers on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in future periods should there be a

change in use of any of its properties.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the significant accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from input other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

— Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include input for the
assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Profit or
loss and each items of other comprehensive income are
attributable to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interest having a debit balance.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components
of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another Standard.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS
39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an investment in which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to bring the accounting policies of associates and joint
ventures in conformity with the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate or joint venture.

Where the Group's interest in associate increases, whether
directly or indirectly, the impact of the change should be
accounted for as an incremental purchase of the associate
and recognised at cost. When the Group’s interest in an
associate increase due to a decrease in the investee’s issued
shares, the difference between the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities
before and after the change, is recognised directly in

equity.

When the Group transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant associate or joint venture.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an
associate or a joint venture for which the agreement
date is before 1st January, 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant subsidiary, associate or joint venture at the date of
acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
after 1st January, 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1st January, 2005 onwards, and such
goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January,
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is on or after 1st January,
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.

Rental income from properties under operating leases,
including rentals invoiced in advance, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Income from the provision of services, including elderly
care services, is recognised upon the provision of the
relevant services or on a time apportionment basis over the
terms of the service contracts.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services
are provided.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income from financial assets is recognised on
a time apportionment basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
owners’ right to receive payment has been established.

Income from rendering financial guarantee services is
recognised over the contractual period on a straight-line
basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Croup as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building elements,
the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold
land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity
are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each
entity are expressed in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in equity.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve). Such translation differences are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable asset
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised on a time
apportionment basis, taking into account the principal and
the effective interest rates. They are charged to profit or
loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

The contributions payable to the Group’s retirement
benefit schemes and the mandatory provident fund scheme
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contribution.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based
on approved formulas that take into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

For shares of SHK (“Awarded Shares”) granted under the
employee ownership scheme of SHK, the fair value of the
employee services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of Awarded Shares granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee share-based compensation reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of Awarded Shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax law) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Transfers to, or from, investment property are made in the
following circumstances:

— commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property;

— end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property; and

— commencement of an operating lease to another
party, for a transfer from inventories to investment
properties.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property or inventories, the property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of changes in use.

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property, the entity shall treat any difference at that date
between the carrying amount of the property and its fair
value in the same way as a revaluation surplus. The excess
of the fair value of the property at the date of transfer over
the carrying amount of the property is credited to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged to consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The excess of the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer over the fair value of the
property is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previously revaluation of
the same asset. On subsequent disposal of the investment
property, the revaluation surplus included in equity may
be transferred to accumulated profits. The transfer from
revaluation surplus to accumulated profits is not made
through profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

For a transfer from inventories to investment property that
will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their estimated residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

shorter of the estimated useful life and
the remaining lease term of land

Hotel property

Leasehold land shorter of the estimated useful life and

and buildings the remaining lease term of land
Leasehold 20%
improvements

Furniture, fixtures  10% to 50%
and equipment
Motor vehicles

and vessels

162/3% to 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the nature of the lessee’s property interest
change from investment property to property, plant and
equipment, the lessee shall continue to account for the
lease as a finance lease.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front prepayments made for the leasehold land and
land use rights that are classified as operating leases are
amortised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in profit
or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. Such intangible assets
are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Intangible assets acquired separately

(i)  Club memberships
They comprise the right to use the facilities of various
clubs with the management considering that the club
memberships do not have a finite useful life.

(i) Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
using the straight-line method.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Useful lives are also examined on an annual
basis and adjustments where applicable are made on a
prospective basis. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and are tested for impairment annually
by comparing their recoverable amount with their carrying
amount.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) that have indefinite
useful lives are not subject to amortisation, and are
tested at least annually for impairment and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) if
an impairment test cannot be performed for an individual
asset. An impairment loss is recognised immediately as an
expense. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash —
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial assets is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in

profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments or
loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of
financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from brokers, amounts due from associates,
amounts due from joint ventures, short-term pledged
bank deposit, bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
loans and advances to consumer finance customers and
mortgage loans) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets other than those at FVTPL is
impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as AFS,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
securities below their cost is considered in determining
whether the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss) is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on
equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

—  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

Each receivable that is individually significant is reviewed
for indication of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Loans and receivables that are individually not
significant and are assessed not to be impaired individually
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period on a
collective portfolio basis.

Individual impairment allowance applies to term loans
which are individually significant or have objective
evidence of impairment. In assessing the individual
impairment, management estimates the present value of
future cash flows which are expected to be received, taking
into account the borrower’s financial situation and the net
realisable value of the underlying collateral or guarantees
in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on
its merits and the impairment allowance is measured as
the difference between the loan’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s original effective interest rate.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Collective impairment allowances cover credit
losses inherent in portfolios of loans receivable and
other accounts with similar economic and credit risk
characteristics where objective evidence for individual
impaired items cannot be identified. In assessing the
collective impairment, management makes assumptions
both to define the way the Group assesses inherent losses
and to determine the required input parameters, based
on historical loss experience and current economic
conditions. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont'd)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee issued for rendering financial
guarantee service is initially measured at fair value as
represented by the consideration received from the
specified customers and the consideration received is
recognised as revenue on straight-line basis over the
guarantee period. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee at the higher of: (i)
the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policy.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities for repurchase agreements

Financial liabilities for repurchase agreements continue
to be recognised, which do not result in derecognition of
the financial assets, and are recorded as “financial assets
at FVTPL”. Financial assets sold subject to agreements
with a commitment to repurchase at a specific future
date are not derecognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The proceeds from selling such
assets are presented as “financial liabilities for repurchase
agreements” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Financial liabilities for repurchase agreements
are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, notes issued, trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates and amounts due to joint
ventures, which are recognised initially at fair value,
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis (other than those
financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the
interest expense is included in net gains or losses.)

Fair value measurement principles

Fair values of quoted investments are based on quoted
prices. For unlisted securities or financial assets without
an active market, the Group establishes the fair value by
using appropriate valuation techniques including the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
investments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

3.

EESBER ()

SRMIA(E)

ERR (5 TR (%)

[ J 1 kT < < A 5 £

[e] 5 f ok I <l R G AR A T DUTERE
HA G ESON R e Mg E - Wik 5
A 18 i AR % A T (B (ELIE P 2 g A E 151
AR o ARABMTA AR RE SR A H T (B R Y
bk ) 5 9 < V7 AN 8 AR S A S IR L
FNPGHAERE o 88 A B B 1 Pr it sk A
T i BB IR DL R A S AR B i ok T 2
EMAMR] o B T 2 &M AamEy
N B R B OHAR (B R A S i 4%
RSN AT o

A < 4 15
HAL G R B R A P EERRZ

AT LA - CRITER - " MH
L REAT BRI~ KIS A MR BB
AR > HLAR PR B R AL 5 1 i R A

FH -

fss LA

Mg T HLIRAEE IR SRR H T 15 A 6%
R EE PR L RIBRHESE AT S 4 o
AN VAT 2 M A LA ST S KT 8
HHEAT A TSR -

B ) A > ) g TR B HE 4 e R AT
B o FAREME - B9 - AT SGEEA L R
it T LRSI 08 7 1 i e R s

HBFLEE B

B EAE w5 4 A e A X2y
TR 7 R R0 1D PR )6 B S 77 3 o BT
RGN 4 B B R TS AT A 4 0 (40
) 5 A0 T OA ] R R T R R R AR B
G S CBLHE Ir S AT B Wi B R S i e B
PRI 1 i A 2 ) B B ~ 52 5 T AR B
il 35 15 B 8 ) 2 ) e R T V(L A
2 o I 5 BH SO B R R R M RERT (RX 5%
PR IR R fh AR AR A T E (B R P 2 &l
%%%ﬂaﬁ¢ﬂﬁﬁi%AW§ﬁ%E
FER) o

LR R IRAY

B BE 2 AP EE SRR IR S ot
JE T I u A O B T 3 2 A T
= o AL A EAG E TR AT
{H > WA IEGE AT L AP35
2% HAWKRBURR 2 %% ~ Bl Blami o
A R IUIHERE (R A

161



162

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL. Generally,
multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument are
treated as a single compound embedded derivative unless
those derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are
readily separable and independent of each other.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of
any reimbursement.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont'd)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes freehold and leasehold
land cost, development cost, borrowing costs and other
direct costs attributable to such properties until the relevant
properties reach a marketable state. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to management estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market conditions, less all
estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing and selling.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short-term time deposits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are set out as
follows.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the
fair value, the valuer has based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgment and is satisfied that the assumptions used in
valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

3.

EESBER ()

BERIREEER)

R B A 9 PR R 1 S (R T Al RE S| A 2 3
£ SRR HARA & 3 A R 3%
M —JH B TEA IR AR 56 1 T e S P 2
FAE AT HERE o SR A BN RIE L S
PETIE > P R R 0 A 5 2 UL ) K975 I D
ek W] SE 5 2 BT 2 MO AN T RS 2
HARK -

HARBEAEHRE > MRS MpHRE
W EE 4R o R IR 2 W] e A T AR
A REEECE TR > A EOR B A R
14 -

FHEMXE

15 B W S A p A B T A B T 2
EH AR o AR KATA RS+
JEA - BERRAA ~ R A ALY
SEREMG Z BHARA > BB SEED ]
P EIRAR o AT SA BT (25 4 PR AR
BATH S A w2 B A Al 158 AL
TS LA B 7 855 488 JB e B 86 W 7 2B 2 JUAR T
fERE °

3
77 L4 AR BT S50 (B 2 TR
BE o BT R A IIHE T2k 5 o

RERAEEEY
i R G EY) 65 F B - AT
o B LU R A K

AT T RERR ZERRR

TR R > WA B H AR B At A 5T B
BRI 3R T AR YA i ) E B RS AF AR
g - AELECT (A B AR LR
SRR AL HH B SR T > JA T SO Pt J% -

REWME 2 A FEEMSS

TR IR > BUE Y 3640 S A (R
JIREAl 9 A PEE SR o A (EL AT PR 2 AT
B (ELIRS T AR IR 60 5 T Al A4l (7 2
AT > A BT R Al L 7 R R L P B B
E A FEAE BT T AR % T3 S R T 35 B

163



164

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT’D)

Recoverable amount of associates

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In determining the recoverable amount of Tian An
China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”), a listed
associate included in note 23 (Note (i)), management
used appropriate assumptions to estimate the value in
use based on shared discounted future cash flows of
the associate. Where those assumptions and/or future
cash flows are different from expected, impairment
may arise.

In determining the recoverable amount of APAC
Resources Limited (“APAC”), a listed associate
included in note 23 (Note (i)), management used the
fair value less costs of disposal based on the market
value of APAC’s interest in its associate plus its other
assets and liabilities, and assessed if any impairment
may arise.

SHK disposed of 70% interest in its wholly-owned
subsidiary Sun Hung Kai Financial Group Limited
(“SHKFGL”) in June 2015 and classified the remaining
30% equity interest as an associate. The Group’s
interest in SHKFGL is tested for impairment whenever
there is an impairment indicator. Determining
whether the interest in the associate is impaired
requires an estimation of the fair value less costs to
sell or value in use on the basis of data available to
the Group. Where recoverable amount is less than
expected, an impairment loss may arise.

HWEF—bE+F A= B IR
At P RERRZE 2 T ERR ()

4.

(i)

(i)

(iii)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT’D)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to
consumer finance customers and mortgage loans

The policy for collective impairment allowances for
loans and advances to consumer finance customers and
mortgage loans of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these loans and advances, including the current
creditworthiness, and the past collection history.

Impairment allowances on term loans

In determining individual impairment allowances, the
Group periodically reviews its term loans to assess whether
objective evidence of impairment exists. In determining
whether impairment allowances should be recorded in the
profit or loss, the management estimates the present value
of future cash flows which are expected to be received,
taking into account the borrower’s financial situation and
the net realisable value of the underlying collaterals or
guarantees in favour of the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

The Group conducts tests for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether the goodwill and the intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the fair value less
costs to sell or value in use on the basis of data available to
the Group. Where future cash flows are less than expected,
an impairment loss may arise.

Fair value of derivative and financial instruments

The Group selects appropriate valuation techniques for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Note
25 provides detailed information about the key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of material
financial instruments.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences requires a process that involves forecasting
future years’ taxable income and assessing the Group’s
ability to utilise tax benefits through future earnings.
Where the actual future profits generated are more or less
than expected, a recognition or reversal of the deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a recognition or reversal
takes place. While the current financial models indicate
that the recognised tax losses and deductible temporary
differences can be utilised in the future, any changes in
assumptions, estimates and tax regulations can affect the
recoverability of this deferred tax asset.

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
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5.

REVENUE 5. WA

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
that are derived from the provision of consumer finance,
property rental, sale of properties, hotel operations and
property management services, provision of consultancy
and other services, interest and dividend income, income

from advisory services, income from term loan financing WA Z 3

and elderly care services. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows:

Interest income on loans and advances FANBAHS B F S8k K

to consumer finance customers R Z A B
Interest income received from banks, A AT - AR
term loans and others HA A I8 2 WA
Property rental, hotel operations and YIZERHE - 5 2E0 I
management services eiiliers
Income from advisory services and others [ ¥l IR %5 & HoAth g A
Elderly care services e 2 s
Dividend income JB B A

During the year, the interest income that was derived

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

AR B SRR A - 2R -
YIS ~ I S L SN BRS ~ R
AR ) K HAR RS ~ AR BB B A -
IR WA ~ A7 0 B il i % e 2 M5 A
AC RN Z IR o DT B A S B 4R 2

2017 2016
—E—+fF ZE N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEWH T
3,074.8 2,961.0
622.5 460.7
491.9 431.8
241.3 186.7

79.4 26.2

30.8 35.5
4,540.7 4,101.9

A 3R AC H R AR R IR A {E (E

3,692.0 A B L (FE—74 1 3,421.2H

from financial assets not at fair value through profit or B PR 4 AR TR AR 2 A B A B
loss amounted to HK$3,692.0 million (2016: HK$3,421.2
million). BTT) o
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6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The operating business organised and managed in each
segment represents a strategic business unit that offers
different products and services for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance by the
Executive Directors of the Company. The Group has the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Investment and finance — investment and provision of
term loan financing.

—  Consumer finance — providing consumer loan finance
products.

—  Property development and investment — development
and sale of properties, property rental, provision of
property management services and hotel operations
managed by third parties.

—  Corporate and other operations — including corporate
revenue and expenses, elderly care services and
results of unallocated operations.

Inter-segment transactions have been entered into on terms
agreed by the parties concerned.

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
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6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6.

(i) Segment revenue and results
Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results is as

follows:

Segment revenue
Less: inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue from
external customers

Segment results
Reversal of impairment loss
on interest in an associate
Impairment loss on interest in an
associate
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

7 ERER (&)
() DEBUARES

AL Z WA BEE T -
2017
“E-t%
Property
development  Corporate
Investment and and other
and  Consumer investment  operations
finance finance  WERE ¥R Total
RERER  RARE kRE  HiEH ot
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BE#n HBEBn BEAT EEBR  BEAR
SHRIA 815.0 3,122.2 488.8 216.8 4,642.8
W R A (6.3) - (18.4) (77.4) (102.1)
KAMBEF
A 808.7 3,122.2 470.4 139.4 4,540.7
YRS 1,758.4 1,444.7 1,036.2 (26.7) 4,212.6
T I — A 7 2 B
ba 1) i 107.6
TR A 2
ZHlEkE (4.1)
RERA (369.8)
) YNGIES: 1,276.3
LGB ARER (28.7) - 688.1 - 659.4
BR Bt AT A 5,882.0
B (331.2)
AR A 5,550.8
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEHER(ME)
(i) Segment revenue and results (Cont’d) (i) DEBWAREEE)
2016
ZENE
Property
development  Corporate
Investment and and other

and  Consumer investment  operations
finance finance  YEHE TR Total
fErel  BAMEH REE bEE 2
HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
AEET ARk AR ARl AR

Segment revenue AR 610.1 3,024.2 429.8 103.5 4,167.6
Less: inter-segment revenue B A (6.0 - (17.8) (41.9) (65.7)
Segment revenue from RAESNBEFZ
external customers AR 604.1 3,024.2 412.0 61.6 41019
Segment results HER 1,266.9 730.7 6113 (31.5) 2,577.4
Impairment loss on interests B AT 2 2
in associates e (142.5)
Finance costs R (283.6)
Share of results of associates A NS 2,900.2
Share of results of joint ventures ey VNGBS (55.3) - 2492 - 193.9
Profit before taxation Bt i A 5,245 4
Taxation BiR (164.2)
Profit for the year AR 5,081.2
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures
Deferred tax assets

Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Tax recoverable

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures
Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings
Notes issued

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

R EE
REEA A R
EN - YNCIPA 3
EEpEgE
BRARRHK
BRAARHK

A YR
HEAR

A
XAl OR
XaBnasH
REfBiA
RITRIMAEE
CHTRR
EEpAAR

REAH

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

6. ZEHER(E)
(i) PMEEREE
2017
ot 3
Property
development  Corporate
Investment and  and other
and  Consumer investment  operations
finance finance ~ MERR TER Total
REREM  BAME k& HtER 3
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEn FEBER  EREn  EBER  EEER
21,794.3 12,291.7 8,093.6 255.1 43,034.7
13,291.1
280.2 - 2,883.5 - 3,163.7
649.6
518.6
- - 9.1 - 9.1
5.9
60,672.7
1,433.2 3,552.2 84.5 18.2 5,088.1
74
- - 0.1 - 0.1
161.0
1,212.0
7,758.2
185.4
14,4122
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEHER(ME)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (i) PHEEREREE)
2016
ZENE
Property
development  Corporate
Investment and and other

and  Consumer investment  operations
finance finance  YEHE TR Total
fErel  BAMEH REE bEE 2
HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
AEET ARk AR ARl AR

Segment assets B 172025 12,6038 75693 1244 375000
Interests in associates RSN T 2 FEds 11,685.8
Interests in joint ventures WEEATZER 227.1 - 2,195.0 - 2,422.1
Deferred tax assets ERHIEEE 652.5
Amounts due from associates YN 378.4
Amounts due from joint ventures BENFIRK 2.2 = 8.9 = 11.1
Tax recoverable Al RIE 1.9
Total assets gt 52,651.8
Segment liabilities e 2499 4,897.5 78.0 19.1 5,244.5
Amounts due to associates YN NGO 73
Amounts due to joint ventures REBNFZH = = 0.1 = 0.1
Tax payable TERSBLE 148.6
Bank and other borrowings 7RI A 929.8
Notes issued EETER 5,017.8
Deferred tax liabilities EALREA & 192.1
Total liabilities BB 11,540.2
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6.

(iii) The geographical information of revenue and non-

current assets are disclosed as follows:

Revenue from external customers i e b B S 0 1)
by location of operations SRR P BRI
Hong Kong i
Mainland China F R Ay
Others HAth

No revenue arising from transactions with a single
external customer amounted to 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for the year.

wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

7 EPER ()

(iii) WA RIFREEE 2t B R T 0
T:

2017 2016
—2—+tF ZER N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EX: Yoo
3,531.8 3,132.2
999.2 958.4

9.7 11.3

4,540.7 4,101.9

R MR QAN EF 2SS
W AL ZRE F e AR 10%E A | o

2017 2016
—E—tF O EFAF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT A &I
Non-current assets other than o2 8 7 5 ) 2 A R
financial assets and deferred AR AL TE g DAAINE FE B
tax assets by location of assets BE
Hong Kong s 25,282.8 22,146.2
Mainland China F R A i 599.8 514.6
Others HAth 900.9 524.5
26,783.5 23,185.3
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7 RPEF ()

(iv) EfttnHER

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6.

(iv) Other segment information

2017
“E-tf
Property
development  Corporate
Investment and and other
and  Consumer investment operations
finance finance  WEER tER Total

RERSR MARE kRE A ag
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT

Included in segment results/ AANER/
segment assefs NEE
Depreciation and amortisation {7 R 14.6 433 3.1 18 828
Impairment losses recognised L 176.2 - 0.8 - 177.0
Net increase in fair value of REMELNFREE
investment properties B 119.0 14 858.7 - 979.1
Bad and doubtful debts R 90.1 297.3 0.6 0.1 388.1
Capital expenditure BRI 443 13.2 238.2 3.0 298.7
2016
“FpnE
Property
development ~ Corporate
Investment and and other
and  Consumer investment  operations
finance finance YRR ¥R Total
REREM RS RBE HibsEH Et
HKS Million  HK$ Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million
(i3 (i35 A&k A& A&k
Included in segment results/ HARHES/
segment assets e
Depreciation and amortisation 1 e 12.7 454 215 15 81.1
Net impairment losses recognised ERR (B )
(reversed) ERT# 1.0 (6.1) = - (5.1)
Net increase in fair value of RemEL N FER
investment properties B 1355 - 4325 - 568.0
Bad and doubtful debts e (34.7) 928.5 0.2) = 893.6
Capital expenditure BARY 18.7 17.9 17.8 0.7 55.1
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7. CHANGES IN VALUES OF PROPERTIES 7. MEEEES
2017 2016
—E—+HF TE N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I

Changes in values of properties comprise: ¥)2Ef8E (A58 145 :

Net increase in fair value of BEYEZ N FEE
investment properties* T I AR+ 979.1 568.0
Impairment loss (recognised) reversed (FRERR) f35 (M) T 1 26 2
for hotel property W 1R (0.8) 6.1
978.3 574.1

The recognition and reversal of impairment losses was TR S 43 I 2 (B R 48 ) 5 BRI S ) 2 2

based on the lower of cost and value in use for hotel A R A B A b 2 BRE R -

property. The value in use was determined based on MEEIRE_-F—t4F+_H=1+—H
independent professional valuations at 31st December, S HEAE R E -

2017.

& The amount recognised in 2016 included HK$130.8 million & R NEERZ EHEEN . FE—NE
representing the difference between the fair value and previous TTH =4 H B B S S g
carrying amount of a property transferred from properties held for 2 — Y2 AR B AT AR T (] 2 22 5
sale to investment properties at 31st December, 2016. 130.8 & HETT ©

8. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 8. SREEREBWHBZEE
LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the net gain on financial %i%fﬁ@%ﬁfﬁ&?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁZﬁ%ﬂﬁ%&
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Al R AT
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEEBIT
Net realised and unrealised gain (loss) EREE AT B K&
on financial assets and liabilities AT g (k518 A
Held for trading FrEse o g 537.2 (177.8)
Designated as at fair value 5 BB R fn iR
through profit or loss BAFE R 932.0 891.5
1,469.2 713.7
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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9. BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Loans and advances to
consumer finance customers
Impairment loss, net of reversal

Mortgage loans
Impairment loss, net of reversal

Trade and other receivables
Impairment loss, net of reversal

Bad and doubtful debts recognised
in profit or loss

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

9. RIEER
2017 2016
—E—+tHF TE N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT HEEIT
ENGp 7 - RS 04
K
L FNBRE 0] 2 Sk (B s 18 277.3 873.6
FiedE Bk
EL NIRRT ) 2 W AE 1R 3.2 3.0
B 5 B FoAh RE Wk R R
BN BRTE W 2 W AE 107.6 17.0
AR 75 R A TR
SRBEHR 388.1 893.6

The following are the amounts written off in allowance
of impairment against the receivables and recoveries
credited to allowance of impairment during the year:

Loans and advances to
consumer finance customers
Amounts written off in

allowance of impairment
Recoveries credited to
allowance of impairment

Mortgage loans
Amounts written off in
allowance of impairment

Trade and other receivables
Amounts written off in
allowance of impairment

FANFA 580 5 B
B
TESAE TS
FKIH
AT A BE 2
i el R IH

K
PESAE T A I
RIH

© 5 B H At Wk oA
PESAE T A M
#KIH

AEIA > GE SRR T A LA ST 8 RSO 2
AN B A AR 8 2 Wi R E AR

2017 2016
—E—+F TR NAE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H ##TT
(700.8) (1,053.0)
162.8 160.2
(1.4) (1.0)
(71.5) (72.4)
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10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2016: eight) Directors were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Directors’ fee

Salaries / service fees
and other benefits

Bonus payments (Note)

Retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Sub-total

WE_F—LFE+_H=1t—HI4E
10. E% - BEREREEEM

(@ EBNREFNB(ZZ—XRF:NR)
BEECMENT -
2017
i
Chief Executive
Lee Seng Hui Edwin Lo
THER King Yau Mak Pak Hung Total
3% %5 -3 (2] k]
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BHEBER BHEBT BHEBT
HITES
HHEME - - - -
e s K&

HAt Az 10.19 2.16 2.72 15.07
TEAL (FEf%) 61.60 6.42 1.16 69.18
BRAE R FEE

i 0.14 0.11 - 0.25
/NEE 71.93 8.69 3.88 84.50

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHTES

Directors’ fee EHE
Salaries / service fees and other F4/ s &
benefits Hoph 4w A
Bonus payments (Note) TEAL (FEAE)
Retirement benefits scheme BIRAE R
contributions K
Sub-total /NEE

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

bR PR AT S I < s S A
2N ) R A B B R 2 IR o

2017
—E—+&F

Chairman

Arthur

George Dew
FE  Lee SuHwei Total
IREEE ZNE b
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAR BEAR BEBT
0.07 - 0.07
1.84 - 1.84
2.55 - 2.55
4.46 - 4.46

ERPR I ATE R B A
I AR R LA 2 ) B IR



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2016: eight) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Directors’ fee

Salaries / service fees
and other benefits

Bonus payments

Retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Sub-total

B ZE—+tEt+-A=1+—HI5F
10. EE - EERSAEEEME (E)

@ ENFIEAFNB(ZZ-—REF:N\L)

ExoMemT (8

2017
—E—tF
David Craig Lisa Yang
Alan Stephen Bartlett Lai Sum Total
Jones HEE BER Fob ]
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAR BEAR BEBT BEBT
B3

FHAT

=
RS 0.02 0.02 - 0.04
e sE &

H bz F 0.77 0.37 0.11 1.25
fEAL - - _ _
RIRARAFT E

ik - - - -
NS 0.79 0.39 0.11 1.29

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

Total

b RN ST I AT R T T 2

SEAE By AN 7] s LR S A 7 3 2 ik
W o

2017

—g—t&

HK$ Million

BEER

90.25

177



178

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2016: eight) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

WE_F—LFE+_H=1t—HI4E
10. E% - BEREREEZEM 2 (K)

@ ENFIEANB(ZZB—REF: N\H)

ExcMeaT (8

2016
TEINE
Chief Executive
Lee Seng Hui Edwin Lo Mak
A King Yau Pak Hung Total
2= U C=ein S {F e M
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBIT HEBIT HEBIT HEBIT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ #{7E#=
Directors’ fee G — — — -
Salaries / service fees Bra R E K
and other benefits HoAb AR A 10.07 2.08 2.64 14.79
Bonus payments (Note)  fE4L (3L:fi#) 36.68 5.50 1.13 43.31
Retirement benefits AR RAE A
scheme contributions  F-#I{i3k 0.13 0.10 — 0.23
Sub-total /NeE 46.88 7.68 3.77 58.33

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Directors’ fee
Salaries / service fees and
other benefits
Bonus payments (Note)
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Sub-total

2016
= AL
Chairman
Arthur
George Dew
E£fE  Lee Su Hwei Total
I EEVE iR k]
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
ER-Ew EX-Yaw EX: 3w
FHTES
HEME 0.07 = 0.07
Hra s &

HoAth Az F) 1.79 — 1.79
fEAT (FEf%) 2.42 - 2.42
IRRAE A

R UGN - - -
/Nt 4.28 = 4.28

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

RPN AT S T4 S A
2N A R AS B B B R 2 IR o

SRR I AT I 2 P 2 R A A
PR R B A S 2 s o



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2016: eight) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

BHE_F-LF T A=+ —HIEFE
10. 2% - EERSREEEM < (H)

@ ENFIEAFNB(ZZ-—REF:N\L)

ExoMemT (8

2016
TERNAE
David Craig Lisa Yang
Alan Stephen Bartlett Lai Sum Total
Jones 8 W B R Ha%
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
A EBIT A BB HEBTT HEBTT
INDEPENDENT NON- B3
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS  F#{TE%E
Directors' fee HEEME 0.01 0.01 = 0.02
Salaries / service fees e, Mgt &
and other benefits H Az F] 0.73 0.35 0.10 1.18
Bonus payments fEAL - - = =
Retirement benefits scheme Bk 4EF
contributions F IR - - - -
Sub-total /Nt 0.74 0.36 0.10 1.20

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

Total st

Note: The amounts represented the actual discretionary bonus in
respect of the preceding year approved and paid to respective
directors during the year.

PR S IR AT P T
SEAE AR m) B A R S 2 iR
B o

2016
TERNE
HK$ Million

HEwIT

63.81

REME - A BRI AR A B O AR B R 2
A B R R fE AL o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR 10. 2= - EEREREEEMS (&)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

@ ENFIEANB(ZZB—REF: N\H)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight

(2016: eight) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

The Company provided management services to
certain listed subsidiaries and associates and charged
these companies management fees. The above
emoluments include all amounts paid or payable
to the Company’s directors by the Company or the
subsidiaries during 2017. However, it should be noted
that the amounts above for Mr. Lee Seng Hui and Mr.
Edwin Lo King Yau include the sums of HK$39.56
million (2016: HK$19.28 million) and HK$5.21
million (2016: HK$3.84 million) respectively that
have been included in the 2017 management fee
charged by the Company to a listed associate, TACI,
for management services performed by Mr. Lee and
Mr. Lo as directors of TACI and TACI has disclosed in
its 2017 annual report the HK$39.56 million (2016:
HK$19.28 million) and HK$5.21 million (2016:
HK$3.84 million) as part of the emoluments of Mr.
Lee and Mr. Lo respectively.

BEECHMENT ()

AN 7] ) T A 7 R A
AR AL BEARES > S [A] 5% 55 A R Wi
B o RPN 4 fuFE AR A ) BN
N AR B AR B AT e A AR A ]
BEH A EIE o SR > R
ol A B 2 OB S A R B St ek
Z A IE LTS 4 A4 B £539.56 B s
JC (=754 1 19.28 A Wi T) &
521 A EHBIL(ZE /N4 1 3.84FH
BV TT) Z 3UH - % SIAD S AR
STV ZR A e B SR EAT — T T
Wi N Fl R % 2 # B AT & PRGBS T
MR ZUNE Y & — BRI
KU EH7%39.56 H Btk o (—F—75
A 19.28 H #is0) M5.21H H¥ TG
(ZFE—IN4E © 3.84 [ EBk0) 2 #0H
A I By 2= Sp: Je 45 Se A Bl 42 22 — 3
AP - F—LAEFRA o



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

HE-%

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

(b)

The five highest paid individuals included one (2016:
two) of the Directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out in 10(a) above. The combined emoluments
of the remaining four (2016: three) individuals are as

follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Bonus payments

i M HAbAR A
fEAL

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R ARAE 1|53k 2k

The emoluments of the above employees who were
not Directors of the Company, were within the

following bands:

HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000
HK$9,500,001 — HK$10,000,000
HK$13,000,001 — HK$13,500,000
HK$23,500,001 — HK$24,000,000
HK$26,500,001 — HK$27,000,000
HK$38,500,001 — HK$39,000,000
HK$57,500,001 — HK$58,000,000

8,500,001 75 —9,000,000% T
9,500,001t —10,000,000% 7T
13,000,001 # 76 —13,500,000% JC
23,500,001 % 7C — 24,000,000 JC
26,500,001% 75 —27,000,000% JC
38,500,001%7C—39,000,000%5 G
57,500,001 7C—58,000,0005 7C

—tLEFCAS B IREE
10. E% - BEREAEEEM 2 (K)

EEME

RS A HaFE % (%
—INAE A B H SRR
R ESCHEEET10(a) « HERpH A (ZF
—NAE  E4) NS SE SR

2017 2016
—B—+tF ZERNEF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERT HEHTT
25.3 18.0

81.0 52.2

1.3 1.1

107.6 71.3

FHE B IEA A FIE R 5 AE
LA i

Number of employees

EEAY

2017 2016
—g—tE  BAE
- 1

1 _

1 _

- 1

1 —

- 1

1 —

4 3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the senior management of the Group, eight (2016:
eight) were the Directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure above. The
combined emoluments of the remaining three (2016:
three) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits M S A AR

Bonus payments fEAL

Retirement benefit scheme R A FE
contributions i3

The emoluments of the above senior management
who were not Directors of the Company, were within
the following bands:

WEF Lt A=t B
10. €% EEREREZEHS (H)

0 SREEEM
AEEEREREHAE NG (ZF
=N ONR) BARFEIESE > H5%E
MO BN e HER=4 (=
TN 0 =4 MR AN £ B B 4 4

BF -
2017 2016
—2—+tF ZER N
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
BEBT A E#HTT
5.9 5.6
3.1 2.8
0.3 0.3
9.3 8.7

bt AR A B A AR 2 E
TSP AT DA

Number of employees

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000

1,000,001 76— 1,500,000 JC
3,000,001 75 —3,500,000% TG
4,000,001 75— 4,500,000 70
4,500,001%7C—5,000,000%% 7T

ERAY

2017 2016
—gtE 3K
1 1

1 1

- 1

1 =

3 3




for the year ended 31st December, 2017

11. INFORMATION ABOUT MATERIAL INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which the Directors or an entity connected
with the Directors had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year. For information only:

(i)

(if)

a tenancy agreement dated 19th November, 2015 was
entered into between Mr. Lee Seng Hui as the tenant
and a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as the landlord had expired on 18th November,
2017 and was renewed by a tenancy agreement
dated 29th November, 2017 for a term commencing
19th November, 2017. The rental of HK$4.1 million
(2016: HK$4.1 million) received therefrom during
the year ended 31st December, 2017 is considered
insignificant in relation to the Group’s business. Such
tenancy agreement was subsequently terminated on
14th February, 2018.

(a) a tenancy agreement dated 12th July, 2016 was
entered into between San Pack Properties Limited
(“San Pack”, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as the landlord and San Tai Distribution
Company Limited (“San Tai”, a company of which
Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau can exercise more than 50%
of the voting rights at the general meetings) as the
tenant for the period from 1st July, 2016 to 30th June,
2019; (b) a tenancy agreement dated 4th November,
2016 was entered into between San Pack as the
landlord and China Pacific Group Limited (“China
Pacific”, a company of which Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau
can exercise more than 50% of the voting rights at the
general meetings) as the tenant for the period from 1st
April, 2016 to 31st March, 2019; and (c) a logistics
and warehouse services agreement dated 27th March,
2017 was entered into between San Pack as the client
and San Tai as the service provider for the period
from 1st April, 2017 to 30th June, 2019. The total
rental of HK$14.1 million received therefrom and the
total service fee of HK$0.3 million paid thereto during
the year ended 31st December, 2017 are considered
insignificant in relation to the Group’s business.

HE-%

—tHE+ZA=+—HILEE

1. ARESERRE » ZHFEREHNTHNE
REZNER

TR A BE A% 45 5 BT AN AR B AR AT IRF ] >
A ) S HLAT AT 6 2% ) Sl ST 7 2 A
L A ) TR R R A R
iR AALMTE ALY ~ TPRSEH - LT
Praf it 2%

ZE R S (TE B RN ) BRAR N R]—
HIEEEM B AR (EAEE) R F
—HE+—H+HLHFET L2 B Bk
Bl _FE—LEt+—H+/\HE#H >
Wik —FE—L4FE+—H T JLH & —
FHEm®RES > B _F—LFET—
H+ILH AR - v E —F—L4F
+ A=+ —HIEFE R4 EH B
WIL(ZE—NF 41 EHBIL) 2
FH 4 A AR B A 2R [ 2B 1 5 B AN
K o A B E @R IER _F— /\4F
A H &I -

(QIIFEEZEARAF (MG > A2
FIZEEEMIBAR) EAETE) H
SREEAGRAT(=FH] 558
Je A AT B AR B A7 i A R 50% 1%
ERERA ) (TEAFLT) 5T —1 H
WA —E—NFEtA+ T HZHER
o A —Z—RFEEHA-HE
E—JAENA=1H 5 (b) LK (fE A
26 ) B e [ 5 45 A BR A ] (T
BE | > 25 54 o4 Al i HROK & A7 4
HEIA50% % ZZHEM AT 55— 0 H
W5 —FE—NE+—HNUHZHE R
oo A —FE—JNENH—H &R
FE—NE=ZHA=+—H; K(c)Li
(WEAEF) B =% (1E A REHER)
I HMA -ZFE—tE=H 1+EtH
Z W Mo RS ik - AR A
ZE—HAFENA—HE E—IUEN
A=+H #HzE2_F—tHE+_H
= — B 1k R R i B A A 4 AR
BH14.1 A B 0 M BT S A RS 2 AR
0.3 F it o B AL B 7 1M 5 8 il
AT o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BERA
2017 2016
—ZT—+tF BN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEW G
Interest on the following liabilities PATF Z5ZE0% AR N B R
wholly repayable within five years: ZAEASE
Bank borrowings PATIHE 198.0 221.1
Notes issued ELEE T IR PR 330.0 255.8
528.0 476.9
Total finance costs FIATFIHEBE N Z
included in: Rl A AR
Cost of sales and other direct costs S BAS K oAt B 42 A 158.2 193.3
Finance costs Rl B AR 369.8 283.6
528.0 476.9
All finance costs were derived from financial liabilities not %Eﬁ@@gﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁiéﬁﬁ 3l FF 275 i
at fair value through profit or loss for both years. IR ARIE B R B AL -
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets measured at fair value
(included in other operating expenses)

Impairment loss on amounts due from
joint ventures (included in other
operating expenses)

Impairment loss on interests in associates
(included in other operating expenses)

Loss on disposal of joint ventures
(included in other operating expenses)

Net loss on disposal/write-off of
property, plant and equipment

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments but excluding
contributions to retirement
benefit schemes and expenses
recognised for the employee
ownership scheme of SHK)

for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBLAD &R
2017 2016
—E—+tF BN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EWIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived SR
at after charging: EnER
Auditors’ remuneration 2% Bl 35 P 7.0 7.5
Amortisation of intangible assets YA i 1.8 1.5
Amortisation of prepaid land THAAE
lease payments 5 0.1 0.2
Depreciation s 80.9 79.4
Expenses recognised for employee AR AL 2 M B A
ownership scheme of SHK WA TR R 2 6.4 2.8

DA A (B T ] i

Hh A Rl I 2 W E I R

(FEA H A #8252 ) 176.2 -
BENFIRKZ WA

18 (A Hoft 4845

) - 1.0
TR E A ) 2 Mg 2 E

e (A AR 8 # A ) 4.1 142.5
HESEANFZEIE

(FEA LM AL 2 ) - 14.1

Y& P i e 1.5 1.1
RRAE R EIL K 87.2 95.3
BTHA (HIGES

[ R ER NIRRT/

AR K Sk

eI > 8 B Iy

WA ERER 2

#H) 1,015.5 888.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

13. BRBLAER ()

SHK disposed of 70% interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary
SHKFGL in June 2015 and classified the remaining 30% equity
interest as an associate. Affected by the slow recovery of Hong
Kong and China stock markets in 2016 after the stock market
correction in the second half of 2015, the carrying amount of the
30% equity interest in SHKFGL exceeded the recoverable amount
at the reporting date that led to a further impairment loss for the
year ended 31st December, 2016. The recoverable amount was
measured at fair value less cost of disposal of SHKFGL. There was an
improvement of the stock market in 2017 and resulted in a partial
reversal of impairment loss for the year ended 31st December, 2017.
The fair value was measured by discounted cash flow approach at
the reporting date using a discount rate of 16.6% (2016: 19.7%).
As part of the disposal in 2015, the Group was awarded a put right
on the 30% equity interest of SHKFGL. This put right recorded a
valuation gain during the year of HK$1.0 million (2016: HK$345.0
million) classified under net gain on financial assets and liabilities.

2017 2016
—E—+F RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT H &G
and after crediting: DI ASE N
Dividend income from listed T AR B S
equity securities A 30.8 32.0
Dividend income from unlisted I b A R S5 A B
equity securities A - 3.6
Net realised gain on disposal of an HE— RS AR 2 CE B
associate (included in other income) Wit VAR (R A AL A) - 3.9
Net realised gain on disposal of HETAHESRMERELZ
available-for-sale financial assets T 5 B i 4 13 AH
(included in other income) (FHEAFHABIN) 0.3 1.1
Net realised gain on disposal of B AR Z
subsidiaries (included in L 5 B A 4 V4
other income) (FFAEALIA) - 9.7
Rental income from investment METHA R EYEL
properties under operating HHEWA > RS H
leases, net of outgoings 26.6 [ #HETT
of HK$26.6 million (ZF—N4F
(2016: HK$25.2 million) 252 ##IT) 189.9 179.9
Reversal of impairment loss on 55 [ A — [T B s ) 2
interest in an associate (included in Wt 2 WA e 1R
other income) * (FEA AN ) * 107.6 =

* RIE—RAENH > BB EEAENEA
AW IR A AR B 2 70% 25 > ST ER T 30%
JRME S FEAE— T2 A R R B © 2 3 s I P
B ZE T B i T — AR N AR AT R AR AR T
A AR NG A (AR 1R TR A e
4 AR [ 2. 30% HEAHE 22 W 1 B i A A5 38 22w
Welml 48 - B E —F—ANEF A=+
H Lk 47 B B — 25 A R 18 o AT i e S48 LA
ST R 4 R 1 0 T A B AR R
RN =R — LA B - WA R R R
BE-Z—LE+A=+—HILEEAETS
HEATREI] o S5 H S TEE LA BLE16.6% (—
T—INAE 1 19.7%) T B & kst & -
ERIN =B — RN EHIEN — 0 » AREH
P 0 5 4 4 [ 14 3 0% I HHE O BT HE -
% AR T HE R AR N B AR AL (45 1.0 BT (=
TN ¢ 345.0H @B T) o U SRS E
&=V (L ErRE T
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187
B2 Xt T+ A=1+—HILFE

14. TAXATION 14. BE
2017 2016
—E—tF “ENE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET A E T
The income tax charged (credited) PSR S (45 42)
comprises: 4
Current tax A HABLIH
Hong Kong il 222.7 202.3
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") e N RILANER ([ HE )
and other jurisdictions S HA ) 3 i 52.9 83.4
275.6 285.7
Under (over) provision in prior years WA R A GRBAEIE M) 22.2 (0.8)
297.8 284.9
Deferred tax RIERIH
Current year ARAE 33.4 (120.7)
331.2 164.2
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of o A I 8] 4 38 149 42 i IR B Ui
the estimated assessable profits for both years. M16.5% L B -
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax T H B 2 B TS 2 R ZE AU R B A SE T AR
at 25% for both years. Bi o AR BRI £525% ©
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated on A& 1 G Al ] i [ 2 A T 2 4 P il R
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates ot i 1) DA AT I D s [ ) 45 B 2 BAT B
of taxation prevailing in the countries in the relevant FHE

jurisdictions.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

14. TAXATION (CONT’D)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

Profit before taxation

Less: Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit attributable to the
Company and subsidiaries

Tax at Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%)
Countries subject to different tax rates
Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised
Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes
Tax effect of income that is
not taxable for tax purposes
Tax effect of tax losses
not recognised
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised
Reversal of deferred tax on
tax loss previously recognised
Reversal of deferred tax on
deductible temporary difference
previously recognised
Under (over) provision in prior years
Others

Taxation for the year

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
14. BE(E)
AAE [ TR B AE SR A

i 5 7N 2 BB A

FlZ BHRAR ¢
2017 2016
—E—+t5F TE N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H H i TT
I o Hip Ve A 5,882.0 5,245.4
W MEAL A W 24K (1,276.3) (2,900.2)
/N E S (659.4) (193.9)
AN ) S B T EA
ikl 3,946.3 2,151.3
u%%ﬂ’ BB 16.5%
— N4 1 16.5%)
nJr%Z%ﬁlﬁ 651.1 354.9
ESENGEE R 31.6 (15.7)
AR P IR B R 22 A
Bl 2 16.7 0.5
An] AfEFORL S 2
Bl 2 42.8 48.0
IR 2
T D 22 (402.3) (229.0)
RIERB I ER 2
Bl 2 12.4 16.3
B ] 2 Fi AR
T T s 48, 2 o T 22 (33.2) (10.0)
8 0] 2 | C i RR B TE s 18
Z R GERL A (6.5) -
P m 2 B C HERR R "H‘D*EE
[ife Fp 2= A 22 R A
BiIH 0.2) -
AT R AN . (BRI ) 22.2 (0.8)
HAh (3.4 -
AAE FERLIA 331.2 164.2

Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income

was immaterial in both years presented.

IR R I > T At 4 T i 2 v e RE

EFEBLIENG AN E K



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic

earnings per share (profit attributable to
owners of the Company)

Adjustments to profit in respect of
impact of contingently issuable shares
under the employee ownership
scheme of a subsidiary

Earnings for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares
in issue for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share

189
BE - F—tFE+ - HA=1+—HI4FE
15. BRER

R ) PSR A 5 S A 5 R M) T AR
UL SR

2017 2016
—E—+tF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEETT HEW G
ZA
RIS R EART A 2
B (A= ) 1B R A
T A1) 3,235.9 3,263.2
BB AR 2
1i& B B A 5T
M AT BEEEA T A 2
5 AR 0.4) (0.2)
R R A
Z A 3,235.5 3,263.0
Million shares  Million shares
BER [EN- 7
BB H
hEH B A K
2 R 2 BB AT Y
JINREF-24 85 176.3 177.9
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

16. DIVIDEND

Dividend paid and declared

Interim dividend paid of
HK15 cents (2016: HK15 cents)
per share

Second interim dividend (in lieu of
a final dividend) of HK$2.35 per share
declared subsequent to the end of the
reporting period (2016: second interim
dividend (in lieu of a final dividend) of
HK$1.85 per share)

Dividend recognised as distribution

during the year

2016 second interim dividend
(in lieu of a final dividend)
of HK$1.85 (2016:
2015 second interim
dividend (in lieu of a final
dividend) of HK$1.6)
per share

2017 interim dividend
of HK15 cents
(2016: HK15 cents)
per share

The amount of the second interim dividend (in lieu of a
final dividend) for the year ended 31st December, 2017
has been calculated by reference to 175,754,118 shares in

issue at 26th March, 2018.

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE
16. RE

2017 2016
—E—+F BN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y

BT R EEIRBUE
B A A B S A1 5
WAl (T —7N4F
B3 5HEALL) 26.4 26.7
A FAR R EIREE —
U AR (FREE R
B S.) B2 353 0T
(ZF—NE R
A FBE L (FR R A

B B %1 .85#T) 413.0 327.1

439.4 353.8

pdli 9
RN IR

HH AL (R R )

) B 1 .85 1T

(CF—RN4F

TE —HAFEFE IR

A FSE L (FR R A S

BT .6%T) 327.1
B LR E

BT SHRAI

(TN

BB 5HEAIL) 26.4 26.7

285.2

353.5 311.9

HEZ—LET_H=1+—HILFEES
WS (R REIE) 2 &5 > T
AN FE— ) EZH HANHEBITZ
175,754,118 iy wt 5 »
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. WA=
Hong Kong PRC USA UK Total
&8 hE XH % act

HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
EE Y EEY EEY ELY EEY

Fair value AYEE
At 15t January, 2016 RoZ—tE—H—H 7,039.4 158.3 - - 7,197.7
Exchange adjustments i S - (3.0 = = (3.0)
Transferred from properties % B i &

held for sale /S - - 135.1 S 135.1
Transferred from property, — #if# 4% » s &

plant and equipment B - 3.7 - - 3.7
Additions byl 1.2 = = - 1.2
Disposal of subsidiaries HERE AT - (109.0) - - (109.0)
Increase (decrease) in R HERZ

fair value recognised in NTEE

profit or loss 1 (8i>) 437.7 (0.5) 130.8 - 568.0
At 31st December, 2016 REZF—AE+ZA=1—H 74783 495 265.9 - 7,793.7
Exchange adjustments HE 5 5% - 3.7 2.0 183 24.0
Transferred from properties  H{f#t F £ &

held for sale VES 44.1 - - = 44.1
Additions N 1.8 - - 205.4 207.2
Increase (decrease) in R HERZ

fair value recognised in NTEE

profit or loss 1 (i b) 992.1 14 - (14.4) 979.1
At 31st December, 2017 REF—tE+ZA=1—H 8,516.3 54.6 267.9 209.3 9,048.1
Unrealised gains or ERE AR

losses for the year s dille

included in profit or loss HiE 1A

For 2017 Rt 992.1 1.4 - (14.4) 979.1

For 2016 “E-RNE 437.7 0.5) 130.8 - 568.0

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties on
the dates of transfer, acquisition and at the reporting dates
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out at these dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited,
Whitney & Associates and Savills (UK) Limited, firms
of independent and qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group.

For properties located in Hong Kong, PRC and the United
Kingdom (“UK”), the fair value was grouped under
level 3 and was determined based on the investment
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units of
the properties are assessed and discounted at the market
yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The
market rentals are assessed taking into account the current
passing rents and the reversionary income potential
of tenancies. For the properties which are currently
vacant, the valuation was based on capitalisation of the
hypothetical and reasonable market rents with a typical
lease term or direct comparison approach. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in
Hong Kong, PRC and UK and adjusted to take into account
the market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

For property located in the United States of America
(“USA”), the fair value was grouped under level 3 and
was determined based on the sales comparison approach
— land analysis, where the market sales of the observable
transactions in neighbourhood areas are assessed and
adjusted to take into account the location, size, condition
and physical characteristic of this investment property.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
17. REWHE(E)

AL B BRSO RO A
B HZAPEECRENorton Appraisals
Holdings Limited * Whitney & Associates
KSavills (UK) Limited it H AT 2
TEAERERE > A% 5500 )32 /o BELAS 4 o ML 4 B
B SL G A B E AL (R -

AL ~ B K] ([ 32 ) B3
M > A FEETIRAALESE =T > i
MBBCE L RE - BRI - YSER BT
LB A7 i i (EAH < T AR P A - AR SEE
TR I 2 2 T (R ISR B o A T B
FHAERF - 2 7% 58 2 BA AH 4 b A 40 7 B i
AT - BRI Z B2 YT S - A {ETY
ARYEARGEE S BT (ELAH 8 2 V(L - 28 0)
TUAE > SR E IR LBIAME D « R
TI2%53 W - B B
Lo M2 R E > WEAFFE - M
AP AWISERCEE 2 TG > RS
BEY AR

AL S A B B (TSR |) 2 Wy 3T
5 N TEETIRAALES =R T - R
R UL — AT E > B D
A [ T b 2 ATBUEE R 5 TR RS
DA Tz <e7//E JENA Y I SE
PR A A

S A FE PR T Al (B0 7 35 00 S By o TEAh
FHSEN B R > YR R KR E

TR BEARYE S -TE AR A AR
AR Y ] BB A T A ] R E % 4 1R SE R
PR CRe 2 B B9 A5 (E D7 15 St A
BR) o DU HEERETEI D 2 A
B (SRR (55— 25 =50 &R -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. WEMH(F)
Investment properties
held by the Group in Relationship of
the consolidated Fair Valuation unobservable inputs
statement of value technique(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) T B Rg A S
REeuBikRke AVEE REFER Significant unobservable input(s) HAVLEEZBE
FEEFBERENE R TEBRARE BEATUBERAHE €39

Residential properties Level 3 Investment Approach
located in Hong S =# &%k

Kong
R FEZ EEME The key inputs are
A B
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield  The higher the term
B A generated by market average selling yield, the lower the
price and the market average rental fair value.
from comparable properties and AR AR S
adjustment to reflect the conditions of /A FAE{E AL
the building, of 1.5% to 3% (2016: 1.5%
to 30/0).
SRR A S51.5% 3% (ZF— N4
1.5%2%3%) > #H5 R A G LR SE L
B R R TG IM e 2 It
it A ) A A DA A TR L -
(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
(e selling price and the market average the lower the fair
rental from comparable properties and  value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated {8 i & % >
with the future rental, of 1.75% to ONTEE AR -
3.25% (2016: 2% to 3.25%).
I %A 1.75%%£3.25% (—F—A
A 2%%3.25%) - KB IR AT E LY
KGR EE RS eE A
Z S ARG A H R L S MR AR A 4 2
HH B R <
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties
held by the Group in

the consolidated Fair Valuation

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

statement of value technique(s)
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) I RPN
REeikinke AVEE REFER Significant unobservable input(s) HAVLEEZAE
AEERFERENE FR FTEHARE EATTEEBARE (FE2)
Residential properties The key inputs are
located in (Cont'd)
Hong Kong (Cont'd) F B AR ()
PR AT
(%) (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the rental as  monthly term
HHME stated in the existing rental agreements  rental, the higher

(4) Reversionary
rental

[ it

with an average of HK$21 to HK$47
(2016: HK$20 to HK$47)/sq. ft./month.

K E AN 2B A SRR AL 2
ST AT R IE 24780
(ZF—N4F 2002471 70) 2°F
BB -

Reversionary rental for each unit
is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account of
location and other individual factor, the
range of average reversionary rental is
from HK$20 to HK$49 (2016: HK$19
to HK$53)/sq.ft./month.

& BT 2 AR SR 4 B BT 4 ) B LU
FBHILL » MACE ) SE RS S H A A
FIRR - FoREHEe 2 EEN T4
AEFIT R0 TR 49T (—F
A 19T ES3WIT) o

the fair value.
& HMASHE
N PAEE R o

The higher the
reversionary rental,
the higher the fair
value.

R A b -
NEEB -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of

Valuation
technique(s)

Fair
value
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BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position hierarchy and key input(s) B RG AE
RGEMBRAR: DFPEE HELER Significant unobservable input(s) RAVPEEZBRE
AEERFERENE FR IEHABE EATTEEGARE &3
Car parking spaces  Level 3 Investment Approach
located in H=m BEE
Hong Kong
LA 2 B The key inputs are
B2 PN (6
(1) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
(L llEES selling price and the market average the lower the fair
rental from comparable properties and ~ value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated 8 i i &5 2 >
with the future rental of 4.5% (2016: AN TAEEBAL -
5.5%).
TEERIAR 2 S5 4.5% (—F— /R4
5.5%) » KEJE ]G R 1T
Py M8 R T35 PR RH G A 2 A R
A1t 3 LA WK A 4 22 A B L
(2) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
(i comparables and taking into account the higher the
of location and other individual factor, fair value.
the average reversionary rental is e
HK$2,200 (2016: HK$2,200)/unit/ AFEERR -
month.
& B 2 AR B 4 B el 05 T LU
BT > 485 49 S B S HoA A
FIRR  FREHEEAEA 58
2,200% 70 (ZF—/84F 1 2,200%70) ©
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
B A& BB 2 A — % —t e
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F—LF T _HA=T—HILFE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REWE(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group in Relationship of
the consolidated Fair Valuation unobservable inputs
statement of value technique(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) FABRG AE
REEUBRRAR2 AVEE HEHTER Significant unobservable input(s) BAVEEZBR
AEERFRENE FR TERARE EATTEEGARE (FE#2)
Commercial Level 3 Investment Approach
properties located  # =%t &k
in Hong Kong
R PAEELES The key inputs are
EEE@MARE
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield  The higher the term
Rl gk generated by market average selling yield, the lower the
price and the market average rental fair value.
from comparable properties and S A A S

adjustment to reflect the conditions of AP {E EBK -
the building, of 2.00% to 3.00% (2016:
2.00% to 4.25%).
AE AR 3 152.00% 2 3.00% (—F—78
5 1 2.00%%4.25%) - FEEA KL
W ZE 2 T T B AE Rl 5 T it
E A 2 Wi R A o R R DA S R TR

L o
(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
(lieEs selling price and the market average the lower the fair

rental from comparable properties and ~ value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated &5k 4 R #if >
with the future rental, of 2.50% to N SAE {E AR o
3.50% (2016: 2.50% to 4.75%).

RS R F52.50%%3.50% (—F—7
4 0 2.50%%4.75%) - RE A& LI
W32 i T A8 K i B T 4
A 2 W g R0 A H R DA R R A 4
Z AR JE R o
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Investment properties
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the consolidated
statement of

Valuation
technique(s)

Fair
value
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BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position hierarchy and key input(s) G RPN
REEBikRke ATEE HEFER Significant unobservable input(s) HATLEEZAE
AEBRFERENE FR TERARE EXATAEHERARE (FE#2)
Commercial The key inputs are
properties located in (Cont'd)
Hong Kong (Cont'd) & B A BE ()
DA E 2 i
Y () (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the rental as  monthly term
T HME stated in the existing rental agreements  rental, the higher
with an average of HK$35 to HK$76 the fair value.
(2016: HK$29 to HK$66)/sq. ft./month. 45 A 4&#E
R GAMSERAHRARIZH A FEERS -
SN PEA BT ITR35 T E76% T
(2R 1 29T E66WTT) Z
FEREHE R o
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
(it comparables and taking into account of  the higher the fair
location and other individual factor, the  value.
range of average reversionary rental is RS A M >
from HK$35.7 to HK$74 (2016: HK$34 /A PE{ERS -
to HK$71)/sq.ft./month.
& B 2 A8 SR 4 B BT o ) B LU
THBAREL - AACE 4 B S H A
SIER » FHERHE EENT5H
W35 78I E 74T (—F R
A L 34WITTETIEITT) ©
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

held by the Group in

the consolidated Fair
statement of value

Valuation
technique(s)

B2 Xt +A=+—HILFEE
17. REW=X(E)
Relationship of

unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position hierarchy and key input(s) A E g ASE
REeBBMRRRz AVEE RESER Significant unobservable input(s) HATEEZER
FEERERENE ER TEBRARE BEATAEERAHE €39
Godown located in  Level 3 Investment
Hong Kong F=5 Approach
MR EEZER K&
The key inputs are
B2 VN (€
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield The higher the term
Gl gk generated by market average selling yield, the lower
price and the market average rental the fair value.
from comparable properties and AF IR R
adjustment to reflect the conditions of 2 FAE{E AL
the building, of 3.50% (2016: 3.25%).
AR J53.50% (—F— N4
3.25%) - A% R A B LBYISE 2 i
T 1 R TS5 TR G A 2 Wi B
A ) 9 B DA ST R IR L
(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average  reversionary yield,
(e selling price and the market average the lower the fair
rental from comparable properties value.
and adjustment to reflect the risk RS SR
associated with the future rental, of ONTAEE AR -
4.00% (2016: 3.75%).
BRI AE A £54.00% (—F—/N4F -
3.75%) > A% R B LY 2 i
- 1 R TS5 TR G A 2 Wi
%1@&5@?&%&@%*%@&22@5‘5@
B o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of

financial position

Fair Valuation
value technique(s)
hierarchy and key input(s)

REeRBRRRkz DVEE HEFER
AEBRERENE ER TEHARE
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BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EXATAERRARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
T EEEAHE
RAVEEZBE
(FEfR)

Godown located in
Hong Kong (Cont'd)
NREGZER ()

The key inputs are
(Cont'd)
AR (80

(3) Monthly term
rental
HAHSE

(4) Reversionary
rental

(L gk

Monthly term rental for each unit
is derived from the average of the
rental as stated in the existing rental
agreements with an average of
HK$7.5 (2016: HK$7)/sq. ft./month.

KRN 28 A e RB ARG 2T
Vit AP 5 R7 58T (&N
7T R

Reversionary rental for each unit
is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual
factor, the average reversionary rental
is HK$7.6 (2016: HK$6.5)/sq.ft./
month.

& B 2 AR B E B ) R LR
MG L - RS 8 ) SE B S HoA
AEE > PR e 81 8T TR
F7.68T(ZF 784 ¢ 6.587T) °

The higher the
monthly term
rental, the higher
the fair value.

5 A S
AR -

The higher the
reversionary
rental, the higher
the fair value.

(i
AR -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_EF—tFE+_HA=+—H I4FEF
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REWH*E(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group in Relationship of
the consolidated Fair Valuation unobservable inputs
statement of value technique(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) AuEEg ASE
REeBBMRRR2 AVEE REFER Significant unobservable input(s) HATEEZER
FEERBERENE ER TEBARE BEATAEERAHE €39
Commercial Level 3 Investment Approach
properties located =% &k
in PRC
()= PAE Y S The key inputs are
R A B
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield  The higher the term
Gl gk generated by market average selling yield, the lower the
price and the market average rental fair value.
from comparable properties and ARSI AR R

adjustment to reflect the conditions of /A FAE{E AL
the building, of 6% (2016: 6%).
B ER R 6% (—F—7NE 1 6%) > B
% 8 ] G e 2 2 5 Kl
G PR G e 2 Wi s AR A T L

ST ARV -
(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
(L tienk S selling price and the market average the lower the fair

rental from comparable properties and ~ value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated {87 i & % >
with the future rental, of 6.75% (2016: A FAE{E A o
6.75%).

BT % /56.75% (—F—A4F
6.75%) » K875 [ Al & LR SE 2 T 5
TR EE RGPt R A 2 g
S b 3 DA R A AL 46 2 A BRI,

iz o
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Fair Valuation
value technique(s)
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17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position hierarchy and key input(s) T EEEAHE
REeBBRRRz AVEE REFTER Significant unobservable input(s) HATEEZHR
AEBRERENE ER TEBARE EXATAERRARE (FEf2)
Commercial The key inputs are
properties located (Cont'd)
in PRC (Cont'd) T2 ABE ()
(N ElE P E S YES
() (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the rental as  monthly term
HHHES stated in the existing rental agreements  rental, the higher
with an average of RMB111.9 (2016: the fair value.
RMB86)/sq.m./month. BAMSHS
& B 2 g AR BATEA TSI 2 0 NEEB -
EEAFITARARKI1.950(=F
=~ NRWE86TT) 2 T HEEHE
oo
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
(i comparables and taking into account the higher the fair
of location and other individual value.
factor, the average reversionary rental {54 HiR >
is RMB107.9 (2016: RMBI8)/sq.m./ N BB o
month.
% B 2 AR G B T )
FHAAREL > R85 149 2 i B e oA A
SRR i Fa = ISR S
AARN107.970 (ZF A« ARN
98JL) °
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REME(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group in Relationship of
the consolidated Fair Valuation unobservable inputs
statement of value technique(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) FaBRG A&
REEMBRRKe AFEE ‘EFER Significant unobservable input(s) HAFEEZBERE
FEERBERENE ER TERARE BEATUEBRRANE (FEfR)

Industrial properties  Level 3 Investment Approach
located in PRC Bk wER

PR Bl 2 T
The key inputs are
ER AR
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield  The higher the term
R il gk generated by market average selling yield, the lower the
price and the market average rental fair value.
from comparable properties and A R R
adjustment to reflect the conditions of A TE{HMIE -
the building, of 4.25% (2016: 4.25% to
6.75%).
IR 3 S 4.25% (—F N4
4.25%%6.75%) » KE% A Ly 3
Z G P EE LTS T HEEE L
W ZR3f A i A 8 DA S IR -
(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
(e selling price and the market average the lower the fair
rental from comparable properties and ~ value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated & Hitas 2k 5
with the future rental, of 4.75% 2016: /M FE(EHE o
4.75% to 6%).
TR 3 F54.75% (—F— /N4
4.75%%6%) > K% & B
173585 B 4 i 355 P Y R i A 2 Wi
i AR A R DL MOR AR 4 2 AR B
JEB -
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

held by the Group in

the consolidated Fair
statement of value

Valuation
technique(s)

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position hierarchy and key input(s) T EEEAHE
REeBBRRRz AVEE REFTER Significant unobservable input(s) HATEEZHR
FEEFBERENE ER TEBARE BEATUBERAHE (FEfR)
Industrial properties The key inputs are
located in PRC (Cont'd)
(Cont'd) AR ()
P Bl 2 T3
() (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the rental. ~ monthly term
HHHES The properties are vacant in both years.  rental, the higher
BB AME A TFHE - 25D the fair value.
K MEEENS AR - BAHSR
KPR AR -
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
e comparables and taking into account of  the higher the fair
location and other individual factor, the  value.
range of average reversionary rental is  EFH4HE >
from RMB28 to RMB35 (2016: RMB27 A FAE{EML S
to RMB43.5)/sq.m./month.
& B 2 AR B 4 B B i 857 T LU
BT > M AE5 ) S B % A A
AIER > PR BEN 5
BT R AR 28702 ARM5TE(Z
FAE ARW27 T EARN43.5
Jo) °
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F—LF+_H=1+—HIFF
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REWE(R)
Investment properties
held by the Group in Relationship of
the consolidated Fair Valuation unobservable inputs
statement of value technique(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) T BRG AEE
REEMBERRKe AVEE ®‘EFER Significant unobservable input(s) HAFEEZBERE
FEBRFERENE FR FTEHABE EXATAEHERARE ()
Freehold land Level 3 Sales Comparison A 30% (2016: 30%) discount is applied  The higher the
located in USA BE Approach - Land to the market observable price/acre ofa  discount, the lower
PR B 2 Ik A ERE Analysis, based on  piece of similar land. the fair value.
+ih market observable  $HT AR Lo AT E K B i
transactions of HATHE30% (ZF—754F  30%) ° B E B -

similar pieces of
land and adjusts to
reflect the location,
size, conditions
and physical
characteristic of the
freehold land.

BB PO — gy
B o DA
WGBS 5
LB B AR B
S B 7 A ZERE 1 b
HOLE ~ B -~ B
P R B
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BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position  hierarchy and key input(s) ATABERAHE
REEHMBMRRERZ AVEE RESER Significant unobservable input(s) HAPEEZER
AEEFERENE SR TERARE BEATBRRANE (FE#R)
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment Approach

located in UK H=m BEE
NI P EESYES

The key inputs are

B2 PN G

(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield  The higher the term
B AR generated by market average selling yield, the lower the

price and the market average rental fair value.
from comparable properties and AR AR S
adjustment to reflect the conditions of /B (E K o
the building, of 5% (2016: Nil).

RN R 5% (ZF— N ) &
% R AL B S 2 e R R
354 4 A 2 Wi I A
DA TR -

(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
fEbm s selling price and the market average the lower the fair

rental from comparable properties and  value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated & il £ Fitk 5
with the future rental, of 5.59% (2016: A FE{EHE -
Nil).

BB IAR % 135.59% (—F—R4F © ) >
Y QN A i/E SAE E Rl
Berti 5 Y RH 4 e AR 2 Wit 30 A
8% DL I AR AR A < 22 A R R o



206

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of

Fair
value

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Valuation
technique(s)

wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

financial position hierarchy and key input(s) T HEEAHE
REeBBRRR2 AVEE REFER Significant unobservable input(s) HATEEZHR
AEBRERENE FR TEHABE EXATAEERARE (FEHR)
Commercial properties The key inputs are
located in UK (Cont'd)
(Cont'd) A ()
(YIS P E SYES
(%) (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental is derived from the  The higher the
rental average of the rental as stated in the monthly term
HHH% existing rental agreements with an rental, the higher
average of GBP71,251 (2016: Nil)/ the fair value.
month. B
B H A BUA R B G el P P 2 KPR AR -
& PHRBFAT 25188 (CF A
i) .
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental is compared with The higher the
rental direct market comparables and reversionary rental,
i taking into account of location and the higher the fair
other individual factor, the average value.
reversionary rental is GBP103,290 e
(2016: Nil)/month. B (E#E o
TR bR < L vl 5 ] LA AT
B > A5 1 ) 2 B e A 1
> PR AE A 103,29058
(ZF—7NE ) -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REWHE(E)

Note: Except for investment property with carrying value of HK$nil (2016:
HK$84.0 million), there is no indication that any slight change in the
unobservable input would result in a significantly higher or lower
fair value measurement.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during both
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
investment properties pledged as security of the Group's
bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$7,745.7
million (2016: HK$6,761.6 million).

Details of the Group’s investment properties and other
assets being pledged to secure loans and general banking
facilities are set out in note 47.

SRR . BRHEM (A T T (T N4E 1 84.0F v
o) Z BB AL > WA YR SRR A A S
N SR 114 AT o] 5k 5 B 165 2 0 A
KN o

FAAF AL - 7 SN B 2 = 4K o
AR IR A5 B R AT S HAt £ BT

W a2 IR (E A7,745.7 A &
BT (CZFE—NF 1 6,761.6 A BHETT) o

AN B R M — R SR AT T A 2 45
B R AN B R RN M RE47
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - BERZE
Leasehold Furniture,
and and fixtures and Motor
Hotel buildings ~ Leasehold  equipment  vehicles and
property  FAELH improvements GHE- vessels Total

BENE kEF HEETEE %#EREHE SERSHM @t
HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million
AEBT A& A& BEBT BEBT BEBT

Cost A

At 1st January, 2016 RZZ—R%—H—H 608.5 617.3 170.2 2145 85.7 1,696.2
Exchange adjustments B 5% - (21.6) 9.5) (4.9 0.1) (36.1)
Additions il - - 56 25 166 474
Acquisition of subsidiaries NG = = 27.6 8.3 = 35.9
Transferred to investment properties BB 2 81 = (3.9) = = = (3.9
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR - - 0.1) 0.6) - 07)
Disposalsfwrite-off i /i - - (1.1) (8.8) (1.7) (11.6)
At 31st December, 2016 REE—AEFZA=1—H 608.5 591.8 192.7 233.7 100.5 17272
Exchange adjustments et - 35 107 5.1 0.2 39.5
Additions il = = 12.8 35.8 51.8 100.4
Disposalshwrite-of /g - - 34 (6.6 93) (193)
At 31st December, 2017 WoZ—tHE+-H=+—H 608.5 615.3 212.8 268.0 143.2 1,847.8

Accumulated depreciation and FAER

impairment Wi
At 1st January, 2016 R-E—NE—H—H 264.6 534 101.9 104.6 38.7 563.2
Exchange adjustments 37K L - (1.8) (6.5) 2.7) 0.1) (11.1)
Provided for the year REER 72 16.1 249 224 8.8 794
Acquisition of subsidiaries IS REN B 5 ) = = 274 7.5 = 349
Transferred to investment properties B2 8% = (0.2) = = - (0.2)
Impairment loss reversed BB (6.1) - - - = (6.1)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries %t # i/ al ¥ 4 - - 0.1) 0.5) - (0.6)
Eliminated on disposals/write-off T /b = = 1.1 (7.5) (1.6) (10.2)
At 31st December, 2016 REF=AREFZAZ+—H 265.7 67.5 146.5 123.8 45.8 649.3
Exchange adjustments B - 25 8.2 33 0.1 14.
Provided for the year AAERER 75 15.9 216 229 13.0 80.9
Impairment loss recognised WHEER 08 - - - - 08
Eliminated on disposals/write-off TR /B = = (3.4) (5.1) (9.0) (17.5)
At 31st December, 2017 R-F—tFFZA=+—H 274.0 85.9 172.9 144.9 49.9 727.6
Carrying amounts REE
At 31st December, 2017 R-E—tETZH=1—H 3345 529.4 39.9 123.1 93.3 1,120.2
At 31st December, 2016 REF=REFZA=+—H 342.8 5243 46.2 109.9 54.7 1,077.9

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

18.

19.

20.

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
18. Y15 ~ BB Rk (&)
3 T 2 R R i A R T

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of hotel property and leasehold land

and buildings shown above comprise: g
2017 2016
—E—tfF RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT EX- 3w
Properties in Hong Kong T 2 Y2 568.0 583.0
Properties outside Hong Kong FUBLSh 2 W2 295.9 284.1
863.9 867.1

At the end of reporting period, leasehold land and
buildings with carrying value of HK$21.2 million (2016:
HK$21.7 million) were pledged as security of the Group's

bank and other borrowings.

AR A - A4 B R AT S H At £ S
FRHR A (E A5 21.2 F BT (T — N4 ¢
21.78 E#TT) 2 S T T o

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FEHHE
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments comprise: AR B 2 TEAOAE AL 45
2017 2016
—E—+tHF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EHETT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong TSN B L 4.5 4.3
Analysed for reporting purposes as: F 2 H BT Z b
Non-current assets i B 4.4 4.2
Current assets ) & 0.1 0.1
4.5 4.3
GOODWILL 20. A8
2017 2016
—E—tF TE R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEWETT
Cost R
At 1st January s—H—H 134.1 124.3
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA S o Jog 2 ) - 9.8
At 31st December wt+—A=+—H 134.1 134.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1st January, 2016
Exchange adjustments
Additions

At 31st December, 2016
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2017

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1st January, 2016
Amortisation charged for the year

At 31st December, 2016
Exchange adjustments
Amortisation charged for the year

At 31st December, 2017

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2017

At 31st December, 2016

Other than the club memberships, which have indefinite
useful lives, the intangible assets are amortised on a

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
21. B EE

Computer Club
software  memberships Total
BiEEHS efasE st
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEHB T HHEHB T HEHBIC
AR
W FE—RF—H—H 12.8 8.4 21.2
[T 5 8 (1.0) = (1.0)
i 5.5 1.0 6.5
WEF—ARFFTH=1+—H 17.3 9.4 26.7
e 5 7 1.3 1.3
RoF—tFE+-A=+—H 18.6 9.4 28.0
2 BEREE
W T —NFE—H—H 1.6 0.9 2.5
R4 B AT 2 S 1.5 - 1.5
WZE—NETZA=+—H 3.1 0.9 4.0
e i, 3 0.3 = 0.3
A B 1Bk 2 1.8 - 1.8
WEF—LF T H=1+—H 5.2 0.9 6.1
BRMEE
WEoF—LF+ A =1+—H 13.4 8.5 21.9
RoF—AF+-A=+—H 14.2 8.5 22.7

TSR B30 T i A g

straight-line basis over the following periods:

Computer software

3-5 years TSR A

i i R A (B S PR AR IS0 > TR R

3E54E



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For impairment testing, goodwill at 31st December, 2017
were allocated to the following cash generating units.

BE-F—LE+A=+—HILFEE
22. EEZRERR

FETHEN - RoF—-EFE+ A
=t—BZEENSEEU T REELR

Consumer finance segment
United Asia Finance Limited
(/IUAF//)
SHK Finance Limited

Investment and finance segment
SHK
SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited
Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited

Corporate and other operations segment
Cautious Base Limited
(“Cautious Base”)

The recoverable amounts of UAF and SHK Finance
Limited under the consumer finance segment, SHK, SHK
Hong Kong Industries Limited and Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited under the investment and finance
segment have been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projection
based on respective financial budgets approved by
respective management covering a 1-year period at a
discount rate of 11.0% (2016: 11.0%). The recoverable
amounts of UAF, SHK Finance Limited, SHK, SHK
Hong Kong Industries Limited and Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited were determined to be in excess of
its net carrying amounts.

The recoverable amount of Cautious Base under the
corporate and other operations segment has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projection based on respective
financial budgets approved by Cautious Base management
covering a 5-year period at a discount rate of 3.3% (2016:
3%). The recoverable amount was determined to be in
excess of its net carrying amount.

Management believes that possible changes in any of the
above assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed their recoverable amounts.

7 o
Goodwill
5L
2017 2016
e e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT [ER- A
NS
i N A BAES A BR A
([ SE e 5 BA 5 1) 5.9 5.9
PR B S A R 2.7 2.7
8.6 8.6
S PN &AL Al
po B 104.9 104.9
B LB A RAF] 9.6 9.6
& SR A R
NG 1.2 1.2
115.7 115.7
A28 K FHoA ZETH 4056
Cautious Base Limited
([ Cautious Base ) 9.8 9.8
134.1 134.1

T A N A5 4 300 ) S I 6 5 AT B o 3
TR A R il B A 43 e 4 Tl 0 140 3
I B TR A BRAS A M S AR A A A
FR 2 ) B9 T W (] <5 % 49 AR 42 ki ) A 7
TE o wARIA TR DA B LR —
AE A BCTE B AR T LR 11.0% (- F—N
A1 11.0%) il A LR IR 4 TE ) o
SNBSS~ BRI A IR S B
L THE A IR F) & & S
7 PR 2 7 14 AT i o] e R A A o Ay A LA
H Z B -

A ZE K FHAZERS 73 5B ) Cautious Baseftd
AJ i [a] 4 RE AR GE I E A A o wERTE
77 2:4d i Bl Cautious Basess B L HER)
AR A B B R e T B %33 % (ZF— 0N
4 39%) il A S MER B TE ] o Al
iz [ 45 E AS A SE oy BB A LR T R o

EREAGE - LR E AT BE B Bk
538 AN B (o R A LA ) T i ] < R o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2017 2016
—E—+tF RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y
Listed securities (Note (i)) ETRESE (GERRG)) 11,915.8 10,589.2
Unlisted shares (Note (ii)) FE T A (GERA G 1,375.3 1,096.6
13,291.1 11,685.8
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —NEE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H T
Note (i): FERRG) -
Listed securities ETRESR
Cost of investment B A 3,997.5 3,987.6
Share of post-acquisition reserves R S 1% ft 7,962.1 6,641.3
Less: impairment W E (13.9) (9.8)
11,945.7 10,619.1
Elimination of unrealised profit L A 528 B i M) (29.9) (29.9)
11,915.8 10,589.2
Market value of listed securities, TR ETME
at quoted price PR AE 4,503.5 3,788.2

Management has reviewed the shortfall between the
carrying amount of a Hong Kong listed associate, TACI,
and the market value of TACI at the end of the reporting
period. The management considers that the value in use
based on discounted future cash flows of TACI is higher
than the carrying amount and the market value of TACI,
hence, no impairment needs to be recognised.

On 16th December, 2015, an indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group entered into the sale and
purchase agreement to acquire approximately 23.9% of
the total issued share capital of APAC, which is listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1104),
for a consideration of approximately HK$484.0 million.
On 29th February, 2016, the acquisition of APAC was
completed as all of the conditions of the sale and purchase
agreement were fulfilled. On the same day, APAC became
an associate of the Group as the Group has significant
influence over the associate. After the acquisition, the
Group further acquired an additional 4.54% of the
total issued share capital of APAC from the market for a
consideration of HK$47.9 million. In total, the Group held
28.44% of the total issued share capital of APAC as at 31st
December, 2016.

LG O HR A e A RR
B 9 R THD L LK 2 7 i 5 U R 9 i L2 [
MZERH o A HLERE R - R ZAFBIRAR
B e U ) {6 (R B PRAS R R %2
éﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁiﬁ#ﬁ%} o Rl - B ZE AR ol

W oFE—FHETH IS H » AREEZH
IR EME AT LB E ek > Mk
HEE B A YR (— [N S BT AR Tl 2 2
A > A ACHE - 1104) 2R BT RAL
23.9% > fRIEX1484.0H BT - A FE
—NFEH T ILH > BEE R R A K
3 B R > WO S R E R IR SE R o [F]
H > BE K& A4 A 48 ] 2 — [ W o
A o JEPR B AN A S LR R o

A 58 B S = TEAR > A AR A T i b
— g I R K G TR A TR E ST A 1 AH
9M5¢%7fwfﬁ479§%%ﬁﬁ & PEET
B REFR - NET+_H=1+—H
VA 0 KB 2R B TR 128.44% ©
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Note (i): (Cont’d)

During the year, the Group further acquired an additional
0.9% of the total issued share capital of APAC from
the market for a consideration of HK$9.9 million and
held 29.34% in total. On 16th November, 2017, APAC
announced a cash offer to repurchase shares which was
completed on 28th December, 2017. After completion of
the share repurchase of APAC, the Group’s shareholding
in APAC increased from 29.34% to 33.91% and the
difference between the Group’s share of the net fair value
of APAC’s identifiable assets and liabilities before and after
the change is recognised directly in equity.

Management has reviewed the shortfall between the
carrying amount of APAC and the market value of APAC
at the end of the reporting period. The management has
compared the carrying amount of APAC to the fair value
less costs of disposal of APAC, which was based on the
market value of APAC’s interest in its associate plus its
other assets and liabilities, and concluded that there is
no need to recognise an impairment allowance. The fair
value less costs of disposal has been used by management
in the impairment assessment of APAC as it reflects the
underlying assets value of APAC.

Note (ii): A MR Gif) :

Unlisted shares I b ety
Cost of investment B RA
Share of post-acquisition reserves A WS B A At A
Less: impairment B E

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st
December, 2017 are set out in note 53.

BHE_F-LF T A=+ —HIEFE
23. REE QT2 (F)

AEMRG) ¢ ()

FER > AREEUARMB.OH B oTE—F
TE T 35 B A BE K &R 2 50 B B AT AR 1
FIN0.9% > WA IR 29.34% o R F
—+tE+—HA+SH > BERERE RS
AL E BER > B T —BE+T A
AN H SER o iA 5E B EE A R A5 e B
1% > AL A R OK G TR 2 B iR 29.34%
HE TN 223391 % S A 4 (4] JE 4 55 K & Y5 ]
A B A S B AR I N T (B A 5 B R 4% 1Y)
R E P RS N TR RE o

(L VISR JUEHPN oV BTN < ¢
R AR TTE 2 R 22580 - L C
1% B A 9 R TR (L B 1 R R LM
A ) 22 R g )T AN B K R A E B
BRI 2 AR A B A HEAT L
B> & A A RS W - B
PRAR (Bl ) B PUAS A 25 3B B K S R
JEATIAELRT Al > PR 2% JH S i R R AT R
B EE -

2017 2016
—E—tF TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HE T
1,861.0 1,861.0
104.2 (66.9)
1,965.2 1,794.1
(589.9) (697.5)
1,375.3 1,096.6

AEEB —F—-LFEF_H=Ft—HZE
TN A R O B RES3 @
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates

The summarised consolidated financial information of the
Group’s material associates, TACI and SHKFGL, is set out

below.

(i)

TACI

BE_F-LFTA=+—HLEFE
23. REE QT2 (H)

(i)

The summarised consolidated financial information
below represents amounts shown in TACI’s
consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets and
liabilities of TACI are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements

(Note).

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Revenue

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
(expenses) for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Dividends received from TACI
during the year

TE) &
T E
AR
) 1

A

HH B B 23 W 2 Wi

ARAE 5 ik Al

AR H At A THT WA A
(%)

AR B 2 THT AL i
Fok

ARAE S HUR %Y
BB

ERBE QR ZEEMBERSRT

AR B EE R 8 W R RO A e AR
P 2 f e A R RS T 3T o

A B AR E RN R &

(Y &5 BB R (AR 98 7 8 A S i
AR H 2SN 2GR - REZE
B HE KA T R R A AR
BB R AR GEfR)

2017 2016
—B—+tF ZERNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERTT HEHIT
13,595.5 13,875.4
23,560.9 19,816.4
(6,096.3) (6,851.2)
(6,175.1) (4,789.2)
2017 2016
—B—+tF ZER N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERETT HE#E I
1,112.9 1,894.5
1,634.0 3,937.7
2,092.1 5,708.2
673.4 (1,113.2)
2,765.5 4,595.0
238.3 110.0
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates (Cont’d)

(i)

RE_E—LHFE+ A =+—H I
23. REE QT2 (F)

ERBE QR ZHEMBERBE ()

Note: The Group’s 48.66% interest in TACI gives the Group 48.66%

of the voting rights in TACI. As at 31st December, 2017,
the board composition of TACI comprised five executive
directors, three non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors, totalling twelve directors. Of
these directors, a non-executive director of TACI is also
an executive director of each of the Company and Allied
Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL”), and an executive director of
TACl is also an executive director of the Company. China Elite
Holdings Limited (“China Elite”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of APL that held the 48.66% interest in TACI) has resolved
that whilst APL’s direct or indirect shareholding in TACl is less
than 50%, China Elite will not, without prior public notice
required under applicable legislation, exercise its power as a
shareholder of TACI to seek to appoint another director to the
board of directors of TACI who is or has within the previous
twelve months been an employee or a director of China
Elite, its holding company or any subsidiary of its holding
companies.

TACI’s other three significant shareholders hold a total of
34.12% equity interest as at 31st December, 2017 and were
independent third parties from the Group.

The Group has considered whether TACI is a subsidiary
when preparing its consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2017 in view of the provisions
of HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and has
concluded that it does not have unilateral ability to direct
the relevant activities of TACI based on the above facts and
circumstances, and accordingly, the Group continues to
account for TACI as an associate.

The principal activities of TACI are property investment and
development in the PRC and are strategic to the Group’s
activities.

TACI (Cont'd) (i) K& ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated o BB BRI 22 BRAR 5 BB R
financial information to the carrying amount of Frp FTRERR A R ZhE 4 2 MR {E 2 3
the interest in TACI recognised in the consolidated R -
financial statements:
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZER—NE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A TS
Net assets attributable to KBRS
owners of TACI & FHE 23,425.3 21,513.2
Proportion of the Group’s ASEWIN K 2 2 R
ownership interest in TACI HE 1 LL A5 48.66% 48.66%
Share of net assets of TACI WA K 22 7 T (E 11,398.8 10,468.3
Goodwill ik 1.8 1.8
Adjustment on acquisition of LIS K LA
additional interest in TACI e A B (614.0) (614.0)
Unrealised profit adjustments oA 52 B Ui M| R B (29.9) (29.9)
Carrying amount of the Group's AREEAR Lt 2
interest in TACI RETE(E 10,756.7 9,826.2

SR ASEE A K 22 2 48.66%HE 35 T A% 4 ]
RG22 48.66% P EHME - R _-F—+L
HE+—H=+—H > REERGHLY
WATES - =R IEHATEE S S & ST
AT G AL T AR o TEi%
SERET . B REEPATERIR G
AR\ F] B A HUE (k) A BRA &) ([ 5
AHE ) K EHMRMAITES > MRE—
ZRHATERERBEARARNRITES -
China Elite Holdings Limited ([ China
Elite] » B HEZEMBAR - 54
K42 48.66%ME 4k ) dkik » BB A HhE
A TR 22 1 L B T R IR D i 50%
RiChina ElitefE RARTER LG & A
RRRI > A G AT AR 2 R R AR
71> FRBALS —BEHFMARLES
& > I %8 2 Jeni + 8 A BT ek
KYE1EChina Elite ~ HPEAA Al H 4
JBEZA AT Al B B8 2 ) )R B B 5 o

HoE—tEEFZH=+—H » X%
Hofth =4 F ERR G L5 A 34.12% %
W YR AREE B =5

AEERUEEE R —LFET A
=t —HILEEZ G MBEHREED
R 52 7 s 5 i o Y ) 2 1 O 9 [ A5 5 B
5 3R | 2 M0 S5 i R 222 15 Jog T )
O E] o WEFEJ bl S RS - R
A B T 2 BE 1 AT R 7R R 2 AR 3
B > L AR ARG K ZAE I
AIVN

KU 2 T3 EHS G iR P AT ) 3
B S - AR B AT R Y
@
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates (Cont’d)
(if) SHKFGL

SHKFGL is accounted for using the equity method.
The summarised consolidated financial information
of the financial performance for the year and financial
position at the reporting date represents the amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements of
SHKFGL adjusted by fair value adjustments made at

wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

23. REHE QR 2R ()

(if) W2 s A ]
Wb e

TR

the time of reclassifying SHKFGL from a subsidiary to

an associate.

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
(expenses)

Total comprehensive income

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in

SHKFGL is as follows:

Adjusted net assets of
SHKFGL

Group’s effective interest

Group’s share of adjusted net assets

Goodwill
Impairment (note 13)

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in SHKFGL

ERBE QR ZEHEMBERE ()

5 (o P A vk AR ﬁ’?

G AR5 EORHI 5 B 45 AT I 2 2
% Q/%é:\,h%iﬁ’z%‘émﬂ’]kfﬁﬁh%i‘%fﬁ
LR &5 B 2 MEHIR DL > M A FE R &
Fil £ ] g 2 W) =2
B nr R T E 2 A EE R -

2017 2016
—E—+F BN

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT HEWH G

) E 11,995.9 7,192.1
I & 1,827.7 1,534.2
i RER (5,805.9) (3,904.0)
B A fE (4,521.3) (1,400.6)
2017 2016

—2—tF T AHF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT HEW G

N 1,328.2 979.6
AT Y | 127.5 87.5

HAth 2 AT U 5

(Z ) 11.8 (16.3)
e 139.3 71.2

bt B s R AR AL < A
P 2 e B T (2 SR AR

2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT [EN: 2
ST 4 T4 1] 2 4

B EE 3,496.4 3,421.7
AR 2 R AR 30% 30%
7 A [ R A\ 45 o 2R S (L 1,048.9 1,026.5
P 607.7 607.7
IAE (FH5E13) (572.6) (680.2)

A A [ A ST 4 4 [
2 T g AR T {EL 1,084.0 954.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D) 23. REE AR 2 ()
Aggregate financial information of associates that are not BERTBEARZHENRNMBEREE
individually material
The aggregate financial information of associates that are R A R TR 2 T D Y B R B
not individually material is set out below. I o
2017 2016
—B—+tF A2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT HEEIT
The Group’s share of profit for 2 45 [ A AR 4 B
the year i ] 238.5 94.1
The Group’s share of other AL [ AL A 4 i
comprehensive income for the year At A T AR 77.8 16.7
The Group's share of total 255 [0 R Ao A A
comprehensive income for the year S THT AL i A 316.3 110.8
Aggregate carrying amount of the AREERZEBE AT Z
Group's interests in these associates 25 > I i A4 1,450.4 905.6
The Group has unrecognised share of losses of associates as ARSI 2 AR AR IEAG B R RN T
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEE T
The unrecognised share of losses N AR BB A
for the year JE5 18 (0.7) (0.1)
Cumulative share of unrecognised S ETENG R TR
losses 548 (26.0) (25.3)
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Unlisted shares
Cost of investment
Share of post-acquisition reserves

Elimination of unrealised profit

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

24. A

I _E T By
PR A
JREAG WS 152 £t

i A 5 B 4 |

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture at 31st

December, 2017 are set out in note 54.

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material joint venture

The summarised consolidated financial information in
respect of the Group’s material joint venture, Allied
Kajima Limited (“AKL"), is set out below. The summarised
consolidated financial information represents amount
shown in AKL’s consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets
and liabilities of AKL are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

The above amounts of these assets
include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The above profit for the year includes the
following:
Depreciation
Interest income
Interest expenses
Taxation

B EE
LB A
=N
B B A

DAL B IR
INIHH -
B kBl e%FEY

A

AR JEE i A1)

AR HoAth

2T ()
AR JEE A THT WAL A AR

[ RRARAE B i A1) B4
NHIFIH -

s

HLE WA

FIE 2

BLIH

ENT) 2R
2017 2016
—E—+tfF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
249.0 249.0
2,948.2 2,206.6
3,197.2 2,455.6
(33.5) (33.5)
3,163.7 2,422.1

AEER - —EFE+ A= —HME
HHB A AR RR K k54 -

EXREGERRAZEEMBENBL

AAE E E K488 Al Allied Kajima Limited

RS B BRI R O o

AR A I BRI AR R R AKLIY 45 A S
T (KRR V5 B 765 i YEE R A Y ) o 22571
ZARER o AKLZ ZES - B RAETIE
HE 25 A A

FEA AR AR o

2017 2016
—E—tfF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT [ER- 25
283.5 176.6
6,355.0 5,115.8
(292.2) (297.8)
(512.2) (537.5)
180.8 86.4

2017 2016
—E—+tfF SRR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
692.1 676.9
1,376.2 498.5
0.7 (4.7)

1,376.9 493.8
57.1 56.4

0.3 1.1

9.3 11.4

39.3 32.4




For the year ended 31st December, 2017

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material joint venture (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated
financial information to the carrying amount of the interest
in AKL recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of AKL

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in AKL

Share of net assets of AKL
Goodwill
Unrealised profit adjustments

Carrying amount of the Group's interest

in AKL

AKLZ & FE

AL R AKLZ B4 HE

R4t L)

JEAG AKLE 7E B H
P
TR B3R 5 ) o A

A ERAKLEE SR 2
HRTEI{E

Aggregate financial information of joint ventures that are

not individually material

The aggregate financial information of joint ventures that
are not individually material is set out below.

The Group's share of loss for the year

income (expenses) for the year

AL [ B A A A B2 R
The Group’s share of other comprehensive 74 [5] JE A5 2= 4F B HoAh

T ()

The Group’s share of total comprehensive 484 [H] JfEfil A 4F Ji

expenses for the year

EEJIEE

24. REE QAT 2R (H)

EXREGERRAZEFEMBERBL (F)

bt A A R B B B B R
v e B AK LAHE it - B {2 3640

2017 2016
N
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
BEAT H &G
5,834.1 4,457.1
50% 50%
2,917.0 2,228.5
0.1 0.1
(33.5) (33.5)
2,883.6 2,195.1

EBTEBEAZEE ARNMBERRE

RPN A iy Nl == /N < N
FHIUR o

2017 2016
—E—+tfF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEWHIT
(28.7) (55.3)

2.2 (1.5)

(26.5) (56.8)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following tables provide an analysis of financial
assets and liabilities of the Group that are measured at
cost less impairment and at fair value subsequent to initial

recognition.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
Equity securities listed outside

Hong Kong
Unlisted overseas equity securities
Unlisted overseas investment funds
Debt securities

Listed in Hong Kong

Listed outside Hong Kong

Unlisted debt securities

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

IftHESREE
Fil L2 A
BHUSMUIE E iz
ey

F oM AE S
F LM RS
i

Fil LTl
FHUSMIE L i
LT EH

REREMMTA -
T &
B EE

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

25. TREERES

7B T < P e B AR PR AS BRI R
BRI R~ HEERE > H

Hriin T35 o
2017
“E-tf
Fair value
AYEER Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
£ -4 EF=R  HANRAE st
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
83.1 - - - 83.1
213.8 - - - 213.8
- - 414 52.9 94.3
- 173.3 - 30.5 203.8
- 8.7 - - 8.7
- 17.3 - - 17.3
- 86.6 - - 86.6
296.9 285.9 44 834 707.6
621.0
86.6
707.6



ZE O A BRI M EE (48) 221
B2 _ZE—tLE+-A=+—HILEE
25. cREEREE(E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

2017
“E-tf%
Fair value
AYRE Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  impairment Total
-8 gt E=H  AANREE At
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million
BEET BEER BEAT BEET BEAT
Financial assets at fair value through EBBHFEATEE
profit or loss REZEHERE
Held for trading investments W HE
Equity linked notes gkl - - 335 - 335
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ¥ L Tir 2 A% 1,185.8 - - - 1,185.8
Equity securities listed outside EELSMUE LTz
Hong Kong ez 893.7 - - - 893.7
Exchange-traded funds listed in Fils L2 2
Hong Kong N8 %5 3.6 - - - 3.6
Over the counter equity derivatives ~ JF5MEARTE TR - 0.7 - 0.7
Forward currency contract A4 - 15.2 - - 15.2
Unlisted currency options 7 i W - 3.1 - - 3.1
Unlisted put right for sharesinan ~ J £z — B A
associate et R HE - - 1,053.0 - 1,053.0
Unlisted call option for club FEmizgirak
memberships Rt - - 109 - 109
Unlisted call option for shares listed s ASMILIE I it -2
outside Hong Kong 7 LRI - - 10.9 - 10.9
Contracts for difference EEAH - 8.6 - - 8.6
Unlisted bonds issued by listed AR
companies F Eifass - 18.2 - - 18.2
Unlisted bonds issued by unlisted ~ E_ETi/A %17
companies & Aiil-v:s - 1,000.9 - - 1,000.9
Listed bonds and notes issued by~ JE LTS T2
unlisted companies i R R - 302.0 - - 302.0
Listed bonds issued by listed AR
companies Lg% - 2,172.3 - - 2,172.3
2,083.1 3,520.3 1,109.0 - 6,712.4
Investments designated as at fE HIBR R IR
fair value through profit or loss AFEERRZBE
Unlisted convertible preferred and ~— —H3E LA %172
ordinary shares issued by an LR E R
unlisted company T - 117.3 - - 117.3
Unlisted convertible preferred shares  —Fi{3 FiiARI% 72
issued by an unlisted company ALY - - 17.1 - 17.1
Unlisted convertible bonds issued by L Ti/A 172
unlisted companies 3 LTt i - - 21.0 - 21.0
Unlisted overseas equity securities &2
with a put right for shares 7 LTI AE 5 - - 811.5 - 8115
Unlisted overseas investment funds 3§ | filesME &34 - 167.2 4,302.2 - 4,469.4
- 284.5 5151.8 - 5436.3
2,083.1 3,804.8 6,260.8 - 131487
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 3 2k E HIFFIE 2 40T -
Non-current assets BB B 5,067.2
Current assets MEEE 7,0815
12,148.7
Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BE_F—LF+_H=1+—HIFF
25. TREEREE(E)

2017
“E-t%
Fair value
NYER Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
-8 F=R EZR  RAHNRAEE At
HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEER BEER BEAT BEER BEAT
Financial liabilities at fair value BREEERATEE
through profit or loss REZERAE
Held for trading wE s Mg
Call options embedded inbonds it Af& REH 2
and notes ] 5 LI 7 - 49 - - 49
Futures and options listed outside A RASMIE L 2
Hong Kong Y& Rt 25 - - - 2.5
Foreign currency contracts BRmE - 52.8 - - 528
Unlisted overseas options J BT tE - 14 - - 14
Over the counter equity derivatives — B35MEAAT 4 TR - - 8.8 - 8.8
Stock borrowings N &S - 82.9 - - 82.9
Contracts for difference EERY - 12.7 - - 12.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as A28 H 02T £
current liabilities WHALK 25 1547 8.8 - 166.0
2016
“E-NE
Fair value
ATEE Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
F-# B BB AR it
HKS Million ~ HK§ Million  HK§ Million ~ HKS Million  HK$ Million
A&k A&k A&k AT A&k
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong itk LT 2 fit A 4 77.0 - - - 77.0
Unlisted overseas equity securities 3 F iR A% = = 422 52.6 94.8
Unlisted overseas investment funds ~ JF F i oMt &4 = 142.2 = 30.2 172.4
Debt securities BWHEE
Listed in Hong Kong E AN} - 186.4 - - 186.4
Listed outside Hong Kong BHELIAMELE = 8.8 - - 8.8
Unlisted debt securities L ifErES = 92.2 = - 92.2
Analysed for reporting purposes as A28 H AN A
non-current assets FREEE 77.0 429.6 42 82.8 631.6
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F—LHET_H=T—HILFE
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25. REERAGE)
2016
= L
Fair value
ATRE Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
F— G B RAIRREE At

HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS Million
AT HEET BT Ak AT

Financial assets at fair value EBERRRAVEE
through profit o loss REZSRER
Held for trading investments W
Equity linked notes esikapad - - 17.7 - 17.7
Equity securities listed R ANIPAI TS
in Hong Kong s 1,031.2 - - - 1,031.2
Equity securities listed outside SN bz
Hong Kong A s 345.0 - - - 345.0
Exchange-traded funds listed ik EHiZ 255
in Hong Kong REHRS 1393 - - - 1393
Over the counter equity derivatives — BpSMNEAfTE TR - - 04 - 0.4
Over the counter currency derivatives 35h& 8k TR - - 0.1 - 0.1
Forward currency contract &R = 52.9 = - 52.9
Warrants listed outside BiELSMuE EifTZ
Hong Kong Elg £ 07 - - _ 07
Unlisted overseas options T L s = 14 S = 14
Unlisted put right for shares F Lz —HBE AT
in an associate e fn a2 = = 1,052.0 - 1,052.0
Unlisted call option for club F bz ghas
memberships R - - 83 - 8.3
Unlisted call option for shares listed i AN | it 2
outside Hong Kong I LA - - 124 - 124
Contracts for difference ERAH - 23 - - 23
Unlisted bonds issued by listed IV (v
companies ¥ bt - 386.9 = - 386.9
Listed bonds issued by listed I/ (v
companies FHifES - 668.6 - - 668.6
1,516.2 1,132.1 1,090.9 - 3,739.2
Investments designated as at fair e RERAREL AR
value through profit or loss (315458
Unlisted convertible bonds issued ~ —Fi3 EiARIE#{72
by an unlisted company F LR - - 3.9 - 3.9
Unlisted overseas equity securities itz J L
with a put right for shares AN I - - 826.1 - 826.1
Unlisted overseas investment funds 3 F i sME & 54 = = 2,871.6 = 2,871.6
- - 3,701.6 - 3,701.6
1,516.2 1,132.1 4,792.5 - 7,440.8
Analysed for reporting purposes as: £ 24 H KB E 2 40 -
Non-current assets VLB G 3,650.6
Current assets B EE 3,790.2
7,440.8
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

Held for trading

Call options embedded in honds

and notes

Futures and options listed outside

Hong Kong

Unlisted overseas options
Over the counter equity derivatives
Over the counter currency derivatives

Stock borrowings

Contracts for difference

Foreign currency contracts

Analysed for reporting purposes as

current liabilities

ERREREAVER
BE,ERAE

HHER A e

B BRI
] G ] A
FHLIMEE Bz
Wekmik
L
BiSNBA T TH
SN TR
fEARBR

EERH

ARmE

RERARRTR
HHAK

BE_F—LF+_H=1+—HIFF
25. TREEREE(E)

2016
= L
Fair value

AT Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
- F F= BB At
HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
AT Ak f#kT AEkT Ak
- 10.5 - - 10.5
2.2 - - - 2.2
- 0.3 - = 0.3
- - 2.9 - 2.9
- - 1.9 - 1.9
- 75.7 - - 75.7
- 27.5 - - 27.5
- 4.8 - - 4.8
2.2 118.8 4.8 = 125.8




For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Available-for-sale financial assets are intended to be
held for a continuing strategic or long-term purpose.
Due to insufficient market information and a wide range
of possible fair values as input to measure the fair value
reliably, some of the unlisted equity investments are
carried at cost less impairment.

On the basis of its analysis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the equity securities, the Group has determined
that presenting them by nature and type of issuers is
appropriate.

Fair values are grouped from level 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair values are observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include input for the assets or
liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages external
valuers to perform the valuation for certain complex or
material financial assets and liabilities. The valuation
working group works closely with the external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the valuation model for those complex or material
financial assets and liabilities. For those less complex or
not material financial assets and liabilities, the Group
establishes appropriate valuation techniques internally to
perform the valuation. The valuation working group also
analyses changes in fair value measurements from period
to period.

Unlisted overseas investment funds included in available-
for-sale financial assets under level 2 are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Based on the
relevant agreements, the Group can require the relevant
investment manager to redeem the units at net asset value
by giving a written redemption notice. The fair value of
the unlisted overseas investment funds are provided by the
relevant investment managers.

BE - F—tLF+_H=1+—HIFF
25. TREEREE(E)

T B < AR AR R
JREER o ph A 0 40 00 T 85 A R AT R
[N /AR I CERDE TN €7 ST S
APEE > FELF B A B B R AR
BB AR

BRI RE S 2 R R R
AR 18 5 LABRAT AR B S 2 5 B T
N

TR e AT A M — B = o

BB AP R AR R AR A B SR
PTG i T 3 A i A (S ) AR o

B B HEERHR I RS — a2
fEAN - e B T B (RIMERS) B
e (RD B EARAT A ) B A BUBAS s -

SRR EE R R YR A IR AR SR AT 8
KGR EE A M ETIER
$ o

FEh AV E AR > A5 B m] A5
T 35 A B A5 g - e Sl 98 5 — A5 g A L
5 > ASE B WS MR A (B R R T 5 B
BOR e A E K B RUEAT AR E o A5 (E TAF
/NHSAN A (AR S A > B S
B EH R 4 A B A AP A (B BY  Sr
2 BT B A R o SR AR B B
WAERZ GMEERAMRNS > AEH
AR A S 78 2 A (BB Al LA AEAT A5 AE © £
%IW¢@%%%%WQ¥E@%§Z%

wt A A3k B < Rl PP SR AR Ok |
AN B & DR R 2 AP (T
& o MR ek o AL AT B — W
5 TR 114 1] 208 R0 S SR ] 45 8 I LA
FHEB R A o JE LT sMUERE 2N
SR (EL i+ B < B A H R A o

225



226

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Included in available-for-sale financial assets, there are
debt securities under level 2, the debt element of which
is recognised at fair value at date of initial recognition
and subsequent measurement with fair value change at
each reporting date recognised directly in equity until the
instrument is sold. As at 31st December, 2017, the fair
value of the debt element is approximately HK$112.6
million (2016: HK$287.4 million) which was calculated
based on the present value of contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the required
yield, which was determined with reference to instruments
of similar terms. The effective interest rates of the debt
element at 31st December, 2017 ranging from 3.19% to
6.81% (2016: ranging from 5.63% to 10.83%). The fair
values of the debt element have been determined by a
firm of independent professional valuers, Greater China
Appraisal Limited (“GCA”).

The option element of debt securities under available-
for-sale financial assets was classified as “call options
embedded in bonds and notes” under the financial assets
or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and grouped
under level 2. This derivative element is recognised at fair
value at initial recognition and subsequent measurement
with fair value change at each reporting date recognised
in profit or loss. As at 31st December, 2017 and 2016,
Hull-White Term Structure Model is used for valuation
of derivative element of certain perpetual bonds and
guaranteed notes. Significant inputs into the model were
mean reverting rate ranging from 0.00 to 0.01 (2016: 0.00
to 0.04), default intensity ranging from 1.08% to 5.20%
(2016: ranging from 3.80% to 8.70%) and short rate
volatility of 0.01 (2016: 0.01).

The fair values of bonds and notes under level 2 at the
reporting date were derived from quoted prices from
pricing services. The fair value of stock borrowings,
forward currency contract and contracts for difference
under level 2 at the reporting date were derived from
observable market prices of the underlying financial assets
or liabilities.

The fair values of level 3 financial assets and liabilities are
mainly derived from an unobservable range of data. In
estimating the fair value of a financial asset or a financial
liability under level 3, the Group engages external valuers
or establishes appropriate valuation techniques internally
to perform the valuation which are reviewed by the
relevant management of the group companies.

BE_F—LF+_H=1+—HIFF
25. TREEREE(E)

%AT@EH%E Rl e R A B AR A A
e Eﬁi’%iﬁ/\ﬁwmﬁﬁs H 4%/ 18
{ar@; MEfR S R 45 B H 2 A B (E
@JHJ@E%V%EW@“M s HEZ I AE
o R -F—tFE+—H=4+—H  EF
TR Z AN A A 112.6 F BT (—
E—I78N4E 1 2874 EWIC) - &%
FT R 2 Witk R AT BUAR IR & 4 i E 2 Rk
fﬁﬁmizfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% %ﬁzuﬁcﬁé%Jﬁ
SRR 2 TEEEE o EFH 0
FT—LFETFH= + EIZEIMIJE I
3.19%%6.81% (& —N4E : /+°F5.63%
%10.83%) 153’%%6}/\%1;{‘%1‘)6533&%1
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
25. TMEERER )

TREMERE =HEREMEEMGEZ

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The following table provides further information regarding

the valuation of material financial assets under level 3. LR o
2017
—E-tF
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Input values Fair value
HER % FTUBEBRARE BARBE DYEE
HK$ Million
BEET
Held for trading investments
BERZRE
Equity linked notes Monte Carlo Equity growth rate -0.44-0.86% 33.5
A A Simulation model MR
SR AR Volatility 2.12-6.71%
R
Risk free rate 1.23%
el ik
Unlisted put right for shares in an associate Option model Volatility 31.0% 1,053.0
T Ll — TR A R B v 1 MR U
Risk free rate 1.0%
2
Equity growth rate 0.5%
MR R %
Estimated equity value  HK$1,084.0 million
MeaEMEfSE  1,0840H BT
Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
RERERREREAVEEREL
THEE
Unlisted overseas equity securities with Market comparable Price to book ratio 1.06x 8115
a put right for shares approach and [jf) %
RGBT bR A R S option model Volatility 5.1%
T 55 Ok A Y e
Discount rate 2.1%
Equity growth rate 0.1%
s R
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* n/a n/a 4,302.2
F b S B Nl A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BE_F—LF+_H=1+—HIFF
25. TREEREE(E)

2016
N
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Input values Fair value
fhEr % UNGIE P VN ¢ d i AR WFEE
HK$ Million
FE#T
Held for trading investments
BERIRE
Equity linked notes Monte Carlo Equity growth rate -0.07-0.34% 17.7
A Simulation model IR
SR B Volatility 2.21-4.36%
e
Risk free rate 0.57%
S
Unlisted put right for shares in an associate Option model Volatility 41.8% 1,052.0
AN Pl -Gl T R e
Risk free rate 0.9%
kS
Equity growth rate 1.1%
Red R
Estimated equity value ~ HK$954.0 million
e L 9540 E T
Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
RERERERRENTER
BEZERMEE
Unlisted overseas equity securities with Market comparable Price to book ratio 1.23x 826.1
a put right for shares approach and 1)
SO E L LTSN A S option model Volatility 5.5%
T 55 Ok S Y R
Discount rate 1.9%
kS
Equity growth rate 1.5%
PEGHE R
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* n/a n/a 2,871.6
LML e ety A Iy
*  The Group has determined that the reported net asset values 2 AL E > Wk R TS JE BT BN E

represent fair value of the unlisted overseas investment funds.
The management believes that possible changes in the
input values would not cause significant change in fair
value of the financial assets and liabilities under level 3.

There has been no change in the valuation technique

during the year.

T 2 NTAHIE -

GRS W A T 500 7 fr
55— T A A TR IR
AT -

JAAAE BE PR BOAG BT 15 (A B -



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities under
level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Available-for-sale financial assets TS HEE
Unlisted overseas equity securities b
Held fo trading investments BERa%E
Fauity linked notes bles vk
Over the counter equity derivatives ST LR
Over the counter currency derivatives  B5b&Hsfiik TR
Unlisted putright for shares in A van LN
an associate Rttt
Unlisted call option for club memberships 3% i 2 & A &2 ik
Unlisted call option for shares listed FRIME LT fr
outside Hong Kong kLR
Investments designated as at fairvalue ~ KEARAFEERE L RE

Unlisted convertble preferred shares issued —fil [ i AR %172

by an unlisted company K LR
Unlisted convertible bonds ssued by~ F i ARE 23 Lil
unlsted companies BEL G
Unlisted overseas equity securitiswitha k(7B HEC 3 L il
put right for shares AR
Unlisted overseas investment funds K Eigi S
Financal liailitis held for trading BERG gz eRER
Over the counter equity derivatives SN TR
Over the counter curency derivatives — JSp&HARTE T A

BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

25.

TRHEERAEGE)

BERATEEF B T ZEMEE R afE
SRR :

2017
ZE-tF
Recognised gains or losses

ERRUEIER Balanceat  Unrealised

Other 31t gainor loss

Balance at comprehensive December ~for the year
Tst January income gy ER
H-A-B  Profitorloss At Purchase Disposal  =t-A  ABRUE
2568 BE  fEME R e P Bl
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
REEn ERET  RBEn  AEAr  EBEm  AEEn  BEER
422 - 0.9 - - 44 -
17.7 3.1) - 87.2 (68.3) 3.5 (40)

04 03 - - - 0.7 03
0.1 (0.1) - - - - (0.1)
1,0520 10 - - - 1,053.0 10
83 16 - - - 10.9 26

124 03) - - (12) 10.9 (0.3)

- 0.1 - 17.0 - 171 0.1

39 0.1 - 170 - 10 0.1

826.1 (14.6) - - - 811.5 (14.6)
28716 9227 - 066.5 (158.6) 43022 900.5
(29 (5.9) - - - (8.8) (5.9)

(19 19 - - - - 19
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F—tLHET_H=T—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25. TREERBE(E)

2016
“FpE
Recognised gains or losses
EEet Balanceat  Unrealised
Other 31st gainor loss
Balance at comprehensive December ~ for the year
Tt January income ‘2R e
f=H—=H  Transfer Profitorloss At Puchase  Disposal  =t—H  AEHkE
25t it BE 2mhe R i Va1 S
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
B ARl ARl OEbr OREx AR ek oEEx
Available-for-sale financial assets AfhESHEE
Unlisted overseas equity securities F LN A 397 - - 25 - - 4.2 -
Held for trading investments BERARE
Equity linked notes [GS i ES - - 0.9 - 18.6 = 17.7 09
Over the counter equty derivatives MRA TR 07 - 03) - - - 04 03)
Over the counter currency derivatives SAMEIAE TR 01 - - - - - 0.1 -
Unlisted put right for shares F Ll — A
in an associate Bebrebiiite 7070 - 345.0 - - - 10520 3450
Unlisted call option for club memberships 3 Lii € érdsRag it 93 - 1.0 - - - 83 (1.0)
Unlisted call option for shares listed outside ~ LAMBR L ifif32
Hong Kong F LR 29 - (135) - - - 124 (135)
Investments designated as at fairvalue ~ KEARAPEERERE
Unlisted convertible preferred shares issued — —fH 3 LA %12
by an unlisted company 3 E iR 267.8 = 0.1 = = (267.9) = =
Unlisted convertible bonds issued * ETAR STk L
by unlisted companies AR 7789 (775.0) - - - - 39 -
Unlisted overseas equity securifes with 8 tfaBitte 2 J i
aput right for shares AR - 7750 511 - - - 826.1 511
Unlisted overseas investment funds F LN 22868 - 435 - 3848 (352) 28716 4262
Financial liabilties held for trading KERZRECERERE
Over the counter equity derivatives SAMRARTE TR (402) - 373 - - - 29 19.6
Over the counter currency derivatives BRI TR 09) - (1.0 - - - 19 (1.0)

# On 10th December, 2015, the Group entered into a convertible

note agreement with an overseas unlisted company (“Issuer”) to
subscribe a convertible note in an aggregate principal amount
of US$100,000,000 issued by the Issuer, and entered into a
subscription and shareholders’ agreement with the Issuer and its
holding company, in respect of the exercise of the conversion right
under the convertible note agreement to subscribe for the Issuer’s
ordinary shares with a right to put back the ordinary shares to the
Issuer. During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Group
exercised the conversion right and the Issuer allotted and issued
100,000,000 shares at US$1 each, which represented approximately
4.55% of the enlarged issued and paid up share capital of the Issuer.
The put right is considered as an embedded derivative. The Group
designates the entire unlisted overseas equity securities with a put
right for shares as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

f R E R A E - AR E RN

HANE LT AT (T8 AN BT 2 A S HE A
100,000,000 3 JG 1) 7] 46 Ji S35 B 38 47 AT 3L
A5 SRR T R 5 SR A T (o P 40 R S R 1 R T
T e BCHE DA SR B AT A3 i GEEA [ 3R AT A
IE] 3t 5 % P M) > BRLEEAT N S L RE AR N
FIOL GBI L BRIk o B E N F+
HA="1—H IL4FEE > ARERAT IR > 21k
FEAT N A 1 3% o0 L 8 2% %547 100,000,000
JBE o A AT N AR K K BB AR 1 4
4.55% > sRITHERAE B — TEIR AT A T H -
B AR R E 2 L T v A B AR RS 2 B
$§§%%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁ&¥%ﬁ%ﬁ2$
Rl o



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

There was no transfer into or transfer out of level 3 in
current year. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of level 3 as of the date of the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tfF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT (BN
Financial assets at fair value through AR R A TE R
profit or loss B E
- Held for trading investments — e GG 6,712.4 3,739.2
— Investments designated as at fair value — — 5 7 £ #7538 18 #5 MR 4%
through profit or loss NS TEERE Z & 5,436.3 3,701.6
12,148.7 7,440.8
Loans and receivables under REAEREEE 2
non-current assets AR R I AR T
— Loans and advances to consumer —FANBAHS 5 P Bk
finance customers (note 26) R (f5E26) 2,322.8 2,190.8
— Mortgage loans (note 27) — BRI (M 5E27) 1,243.1 330.4
— Amounts due from associates (note 31)  — BE% /N 7l R K (MEE31) 284.8 257.4
— Trade and other receivables — E 5 e HoAth i s TE
(note 30) (Fi5E30) 505.8 507.3
Loans and receivables under WEARBEEZ
current assets B BN K T
— Short-term pledged bank deposit — FEHASRATHEA AR K 1.2 —
— Bank deposits (note 32) — SRATAF R (B E32) 787.7 1,257.7
— Cash and cash equivalents — & M EEEY
(note 32) (BfF5E32) 3,330.3 6,296.1
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 K H A EIGKIE
(note 30) (Fi5E30) 3,175.6 2,865.0
— Amounts due from brokers — RE AR 728.7 1,059.9
— Loans and advances to consumer — AN & 5 Sk
finance customers (note 26) B (M5E26) 6,840.8 5,469.5
— Mortgage loans (note 27) — AR (M E27) 877.3 282.7
— Amounts due from associates (note 31)  — B4/ 7 Rk (FftEE31) 233.8 121.0
— Amounts due from joint ventures — G5 NTF R
(note 31) (FfF5E31) 9.1 11.1
20,341.0 20,648.9
Available-for-sale financial assets AT e 707.6 631.6
33,197.3 28,721.3

BE-F—LE+A=+—HILFEE
25. cREEREE(E)
AT AR e A B B A o ARAEE

BRI B 5 | B0 4 2 U 0 s Ry
H R RR A Bl 2 =4

A B2 (B 4 AT A A AR 2 W T A
T
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period were as follows:

BE_F—LF+_H=1+—HIFF
25. TREEREE(E)

75 42 ) 4 AR S 0 R 22 R T
T

2017 2016
—E—+tF BN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A&
Financial liabilities measured at PS8 AN TR A
amortised cost =K
— Bank and other borrowings (note 38) — SRAT R H A A B (K EE38) 4,525.3 5,612.3
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R A AL O0E
(note 33) (BfF5E33) 246.7 181.8
— Financial liabilities for repurchase — [l Bt v T 2 < il A
agreements (note 34) (Pf5E34) 1,071.0 =
— Amounts due to associates — Rk Fl K IE 7.4 7.3
— Amounts due to joint ventures — REE )N A FKIE 0.1 0.1
— Notes issued (note 39) — OB TR (Fft5E39) 7,758.2 5,017.8
13,608.7 10,819.3
Financial liabilities at fair value 75 R 18 A WA AT (B 3
through profit or loss Z R R
— Held for trading —FHER G i 166.0 125.8
13,774.7 10,945.1

Transferred financial assets

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course
of business by which it transfers recognised financial
assets to third parties. In some cases where these transfers
may give rise to full derecognition of the financial assets
concerned. In other cases where the Group has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred assets.

The Group transfers financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety primarily through the sale of
debt securities with repurchase agreements.

Sales and repurchase agreements are transactions in which
the Group sells a debt security and simultaneously agrees
to repurchase it (or an asset that is substantially the same)
at the agreed date and price. The repurchase prices are
fixed and the Group is still exposed to substantially all
the credit risks, market risks and rewards of those debt
securities sold. These debt securities are not derecognised
from the financial statements but regarded as “collateral”
for the liabilities because the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of these debt securities. The
proceeds received on the transfer are recognised as
liabilities under “Financial liabilities for repurchase
agreements”.

EERESREE
AR IE# B R PRI S22 5 > 4RI
AR SR T =07 o e T
TEUUT - 5% 558 ] AE Bl 4 T 4% 1L e R
AERESRERE o FEHAMEIT > A5
PR B 5% 55 A 110 48 R o o JEL B B [ - )
AR P AR A R O R T

SR T T F 0 6 A T B e ) S
6 R T A 10 R A L TR ) < P o

Hh S % TS e 2 A 2 L o — T RE 2Rl
[e] Ry [ 524 h 7 300 e M 4% (o] oz 5
Fra— TR B EER S5 - [ EE
e AR ZZS O A
e 7 Y A8 KR 05 PR > i 3 B A (]
oo mRAEERE 1% s R 1 48
RER > JEF B [ ¥ > WG S AR b R AN
T BB R R A L TERE > HBRE BB
[ A | o SRS BT WSO HCRY P AR sk ZE AT [e
Fi i T Rl A T RERR B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BEZbLEFHA=1—HIL4EE
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25 TREEREEE)
Transferred financial assets (Cont’d) CHEESREE (&)
The following table sets out the carrying amounts of all RS AT A AL RERR A i A
financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in AR B B fE W R -
their entirety and associated liabilities.
At 31st December, 2017 R=EBE—+t&+=-H=+—H
Carrying
Carrying amount amount
of transferred of associated
assets liabilities
Analysed by liabilities type BEREEL HEEE  NetPosition
RABENIN REE ZREE e
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss
BRBHE
RAVEERE
ZEREE

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEWBT HEHBT HEHBT

Financial liabilities for repurchase agreements [ f T2 WA &

(note 34) (F&E34) 1,280.2 1,071.0 209.2
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting HEERMEERSERE
The disclosures set out in the tables below include N R I ERAEe E E e E A
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject H A A7 A 5 AT AR VR AR A 2 PR B
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar LA T BB U A R > ANem
agreement that covers similar financial instruments, T AL H A A BB IR I R N RS o

irrespective of whether they are offset in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions that AREFEF A TMAETLERYS » HAzH
are covered by the International Swaps and Derivatives B R IRATEEH] I B B b A A7 AR T H 1
Association Master Agreements (“ISDA Agreements”) % ([ISDA M ) BT s - N ISDA T i
signed with various banks. These derivative instruments FTAAHCEYRE A AR AT ~ A B B
are not offset in the consolidated statement of financial REATE > HlAS 52 [E H il 28 45 3k m) i il 38
position as the ISDA Agreements are in place with a FTRERHCEE O MERR I B30 > T a% 5174 T
right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency or FL S S5 A B IR LR K8 o

bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25 TREEREEE)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting (Cont’d) HHEREERSREE(E)
Financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, SEHEEH ~ T o AT AT A O b ek S
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar ol b e PR PR ) <8 Rl RS 7 I B AR AN T
agreements:

Related amounts not offset in
consolidated statement of financial

position
Grossamounts  Net amounts TRRGRT ﬁiﬁ%%
setoffinthe  presented in the AR
Grossamounts  consolidated ~ consolidated Cash
of recognised statement statement collateral
financial assets of financial of financial received/
and liabilties position position pledged

B Rea Rea Financial g/
SHEE  HEARRER B#RRE  instuments  BEAHE  Netamount
REEAE i1 2R $RIE i 5
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BET BET BET (245 [ 45 (2145

At 315t December, 2017 RZE-tE+ZB=1-A
Type of financial assets tHEERY
Financial asses a far value through BREARETER
profitofloss RHEREE 25389 - 25389 (161.1) - 23778

Debt securites pledged as colateral RIVEIEL i A
for financial liabilties for repurchase. & (&2 KA

agreements (note 34) 2tk (3E34) 1,260.2 - 1,260.2 (1,071.0) - 209.2
Type offinancial labilites THARRY
Financial liabilitis at fair value through BB &REATE(M

profitor loss Rz ERAR 161.1 - 161.1 (161.1) - -
Financial liablites for repurchase At T 2 28

agreements A 1,071.0 - 1,071.0 (1,071.0) - -
At 31st December, 2016 WEZ—REFZA= 1A
Type of financial asets SREERY
Financial assets atfair value through —~ EBHBEIRAVATBIE

profitof loss R ERGRE 14508 - 14508 38 - 14470
Amounts due from brokers EEWE N 10595 = 1,059.5 (111.) = 948.0
Type of financial liablites tRaEER
Financial libilties at fair value through B &ERRATATIB(E

profitof loss RAZGRARE 1153 - 1153 (1153) - -
Further details on financial risk management of financial <5 T E T MR < L B — 2D
assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 42. TR B k42

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

BHE_F-LF T A=+ —HIEFE
26. BAMBEFERR BN

FINANCE CUSTOMERS
2017 2016
—E—t5F RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE T
Loans and advances to consumer FLNBAHS 5 F B3k
finance customers P&

Hong Kong B 6,544.2 6,373.5
Mainland China ] A 3,282.7 2,193.1
Less: impairment allowance B B E A (663.3) (906.3)

9,163.6 7660.3
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 23 E B EZ 0
Non-current assets IE Vi Bl & 2,322.8 2,190.8
Current assets T 6,840.8 5,469.5
9,163.6 7,660.3
Movements of impairment allowance during the year were N BAE 2 BT
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—t5F TR
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H 8 I0
At Tst January h—H—H (906.3) (949.0)
Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 58 %% 17.7) 23.5
Amounts written off EHZIH 700.8 1,053.0
Amounts recognised in profit or loss A E 4 R 2 FKE (277.3) (873.6)
Amounts recovered Wz [e] SR TE (162.8) (160.2)
At 31st December At H=+—H (663.3) (906.3)

All the loans and advances bear interest at market interest

rates.
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
B A& BB 2 A

i S B BRI TG A AR, o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers
have been reviewed by the Consumer Finance division
to assess impairment allowances which are based on the
evaluation of collectibility, aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection statistics of
individually significant accounts or a portfolio of accounts
on a collective basis.

The following is an aging analysis for the loans and
advances to consumer finance customers that were past
due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired:

Less than 31 days past due B3 H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61%90H
91 to 180 days 91%180H
Over 180 days 180 H LAk

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers
categorised as unsecured and secured, are as follows:

At the reporting date, loans and advances to consumer
finance customers consisted of HK$8,881.3 million
unsecured (2016: HK$7,163.5 million) and HK$282.3
million secured (2016: HK$496.8 million). The table
below summarises its credit quality (gross balances net of
impairment allowances):

Credit quality FEEX
Neither past due nor individually Slfz 78 311 A1 |
impaired A

B B AR A

Past due or individually impaired

The amount and type of collateral required depend
on an assessment of the credit risk of the customer or
counterparty.

WE_F—CLFE+A=tT—HILEE
26. AMBEFERRBR(E)

FAN B 5 % 5 8 K % i o R N B 5 o
B > ST El PERTAG - B o AT S P
B (B3 8 B OB P SR IR AL
?%Hﬁ%%&i@&%&ﬁ%ﬁ) LARF A BBl (L
A o

DUTR £ 7 i i AR 2 48 39 (FL SR el (i 2 FA N
SRS 5 P K e BGR 2 BRlie  #

2017 2016
—Z2—+F AN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT [ER- 2
538.7 499.6

100.2 91.8

52.9 55.2

117.5 139.8

314 169.6

840.7 956.0

FANBA5 % 5 80 3R BRIy AR e Ay
A > 230

REEH > FAAMB RS &3 & #K
0,47 4B 4 P 38,8813 A M oL (&
— N4 1 7,163.5 A E s o) A IR E K
2823 H B IL (ZEF—/N4F £ 496.8 0 &
Wo0) o | RAMEH AR BV R (R AREE B
{E#) -

2017 2016
—e—tF T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
L L
8,266.4 6,686.6
897.2 973.7
9,163.6 7,660.3

P e AT S SBTRIAR T % 58 5 3 F
AR BBl B DL E o



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

The main types of collateral and credit enhancement
obtained are as follows:

— for personal lending charges over residential
properties; and

— for commercial lending, corporate guarantees,
charges over real estate properties, pledge of shares or
debentures over the borrower’s assets.

In general, the loans and advances which are granted
on a secured basis, are made to the consumer finance
customers with sufficient amount of collateral provided
by them. Management requests additional collateral as
appropriate in accordance with the underlying agreements,
and monitors the market value of collateral during its
review of the adequacy of the impairment allowance.

Estimate of fair value of collateral is based on the valuation
techniques commonly used for the corresponding assets at
the time of borrowing.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties
in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding loan balances. In general, the
Group does not retain repossessed properties for business
purpose.

In respect of the secured loans and advances to customers
with the carrying amount of HK$266.6 million (2016:
HK$419.7 million), the fair values of the collaterals of
such loans and advances can be objectively ascertained to
cover the outstanding amount of the loan balances.

The carrying amounts of the loans and advances to
consumer finance customers approximate their fair values.

BE-F LA+ A=T— B
26. A BEFERKR B (E)

JITRREHE AT ity 2 A5 B 568 46 1) E B A
—  EREERK > DMETYSEER &

—  EUREEMEE > DRSO - [ HE
PISEARAT ~ ey R B A5 RN B 1
FRAEA -

— R o I ORI ME R 2 R R B
Ao TAE T SR T R AR 2 FA B RS
BF o A LI G T TR IR B SRARABAH A 1)
at (F HH RO M - S g wd ol (L 438 2 15
FEHRS - BLEHEIT S BT E

A it PSR A& SR R — M
PR TR AR B B 2 W A (BT IR T R

AL J7 B A AU R - T
181 ) o AR R A 04
— T - AR R G B S A
B i -

IR TE (B £5266.6 F 80 (—F—784F ¢
419.7 H B IT) 2 A R0 E 5 S N K
M5 > AH BE TR Bk 2 44 2 A 1
(B ] B B e UBS ATk & B 2 R A

EEH o

FANFA 5 50 5 AR % Bk 2 BR (B B EL 2
PE(EARA o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

27. MORTGAGE LOANS

Mortgage loans
Hong Kong
Less: impairment allowance

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

T EK
A i
B IRAE A

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
27. RIBER

Ty B H BT Z A

Ui
TEEE

Movements of impairment allowance during the year were

as follows:

At 1st January
Amounts written off
Amounts recognised in profit or loss

At 31st December

—H—H
s KA
JA 18 2 e 8 2 SKOH

R+ZA=+—H

The mortgage loans bear interest at market interest rates.

The mortgage loans have been reviewed by the mortgage
loans division to assess impairment allowances in two
aspects which are based on the evaluation of collectibility,
aging analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgment, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection statistics of individually significant accounts
or a portfolio of accounts on a collective basis.

2017 2016
—E—t5F RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y
2,125.4 616.3
(5.0) (3.2)
2,120.4 613.1
1,243.1 330.4
877.3 282.7
2,120.4 613.1
AE N ISR e 2 S E A R

2017 2016
—E—+tF TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BN
3.2) (1.2)

14 1.0

(3.2) (3.0)

(5.0) (3.2)

AR BRI TG A R EH A

e Bkl $4m B A > AR RIR
HRF s IR P A6 2 BUR(E 2 SO 1
WA A TR 4% P A [ P A - RS 2
A % L ) I LA A (BB A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

27. MORTGAGE LOANS (CONT’D) 27. RBEK(E)
The following is an aging analysis for the mortgage loans PLTT 2 i ot AR € fa S99 F 40 3 B 2 %248
that were past due at the end of the reporting period but B MR AT

not impaired:

2017 2016
—E2—tF ZFNE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A #ETT
Less than 31 days past due w31 H 218.0 20.0
31 to 60 days 31260H 6.5 37.9
61 to 90 days 61%290H 4.1 3.0
91 to 180 days 91%180H - 0.1
Over 180 days 180H A E 8.8 -
237.4 61.0
The mortgage loans categorised as unsecured and secured, T 5 B0 Ry 2y SR AT B A KA - 2500
are as follows: I
At the reporting date, mortgage loans consisted of IR NS IR 3 2= VR T LT L=
HK$230.1 million unsecured (2016: HK$224.8 million) 230.1 H B#ETT (% — /N4 1 2248 H
and HK$1,890.3 million secured (2016: HK$388.3 W) KA K A EK1,890.3 A & s ot (—
million). The table below summarises its credit quality F—7N4F 0 388.3H B L) o N FRMERUH
(gross balances net of impairment allowances): 5B R (M BRAR I ) -
2017 2016
—2—tF ZERNE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT A E#ETT
Credit quality FEEX
Neither past due nor individually impaired  lf: 3 781 #H s {8 Il JEL 1,827.5 552.1
Past due or individually impaired 8 A AR P 292.9 61.0
2,120.4 613.1
The amount and type of collateral required depend on an E)?ﬁ%%&ﬁ%’ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%zg}fZ%Ej}ﬁl&’?
assessment of the credit risk of the customer. AL E DL E ©
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

27. MORTGAGE LOANS (CONT’D)

The main types of collateral and credit enhancement
obtained are as follows:

— for personal lending, mortgages over residential
properties; and

— for commercial lending, charges over real estate
properties.

In general, the mortgage loans which are granted on a
secured basis with sufficient amount of collateral provided
by them. Management requests additional collateral as
appropriate in accordance with the underlying agreements,
and monitors the market value of collateral during its
review of the adequacy of the impairment allowance.

Estimate of fair value of collateral is based on the valuation
techniques commonly used for the corresponding assets at
the time of borrowing.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties
in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding loan balances. In general, the
Group does not retain repossessed properties for business
purposes.

In respect of the secured mortgage loans to mortgage loans
customers with the carrying amount of HK$1,890.3 million
(2016: HK$388.3 million), the fair values of the collaterals
of such mortgage loans can be objectively ascertained to
cover the outstanding amount of the loan balances.

The unsecured mortgage loans include second mortgage
loans in respect of which the Group are not entitled
to the first charge of relevant mortgage properties. The
management consider that the second mortgage loans are
classified as unsecured loans due to the impediment in
repossession of the mortgage properties and the practical
difficulties to ascertain the residual collateral value after
claim by first mortgagee.

The carrying amounts of the mortgage loans approximate
their fair values.

The Group’s mortgage loans carried an average interest
rate of 10.15% (2016: 12.03%).

BE-Z—tFE+H=1T—HILFE
27. BIBER (&)

JITAREHS A iy B A B o i P 2 BRI A0
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—  EAEAEGK > LMETYIEEE - &

—  ERPEMEE > DUEHEY SR -

— R o DAL ERR 0 1 O
Rt BA RS IEMMES - E5
Jig A 8 e B SR AR A B W sl A1 b AR
R o ST g A ol (B A58 M 1 AL IR - B
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AT it PRSI A& SR B — M
P TR AR B S 2 W A (BT IR T R

AL J7 B A R R - T
188 ) P o A A £ 04
T - AR R G B S
Hi i -

WA THEERE S 2 EmE 5 1,890.3
HE®BIG(CE /N4 388.3H M)
Z A I E BN 2 RE R I
0 & 2 o8 B AE T B E 7 2 DAGS A5 &
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SESC R 2 F 4 SRR IR Eh AR
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28. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities of the Group recognised and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

®WEZT—LEF A=t —HIERE
28. ELEFIIE

AR B A A T BB A AR T e RR Y 22
EIEBUIHE 2 I A (DL RARBR S B U0 T

Accelerated Undistributed

fax  Revaluation Provisions earings

depreciation of and  Unrealised  and others
& assets  impairment gain A2K  Taxlosses Total
BENE  BEER BREREE ARRLE BAREE  RERR it
HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
Al ARk BEEC  FEEr ARl Al Ak
At st January, 2016 R=F—RE—A—H 2415 35.7 (635.4) 68.7 27 (83.5) (370.3)
Bxchange adjustments SRR - (0.6) 37.6 (4.0) = 0. 33.6

Disposal of subsidaries and HERBAR R

joint venture - = (3.0) = = = = (3.0)
Recognised in profitor loss B 116 9. (1303) 94) (27) 10 (1207)
At 315t December, 2016 R-Z=AEF A= 4—H 253.1 412 (728.1) 55.3 - (81.9 (460.4)
Bxchange adjustments SRR - 07 (419 48 - 03) (672
Recognised in profitor loss B 89 1) 394 (4.0) 02) (8.6) 334
At31st December, 2017 R-E—tETZR=1—H 262.0 39.8 (730.6) 56.1 (0.2) (91.3) (464.2)

For reporting purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the underlying subsidiaries.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities AR HER A B 1
Deferred tax assets AR HEF A

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unrecognised deductible temporary differences of HK$5.1
million (2016: HK$5.2 million) and estimated unused
tax losses of HK$1,749.9 million (2016: HK$1,993.7
million) available to offset against future assessable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$526.7 million (2016: HK$473.5 million) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$1,223.2 million (2016:
HK$1,520.2 million) of losses due to the unpredictability
of future assessable profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses included a sum of HK$11.2 million that will expire
during 2019 to 2022 (2016: HK$1.5 million will expire
during 2018 to 2021).

Hitkd BT S o & TIEEBUIHEE XA
L A A I PR JB 2 RIS o DL S AR SR
LB BT AR A A SR TR B 0 -

2017 2016
e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
EL YL
185.4 192.1
(649.6) (652.5)
(464.2) (460.4)

AIREHAAK > AN M 2 KRR T A Iy
EHRS A BT (CFE N (520 B
W50 S n] K B A AR RE SRR Uk A 2 AS R R
B BEE 18 1,749.9 A miE T (—FE N
4F 11,9937 H #on) o HA 5267 H
B L (N4 1 473 5 Bl I0) 2
bl s R W RR AR A B TR B o IR K RE
TE A2 JRE SR B ek AR > WO RE R AR R
1,2232H #E o (. F—754 1 1,520.2
HEW L) BERZIELEHRIEEE - RiER
BIEERERESR - 2 —F
ERENH 2 3RIE11.2 3 B (FE—N
L VAT N S N | ¢
TE1.5H B#TT) ©
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D)

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from
1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$1,026.5 million at the end of the reporting period
(2016: HK$788.1 million). The taxable temporary
differences have not been recognised as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

There were no other significant temporary differences that
are not recognised arising during the year or at the end of
the reporting period.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND OTHER
INVENTORIES

i a7/ ES
HAtrfr &

Properties in Hong Kong
Other inventories

All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

In 2017, the use of certain of the Group’s properties
previously held for sale with a carrying amount of HK$44.1
million (2016: Nil) was changed, evidenced by the
properties being rented out under operating leases during
the year and were therefore reclassified as investment
properties.

At 31st December, 2016, the Group changed the purpose
of the freehold property outside Hong Kong, being a
property in USA, with a carrying amount of HK$135.1
million from the purpose of held for sale to the purpose of
held for capital appreciation or rental earning or both and
was therefore reclassified as an investment property.

At 31st December, 2016, the carrying value of properties
held for sale pledged as security of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings amounted to HK$44.1 million.

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

28.

29.

IEERIR (4])

FRAEE P B A 2 TSRS - H B /4 —
H—H AL » ZE R A B a2 = r 45 36k A1
BRI B A TR o AR IR >
4 el o 0 T J 2 R ) B i R B ey 2
%H1,026.5 A B o (. F— 754 : 788.1
B EW L) N A MBS IR PR R R AR
TEBEAG o PR A A5 42 18] W] 2 1) 435 [m] B b 22
IR T R 2 RE RT BEA A & AE T L
B[] > [ b SIS e R L [ PR 22 o

AR B R IR > A R AR 2
KR 2278 o

FHEMERHMEFE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZENE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
- 44.1
0.2 0.3
0.2 44 .4

JIA 1 5 ) S A B 5 B 1 (P
IR AHR o

W E L H T A E 2 AR A 5
A4 1TH BTG (CE N F ) 2 FEE
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HYZE o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. EZRHEMEBWRIEA

2017 2016
=t RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
Secured term loans A AT A B 2,223.4 2,671.9
Unsecured term loans IHCH A B Bk 1,322.2 393.5
Less: impairment allowance W IREIR A (87.3) (0.4)
3,458.3 3,065.0

Trade receivables—accounts receivable JEWE 7 ik — 2R A

from customers EF 2 IR 48.5 36.8
Less: impairment allowance B WA (1.1) (0.4)
47 .4 36.4
Guarantee and consultancy fee receivables U {75 £ K Jifi [ 2 0.5 1.5
Payments on behalf of customers* RE ALz 6.3 59.4
Less: impairment allowance W IREIR A (6.6) (56.1)
0.2 4.8
Notes =g - 147.4
Other receivables H At JRE SRR
Deposits 74 58.8 53.8
Others HoAth 116.7 64.9
175.5 118.7
Trade and other receivables at FEHE S AT IR 2 8 5 e
amortised cost Ho At g Wi K TH 3,681.4 3,372.3
Prepayments TEA 3KIA 36.1 46.3
3,717.5 3,418.6
Analysed for reporting purposes as: w2 E R ETEZ T
Non-current assets FET B G = 505.8 507.3
Current assets it B A 3,211.7 2,911.3
3,717.5 3,418.6
*  Payments on behalf of customers represented payments made by the * ARE AR d1R 5 F R R IR AR B AT RS TR
Group to reimburse the beneficiaries of the guarantees (“Holders”) Z I‘Eﬁ@?ﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%’ﬂlﬁ > ASE A K DA ) 95
for losses the Holders incurred because the customers failed to 2 Z s NTHA N D EAHRE AR tEE 2
make payments when due in accordance with the term of the Bk o

corresponding debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 30. EZ R HEMEBWRRIE(E)
The following is an aged analysis of trade and other PAF B IR & H 2 8 5 B F A RE GR IR AR
receivables based on the date of invoice/contract note at PEs A A BE B IR 2 AR AT

the reporting date:

2017 2016
—E2—tF ZFENE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A #ETT
Less than 31 days PIA3TH 27.7 36.3
31 to 60 days 31260H 10.6 7.9
61 to 90 days 61%290H 6.5 6.2
91 to 180 days 91%180H 4.0 1.4
Over 180 days 180H EA E 0.8 7.9
49.6 59.7
Term loans and trade and other S SRR B 2 A B R L K
receivables without aging* E Gy B FHAh R ik TR * 3,726.8 3,369.5
Less: impairment allowances W R (95.0) (56.9)
Trade and other receivables at TS A SN IR o I
amortised cost oA B Wi 3,681.4 3,372.3
2 No aging analysis is disclosed for term loans financing, as, in * EHRERS - BN IE SRS ET Y
the opinion of the management, the aging analysis does not give MRS 7 BT B FEAN K o [ 0 Sl 4 8 A 0 5
additional value in view of the nature of the term loans financing B IRB AT
business.
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The gross amount of impaired receivables at the reporting
date and the movement of impairment allowances during

the year were as follows:

At 31st December, 2017
Gross amount of impaired receivables

Individually assessed impairment
allowances
Balance brought forward
Exchange adjustments
Amounts written off
Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Balance carried forward

Net carrying amount of impaired
receivables

At 31st December, 2016
Gross amount of impaired receivables

Individually assessed impairment
allowances
Balance brought forward
Exchange adjustments
Amounts written off
Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Balance carried forward

Net carrying amount of impaired
receivables

R=B-t#+-A=+-H

AR

At
40
ATk L
HE 5202
R
T i 2 2 FOR

AT

CHERIEIRL
e 5+

REF—=AF+ZA=F—H
A RGO

R At
it
kL
HE A 4
i 508
MBS HERR 2 FOR

AT

ClEREEL
R 5

®E-E—EF A=t —BIHEE
30. EZREMEWEE)

TS S A ol R S TR A B 4 T (L

B B R -
Trade Other

Term loans receivables receivables Total
BHER EREZERR HtEkFTE st
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEHBT EF-Yi EFY EF
125.1 2.9 6.8 134.8
0.4) 0.4) (56.1) (56.9)
- - (2.0) (2.0)

- - 71.5 71.5
(86.9) 0.7) (20.0) (107.6)
(87.3) (1.1 (6.6) (95.0)

37.8 1.8 0.2 39.8

2.0 1.8 60.9 64.7

(95.9) 2.7) (17.0) (115.6)

- 0.2 3.1 3.3

59.7 - 12.7 72.4

35.8 2.1 (54.9) (17.0)

(0.4) (0.4) (56.1) (56.9)

1.6 14 4.8 7.8
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30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

Impairment loss on trade receivables, term loans and other
receivables is recognised in profit or loss after review by
the management of the relevant group companies, based
on the latest status of trade receivables, term loans and
other receivables, and the latest announced or available
information about the underlying collateral held.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other
receivables that were past due at the end of the reporting
period but not impaired:

Less than 31 days D31 H
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61%90H
91 to 180 days 91%180H
Over 180 days 180 H A 1

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables at
amortised cost approximate their fair values.

Further details on financial risk management of trade and
other receivables are disclosed in note 42.

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
30. EZREMEWEE)

AR IR 4 T W) 2 B LI U R 5 R
AR~ A B L At B i R T Y 15 L AR
(R4 B B2 5y MR TEL ~ A7 300 B 2 L A g
WK T F) R 17 DL B e T 2 A A 21 9 A
R KA ot ) DR ) 2 B 1R 4R 4

]

PR ARk i R 2 B (8 e i (e 2~ &
5y B AR CR A 2 AR 34T

2017 2016
—Z2—+F RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT [ER- 2
13.5 10.6

5.3 5.2

3.0 3.7

0.4 2.2

- 0.1

22.2 21.8

e il S AR 51 B 2 B 5y T HL A B AR IR Y
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT 31. B¢ QAT REE AR

VENTURES

(i) Amounts due from associates

Advances
Less: impairment allowance

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Gross amount of impaired advances
to associates

Individually assessed impairment
allowances
At Tst January and
31st December

Net carrying amount of impaired
advances to associates

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

() BELTRK

2017 2016
—2—tHF ZEH—NAF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H H T
K 535.7 395.5
W W E R (17.1) (17.1)
518.6 378.4
£ 23 H W E 2 08
FEE) &= 284.8 257.4
T 233.8 121.0
518.6 378.4
Wi N 7 A I (E A
HaEH 17.3 17.3
18 51 54
WA
W—H—H X
wt+—H=+—H 17.1) (17.1)
il /N )
B B T Y 0.2 0.2
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31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (CONT’D)

(ii) Amounts due from joint ventures

Advances
Less: impairment allowance

Analysed for reporting purposes as
current assets

Gross amount of impaired advances

to joint ventures

Individually assessed impairment
allowances
At 1st January

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Disposal of amounts due from
joint ventures

At 31st December

Net carrying amount of impaired
advances to joint ventures

The impairment is recognised when there is objective
evidence of impairment (such as unsustainable
operating loss) after the Group’s evaluation of the
collectibility of amounts due from associates and joint

ventures.

Further details of amounts due from associates and
joint ventures are disclosed in note 48.

B IR A A

T ¥ E B

HESEN A

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

31. BEARARAGEQARARA(E)

(i) SEQARK

2017 2016
—E—t5F RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y
9.1 11.1
9.1 11.1
- (39.0)
A f R 2 A - (1.0)
- 40.0
H _ _
T (B B R T VL - =
AEBESHEFTMBE AT REEA

R R AT i [ R SN A R R
({5 5 A AR e 4R ) BEUS A I (ELIRS 7

R -

NSNS NGV i

THHL 748



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

32.

33.

BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash SRATHBR S B
Fixed deposits with banks with a term A=A REIZ
within 3 months SRATEBIFF K
Cash and cash equivalents Bl M Bl S5 EY)

BHE_F-LF T A=+ —HIEFE
32. SRITEN  RERREEEY

Fixed deposits with banks with a term A A AR A REH

between 4 to 12 months SRATE BB

The carrying amounts of bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

Further details on financial risk management of bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in note

42.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016
=+ RN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT [N N5
2,023.1 2,585.6
1,307.2 3,710.5
3,330.3 6,296.1
787.7 1,257.7
4,118.0 7,553.8

AT ~ Bl R B AR E ) 2 e {6 B
HAPEEME -

AT Bl KB 5 EY 2 & MR R
BRI EOR B 42 -

33. EZREMENTE

2017 2016

—B—tF TR

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT HEWIT

Accounts payable to customers JEAT % 5 R R 5.5 4.8

Deposit received Btk 4 2.0 2.0

Other accounts payable At AR K 239.2 175.0
Trade and other payables at TS A SN IR 2 B 5 I

amortised cost FoAth A5 3T 246.7 181.8

Accrued staff costs and other accrued EATE T A &
expenses FoAth e =T 22 216.7 195.1
463.4 376.9

249



250

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other
payables based on the date of invoice/contract note at the
reporting date:

WE_F—LFE+_H=1t—HI4E
33. B REAMEMNKEE)

AR TR &5 H 2 B 5 B FLAtRE A A AR
PRI B R R H R 2 BRI AT -

2017 2016
—E—tF TE R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT A E T
Less than 31 days/repayable on demand ~ “ji*31 H /it B3R Ry 35 46.7 43.1
31 to 60 days 31260H 8.8 9.4
61 to 90 days 61%290H 9.2 8.5
91 to 180 days 91%180H - 1.8
Over 180 days 180H A | 0.1 0.9
64.8 63.7

Accrued staff costs, other accrued S SEHR S 2 EAT B T RRAS

expenses and other payables FHAt RE R 22 1

without aging At AT ZIH 398.6 313.2
463.4 376.9

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables at
amortised cost approximate their fair values.

34. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS

S A S AR 2 B ) T LA A R T R
T B PHE (AR A

4. OEHBETZ2SRMEE

2017 2016
—E—+F BN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
Analysed by collateral type: FEARA IR A
Debt instruments classified as: &% TEHEA -
Financial assets at fair value A1 R RAR T E(E
through profit or loss B 4 Al 1,071.0 -

As at 31st December, 2017, debt instruments which are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss with carrying amount of HK$1,280.2 million (2016:
Nil) were sold under repurchase agreements with other
financial institutions. All repurchase agreements are due
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.
Details of the arrangement are set out in note 25.

MoZE—LETZHA=Z1—H > B A
W IR A T EEREM 2 SRS E 2
HRTAI(E £51,280.2 F BSHE IC (- —/N4F ¢
) 2 g T H B R 452 B Ath A A5 AR A 2
] Bk th B o T A I B W R 2 A R s
AHFH 248 H AR o 5% BEREIR R K
5F25 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
Number of
shares Value
RHEE BE
HK$ Million
A EH#ETT
Issued and fully paid: EEAT RARE ¢
At Tst January, 2016 W _E—NF—H—H 178,252,118 2,221.7
Shares repurchased and cancelled S ] B S A7y (1,432,000) -
At 31st December, 2016 and MRoE—NE+_H=1+—H
1st January, 2017 K _E—-LHFE—H—H 176,820,118 2,221.7
Shares repurchased and cancelled S ] B SR A7y (1,066,000) -
At 31st December, 2017 W oFE—tE+ A =+—H 175,754,118 2,221.7
During the year, the Company repurchased 1,066,000 RN > AR R B 2SS B 5 [ 1,066,000 15
shares (2016: 1,432,000 shares) of the Company through (. F—754 : 1,432,000/%) A & Ay >
purchases on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate BB B52. 58 E#E T (ZF— N4
consideration of HK$52.5 million (2016: HK$57.3 million). 57.3E #EWIC) o rA R EREREZE
All the shares were cancelled after the repurchases. AEEH o
Further details of the repurchase of shares are disclosed in A ] ] B 3 4 7 — 2B R A R A A Rk
the section “Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares” in FrEr T R o e el iy | — i
the Director’s Report of this annual report.
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

36. ANALYSIS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 36. HEftt2EWZS (B2H) 20

(EXPENSES)
Non-controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests
FARRRER FERER
Property  Investment Share of
revaluation  revaluation Capital and net assets of
reserve reserve  Translation other reserves Accumulated  subsidiaries
I k& reserve BAR profits FEEHEAR Total
Efffie  EffRE  EXRGE  HtRE  ZWER BEE #a
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
Fékr  EEBC AR ARk AEEc ARl BElkx
For the year ended BE-E-t5t-R
31st December, 2017 =t-HLEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets W fitHiE 2R &E - 385 - - - 6.2 447
Exchange differences arisingon {7 BN ERSIRIR
translation of foreign operations i L 2 B £H - - 120.2 - - 3454 465.6
Share of other comprehensive Rl A
income of associates Hb 2 1.1 235 280.4 - - 103.1 408.1
Share of other comprehensive JEff A& AT
income of joint ventures Flb s - 09 0.1 0.2 - 13 25
11 62.9 400.7 0.2 - 456.0 920.9
For the year ended BEZZ—NEZRA
31st December, 2016 =t—HIHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets W fitHE 2R EE - (22.5) - - - (13) (23.8)
Reclassification adjustment on TR A ] B
disposal of subsiclaries EEilEE L - - 0.1) - - - 0.1)
Transfer of revaluation surplus TR 7l
upon disposal of subsidiaries BREf RS - (43) - - 43 - -
Exchange differences arisingon 47 HipAM R IRE
translation of foreign operations Tl 2 [EH £ - 0.1 (123.8) = = (3680)  (491.7)
Share of other comprehensive TElGR A
income (expenses) of associates  FHfit ATl () - (997)  (3104) 149 - (1341)  (5293)
Share of other comprehensive A E A
income (expenses) of joint ventures  Fflt 4 Tilias (%) - 0.6) 2.0 03 = (15) (3.8)
S0 @36) 152 43 (5049 (1,0487)




For the year ended 31st December, 2017

37.

38.

RESERVES

Property revaluation reserve
Investment revaluation reserve
Translation reserve
Non-distributable reserve
Capital and other reserves
Accumulated profits

Dividend reserve

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank loans
Other borrowings

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

Bank loans are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year
More than one year but not exceeding
two years
More than two years but not exceeding
five years
Bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are repayable as follows:
Within one year
More than one year but not exceeding
two years
More than two years but not exceeding
five years

Other borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within one year
Over five years

Less: Amount repayable within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

BE - F—tLF+_H=1+—HIFF
37. f#E
2017 2016
—EB—+tF TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEETT H # T
YIEE AN 245.5 244.4
P& EAG 238.9 176.0
[ ba (el g 110.1 (294.9)
FEQLIR Bt 5 55.2 55.2
A K HAh ke (6.8) 31.5
LSyl 21,791.8 18,997.3
Jis B feti it 413.0 327.1
22,847.7 19,536.6
38. BITREMEE
2017 2016
—E—+fF TE—NAE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT H T
RAT R 4,490.3 5,553.3
H At & 35.0 59.0
4,525.3 5,612.3
B 5
s 990.0 840.8
S A 3,535.3 4,771.5
4,525.3 5,612.3
SATE AR T ¢
%ﬁjzﬁ%{:aﬁﬁjz EW 1,752.9 2,004.9
—AELL FHAN
4 1,395.8 1,753.4
PAE DA _EAE R AR
FLAE 309.6 1,074.2
HAEEORAER RS2
SATEFAEEIR T ¢
—4EN 1,018.0 260.8
—AEDL P HA AR
4 14.0 450.8
[N ERN Y]
FLAE - 9.2
4,490.3 5,553.3
E%F%Z% SR
Al - 24.0
A A 35.0 35.0
35.0 59.0
4,525.3 5,612.3
W JER— N E R
B A it Bl B A 2 I (2,784.9) (2,749.7)
— AR B W 2 F0E 1,740.4 2,862.6
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F—LF T _HA=T—HILFE
38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 38. SRITRHAMEE ()
The Group’s bank loans and other borrowings that are A DI T A S 2 BHESIME 2 SR T B
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars K HAUEEFN AT -
are set out below:
2017 2016
—F—tF ZEF—NE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A #ETT
Australian dollar ot - 24.1
US dollar X JT 206.5 424.8
British pound Y 137.0 -
343.5 448.9
Further details on financial risk management of bank and SRAT S HABAE B 2 S Bl E R o H 2 i — 2D
other borrowings are disclosed in note 42. FETE R M RE42 -
Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank AN B 75 SRAT I HAAE SR 2 B E IR
and other borrowings are set out in note 47. R E47 o
The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings SRAT B HAb A B 2 R T R B FL T (B A
approximate their fair values. % e
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE
39. NOTES ISSUED 39. ERITER
2017 2016
=t TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
US dollar denominated notes (“US$ Note”) 2 nZE4E ([ 25 124 |)
6.375% US dollar denominated notes A E—LAE LA 2
maturing in September 2017 6.375%FK LR E
(“6.375% Notes”) ([6.375%224% 1) - 1,777.9
3% US dollar denominated notes maturing A —ZF—L4F | H#iHz
in December 2017 3%FETLEHE
(“3% Notes”) ([3%2242 |) - 464.5
4.75% US dollar denominated notes AT FE T —AER AR
maturing in May 2021 4.75%F TR
(“4.75% Notes”) ([4.75%2Z42 |) 2,501.7 2,225.5
4.65% US dollar denominated notes W E __ENARIZ
maturing in September 2022 4.65%F L IE
(“4.65% Notes”) ([4.65%24% ]) 4,280.3 -
HK dollar denominated notes 5T R
2.8% HK dollar denominated N E— N\NFE+—H
notes maturing in November 2018 B2 2.8%HE TR
(“2.8% Notes”) ([2.8%2242 |) 448.2 -
Renminbi denominated notes PNERY s
(“RMB Notes”) (T ANR¥EERE )
6.9% Renminbi denominated notes A F— ) LEH AR 2
maturing in May 2018 6.9% N R
(“6.9% Notes”) ([6.9%2=4E |) 528.0 549.9
7,758.2 5,017.8
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 2R E BT T
Current liabilities i & & 1,063.8 2,261.6
Non-current liabilities FE T E) & fE 6,694.4 2,756.2
7,758.2 5,017.8
The US$ Notes were issued by Sun Hung Kai & Co. B B i 2 [ff & 2~ \] Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) Limited, a subsidiary of SHK, under a US$2 billion (BVI) Limited MR 182015 35 oI 44 B 2248
guaranteed medium term note programme. The US$ Notes BATEF BT T E O EYE o E o
are guaranteed by SHK. BREEIELR -
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

39. NOTES ISSUED (CONT’D)

On 11th September, 2017, under the guaranteed medium
term note programme, Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited
further issued US$550 million (including intra-group
holdings of US$4.4 million) 4.65% Notes (US$400
million at par and US$150 million at premium) for a net
consideration of HK$4,289.0 million. The 4.65% Notes
are listed on the Stock Exchange. The 4.65% Notes will
mature on 8th September, 2022. During the year, the
Group purchased part of the 4.65% Notes with a total
nominal value of US$4.8 million from the market at a total
consideration of HK$37.7 million. The nominal value of
the 4.65% Notes after eliminating the intra-group holdings
was US$540.8 million or equivalent to HK$4,228.0
million at the reporting date. The fair value of the 4.65%
Notes after eliminating the intra-group holdings based on
the price quoted from pricing service at the reporting date
was HK$4,291.1 million which was categorised as level 2.

On 20th November, 2017, under the guaranteed medium
term note programme, Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited
further issued HK$447.5 million 2.8% Notes at discount
for a net consideration of HK$446.7 million. The 2.8%
Notes will mature on 20th November, 2018. The fair value
of the 2.8% Notes based on the price quoted from pricing
service at the reporting date was HK$449.0 million which
was categorised as level 2.

The 6.375% Notes and 3% Notes matured in September
and December 2017 respectively and the outstanding
balance was repaid.

The 4.75% Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
nominal value of the 4.75% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings was US$323.5 million or equivalent
to HK$2,529.1 million (2016: US$290.2 million or
equivalent to HK$2,250.3 million) at the reporting date.
The fair value of the 4.75% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings based on the price quoted from
pricing service at the reporting date was HK$2,627.2
million (2016: HK$2,273.8 million) which was categorised
as level 2.

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
39. ERTEE(E)

MRoFE—LEA+—H > REBEEES
SEYEEE TR > Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI)
Limited #— 2 #817550 A # 36 JT ( @?ﬁ%
B HFE 244 H B T0) 4.65% 2 (%
ﬁﬁﬁmmﬁ%%ﬁ&f@ﬁﬁrmﬁ%
> fRAE R %E £ 4,289.0 A BB T o
4%Amﬁaﬁﬁxﬁiﬁ 4.65% 4%
A =R AR A NE B o ER > A
BT DR A48 H HEC
Z A 4.65% 0 BARAE 4377 B E
TC o FAEEEH > ASHNFRAE E R ERE 2 2B
1% > 4.65% 2598 2 1H {H £ 540.8 B B 350
B E 4,228 00 BV TC o INAEEH >
KEANBR L B A 2 B *ﬁ}%mf’f
RS T A A% 465°/om1f“2/\¥1§ﬁ7%
4,291.1H 8T » AN )

MR-F—LFE+—HZ+TH > RFEHR
AR EE1 TR E] > Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) Limited AHTsRE#E— 03517447 5 5
BT 22 8% EFHE 446,78
BT © 2.8% =B A N —F— NFE+—
AT HEH - REEHE A > R E ERE
BT A 28°/W%Z/\$1§;ﬁ2%449.0
HEEIG 2BASE R

6.375%5 95 M3%EHE m Al —FE—+&
FILA K AR - Hiv R MEE 455
Ef5 2% -

4.75% S E AT Bl o iAEEEH
BANBREE I 5 2 221515 - 4.75% 24
Z TEME £5323.5 F & 5 Ju s A& 78 2,529.1
HEE I (- FE—/N4F 1 290.2 A B ETT
BAHE R 2,250.3 F B ) o RASEH >
AN BRAE B B A 2 A - REEE
ARAE BT R AE MG > 4.75% 2548 2 /N FAB A Ay
2,627 2H BHIL (& —7N4F £ 2,273.8A
B TC) o R AEE A o



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

39. NOTES ISSUED (CONT’D)

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, two
subsidiaries of the Company disposed of the intra-
group holdings of the 4.75% Notes and 6.375% Notes
with nominal value of US$33.3 million or equivalent
to HK$259.8 million and US$4.3 million or equivalent
to HK$32.8 million respectively to third parties with a
total consideration of US$38.6 million or equivalent to
HK$300.4 million.

The RMB Notes were issued by UA Finance (BVI) Limited,
a subsidiary of SHK, under a US$3 billion medium term
note programme. The RMB Notes are unsecured and
guaranteed by a non wholly-owned subsidiary.

The nominal value of the 6.9% Notes after eliminating
the intra-group holdings was RMB435.0 million or
equivalent to HK$522.4 million (2016: RMB488.0 million
or equivalent to HK$544.9 million) at the reporting date.
The fair value of the 6.9% Notes after eliminating the intra-
group holdings based on the price quoted from pricing
service at the reporting date was HK$549.5 million (2016:
HK$570.4 million) which was categorised as level 2.

During the year, the Group redeemed part of the 6.9%
Notes with nominal value of RMB53.0 million or
equivalent to HK$59.8 million from third parties with a
total consideration of RMB53.6 million or equivalent to
HK$60.5 million.

BE - F—tFE+ - HA=1+—HI4FE
39. ERTEE(E)

REE—_EFE—LHFE+-H=1T—H1HF
FE 5 AR T S A W I A =0 AR
M M5 2 4.75% 248 % 6.375% 224 »
T {E 4 Al 2433.3 & &5 35 oo ol M ik 259.8
HEW T M43 B E IR E R 32.8 H
BT > ANE 5 38.6 F 1 5 o UM R
300.4 E E#IC ©

N B 2252 ol o us o 2 M B A R UA
Finance (BVI) Limited - M ##301& &t
e asf Tt B AT o AR EEHE A A
K v — (] 9F 22 B 2 RIVEHE AR o

AEEEH > ZINBREE MEA 2 Bi5E
6.9% 2248 7 T {E A N R HE435.0 @ B ot ak
MHER5224F BT (T —NF A
R 488.0 A A5 o B AH & iR 544.9 H
T) o REEEH > AINEREEMIGE 2 =
PR - AR EAE IR T B > 6.9% 5
B2 N TBIE £549.5 A B G (& —N
457048 EHIC) 0 AN AR -

SRR > A 3] ) 5 = 5 B ] 4 T s A\
R¥53.0F B oA E 2 59.8 H B L2
6.9% 59 > REHFEE NRE53.6 6 8
TEEH R 60.5 A B HE T o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

40. PROVISIONS

41.

At Tst January, 2017

Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 54
Additional provisions for the year — 4F [N &SN
Amount written back $3% ] <%
Amount paid during the year N BT O
Amount utilised during the year EINE B A FIE
At 31st December, W F— LA
2017 +ZA=+—H

Analysed for reporting purposes as: £ 2 H A9 BT /E 2 04

Current liabilities
Non—current liabilities

AR
B A 1R

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as going concerns
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include bank and other borrowings and notes issued) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on
an ongoing basis using gearing ratio, which is the net debt
divided by equity. Net debt includes the Group’s bank
and other borrowings and notes issued less short-term
pledged bank deposit, bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The equity comprises all components of the
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

RoE—E—H—H

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

40. B

Employee
benefits Others Total
EERF Hit et
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BERBT BEET
44.2 15.1 59.3
- 0.6 0.6
55.3 0.2 55.5
0.2) (1.3) (1.5)
(39.4) - (39.4)
0.1) - 0.17)
59.8 14.6 74.4
2017 2016
—2—+tF T AHF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
71.1 56.4
3.3 2.9
74.4 59.3

41. EXEBEE

A B A 1 B LAHE T
HE(RAS S B 4/ ) R R 3 24 T
e S5 [ = A S w5 |4
R RS -

A SR BB E A U AR A (B4R AT &
Ol 2 O BT 08 ) BOAS o ) JBCR M
ML (ELHE O BT IRAS R k) o

BEXRELR

7R [ B T ) A R B (RS
FRPRLIRE SR ) Fr A b el B AR o S
TR LG AR 0 SR AT S OHA i B R B8
A7 SR WA SRAT HEAR A K~ SRAT Ak
B MBI SFEY) o AL FBOR
FEA 4 i 2 A% R ARLISGRR 4



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

41.

42.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Gearing ratio (Cont’d)
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

259
BE - F—tFE+ - HA=1+—HI4FE
41. EXRBEE(E)

EXBELR(E)
RERE R Z BEAR B ART

2017 2016

—E—tF B AY:2

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET AT

Bank and other borrowings AT R HAD i B 4,525.3 5,612.3
Notes issued 1T R 7,758.2 5,017.8
12,283.5 10,630.1

Less: Short-term pledged bank deposit B R AR T IR A K (1.2) -

Bank deposits, cash and cash AT > Bl v

equivalents Bl EY) (4,118.0) (7,553.8)

Net debt B A 8,164.3 3,076.3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7%/ Al i 5B A i 22 25,069.4 21,758.3
Gearing ratio EAAFLE 32.6% 14.1%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are market risk (includes equity
risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management
objective is to enhance shareholders’ value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds. Risk management
is managed and controlled through relevant group
companies.

The Group’s risk management governance structure is
designed to cover all business activities and to ensure all
relevant risk classes are properly managed and controlled
by relevant group companies. The Group has adopted
a sound risk management and organisational structure
equipped with comprehensive policies and procedures
which are reviewed regularly and enhanced when
necessary in response to changes in markets, the Group's
operating environment and business strategies. The
Group'’s relevant independent control functions play an
important role in the provision of assurance to the relevant
board of directors and senior management that a sound
internal risk management mechanism is implemented,
maintained and adhered to.

42. cREMRER

< P SE AR Sy A A B - DRG] S — {1
5 A JE A A BE > R A ST AR A
MR o ASSR IR 5 Jol e o L LS 6 =
PV [ AR B o ASSE [ I SEH A7 AE 1 £ 2
< Al JEL B 2y i 85 By (358 s S T B - R
5 JE\ By B SRR ) ~ A B B K U B
S LB o AR ) 1Y JEL B TR AR A P
3500 LB R BRI T 4532 KT I 22 8 - [R] g
O R m BOREE o JaFR e B A B
SE T )P R B

A B 0 14 SR B 3 SRV ' A TR 2 T A S S
68 > LUREOR BT A B U S L el AH B
SN ) P B o NSRBI BRAN
— I %35 Y JE B A R B AR AR A o SRR AT
5E & WEUOR RAEFF > A B BOR K2 F &
TEMPEITAR S > TR 5 R R T
7B ) AR R OE I SE5 SRE s 2 B8 B8l T
58 o ANAE I 4 A B o B R YR A
TS o 16 A B S D A B R R
it~ MEAR R ST B A Y R A e A
il -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk

(i)

Equity Risk

There are many asset classes available for
investment in the marketplace. One of the
Group'’s key business undertakings is investing in
equity and is concentrated in the investment and
finance operating segment. Market risk arising
from any equity investments is driven by the
daily fluctuations in market prices or fair values.
The ability to mitigate such risk depends on the
availability of any hedging instruments and the
diversification level of the investment portfolios
undertaken by the segment. More importantly,
the knowledge and experience of the trading
staff of the segment managing the risk are also
vital to ensure exposure is being properly hedged
and rebalanced in the most timely manner.
Proprietary trading across the segment is subject
to limits approved by the senior management of
the relevant group companies. Valuation of these
instruments is measured on a “mark—to—market”
and “mark-to—fair value” basis depending on
whether they are listed or unlisted. Value at
Risk (“VaR”) and stress tests are employed in the
assessment of risk. Meanwhile other non-VaR
limits such as “maximum loss” and “position”
limits are also set out to restrict excessive risk
undertakings. VaR and stress tests are approaches
which are widely used in the financial industry
as tools to quantify risk by combining the size of
a position and the extent of a potential market
movement into a potential financial impact.

The Group’s market-making and proprietary
trading positions and their financial performance
are reported daily to the relevant senior
management of the group companies in the
segment for review. Relevant internal audit
also performs regular checks to ensure there is
adequate compliance in accordance with the
established market risk limits and guidelines.

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@)

™5 E R

(1)

Vel

35 A A D m] BEBUE Y
Al > T A SR B P T 2 RS
Z— R E AR R K
SERSERF R o AT ISR B
7 M 22 T 3 g e DR T AR
DB AR BB T AL - 82 A0 5% 55
B ) BE T AP A 75 A AT AT 25 oo
TH RSy ER P A BUE AL B 9 7
AU - HHEAE - 7 i0ELT
Loy 2 B TR A B m ez 1Y
Rl B KB > e R B 7
A IRF A T~ 1 2 B RE R -
Wz BE BB IEEEZARER
23 E) 2 e A L A 2 BRAE R
il > AP RZSF TH Ay B ek
TR TG A | K A%
FESRAEE o Al Rl Bt ey (0 1L
Bar (L ([ B AE |) K JBE 3 Bt o [
5 e FLA I L i e FR R 4
[ E R 1R T JPRAR LA FR
o T 36 11 8 PR R, o o (L JRE
3 B e B SE R G 1 > 2
B AR < B KB T AL
BuBELEZEEYE > AR
L FRA TA

AREEPrAEETISEE & AE
HE S B R AR UL s R
4 H BT i SR F A R 2
R v A B LA (A ) - AR
AL BT 2 A% 0 IS B A i E
A > FELRFE /M8 ST Wi T 85 A
BRAF S 4551 o



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i) Equity Risk (Cont’d)

The table below summarises the overall financial
impact on the Group arising from market
movements in global equity indices. The analysis
is based on the assumption that equity indices
move +20% with all other variables being held
constant and all equity instruments undertaken
by the Group moving simultaneously. Declines
in the indices are expressed as negatives.

At 31st December, 2017

BE - F—tFE+ - HA=1+—HI4FE
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@ ™WHBERE(E)
(i) HREE B (4)
T A R B ER R 11 48 BUS B AR
SEE R LA o T T
R BT H5 3 R IR £520% >
A HoAth SRR A5 5 AR
1) BT A A 2 T LS 2 ) o Ji8
BN R B EERR -

At 315t December, 2016

R-B-tE+ZA=1-H BT ZA=1-H
Potential impact on profit  Potential impact on other  Potential impact on profit  Potential impact on other
or loss for the year components of equity or loss for the year components of equity
KEERER et AERRER PSRy
PA-{i3 7 ¢ A i3 7 Va7 VA%

20% -20%

20% -20% 20% -20% 20% -20%

HKS Million  HKS$ Million HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS$ Million  HKS Million

AT

AEAr  Adkr sk Al Afkn

BEEn EEEn
Local Index A 506.1 (459.7)
Overseas Index WEIMEH 12914 (1,278.6)

102.6 (102.6) 4412 (450.2) 101.0 (101.0)

80.4 (80.4) 815.8 (881.8) 12.8 (12.8)

There is no material financial impact in the form
of profit before taxation for the year for the Group
arising from market movements in the global
equity indices. Futures, options and knock-out
options are hedged by other derivatives in view
of the volatile markets and wide trading ranges.

BRERIBC T 4 B Bl S AR A AR 4
JEE F) A e )7 408 A P s
B o BTG I B K 5 5 R
7 R I R R AR L
b HE T B o
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(@) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i) Interest Rate Risk

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss due to changes
in interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk exposure arises predominantly from term
financing in the investment and finance segment
and loans and advances to consumer finance
customers in consumer finance segment and
bank and other borrowings. Interest spreads
are managed with the objective of maximising
spreads to ensure consistency with liquidity and
funding obligations.

At 31st December, 2017, assuming that market
interest rates moved by +50 basis points (2016:
+50 basis points), the profit before taxation
for the year for the Group would have been
HK$7.6 million lower or HK$7.9 million higher
respectively (2016: HK$4.6 million lower or
HK$5.5 million higher respectively). Assets and
liabilities bearing interest below 50 basis points
are excluded from 50 basis points downward
movement.

The exposures of the Group’s financial assets
(liabilities) bearing variable interest rate to cash
flow interest rate risks and the earlier of their
contractual repricing dates and contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

At 315t December, 2017

Amounts due from associates

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers

Mortgage loans

Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents

Bank borrowings

At 31t December, 2016

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers

Mortgage loans

Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents

Bank borrowings

W-B-tE+-A=1-R
BaAARS
LAMHER R

3
L
Bt RERRL%EY
i1

REZ-REFZA=1-H
BAMBHF &R

X

B

Rt RekReFRY
RiE

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@)

hiEE R (&)
(i) FIRE Sz

)3 i 72 | 5 2 B i 5 | B 1R
Z BB o AR ] F) ) 25 gy = B2
UNEES VN E A Da P Rl &
DA B AL N A5 73 3R 2 FAN B 5 %
J5 R S BGER DL R SRAT B HoAt i
£ AEFEHREX - HMTER
mESBENGES B R

WoZ—tE+-A=+—H >
108 7 35 1) 2 2 A 8 /5 0 i 501
BEF (N 4F ¢ k50 B
T) > RIAKE H A A4 BE B BR B
il A AR [ 7.6 B # s oo
B EF79H BB L (ZFE—N
A AR BE4.6 E B T b
F5.5H EHIC) © 5010 E T
2 5 By AN A3 355 1) Z2 i 50 11 B
T2 EE KA -

ALE E IR A R LR N A A
(B ¥ 3 2 i A R R b
M A& EHEE H & A2
H R0

On demand
of less than
3 months 3 months 1 year

REXRE folyear  foSyeas  Over5years Total
3OMBR  ERRIE  1EESE SEML it
HKS Million ~— HKS Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
A&k A&k ({3 [iL- 37 AT
- 35.0 - - 35.0
717 - - - 717
3625 - - - 3625
16362 - - - 16362
(40114 (346.9) (140.0) - (4,498.3)
464.2 - - - 464.2
203 - - - 203
2,0043 - - - 2,004.3
(5,403.3) (5.0) (145.0) = (5,5533)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@) Market Risk (Cont’d) (@ ™WHBERE(E)
(ii) Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d) (ii) & e (4E)
The exposures of the Group’s financial assets 7 B2 1B 2 ] 7 M 2R A A 46 il
(liabilities) bearing fixed interest rate to fair E(BE) TS P18 (E A 28
value interest rate risks and the earlier of their B > MEA AR EEH K54
contractual repricing dates and contractual I A B RENT
maturity dates are as follows:
On demand
o less than
3 months 3 months 1 year Non-interest
REREE  tofyer  toSyears  OverSyears bearing Total
AOW3BA 3ERE1E  15E5F SHUL 48 fazt
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
B&br  FAEBr  AEBT BEBT 0 AEBx AEER
At 31st December, RoE-tE
2017 +=B=t-H
Amounts due from associates & /A H 2K - 46.0 - - - 460
Loans and advances to consumer 7k BT & F &5 R
finance customers #3x 25913 4,1354 20764 82.8 - 8,885.9
Mortgage loans Helh g 311.6 512.8 932.1 14 - 1,757.9
Debt securities inclucled in AT
available —for-sale sHERL
financial assets A - 86.6 87 173 - 1126
Bonds included in financial assets 3 A AR
atfairvalve through profit A TEEERLZ
or loss SHEEZ R 21933 - 182 1,3029 - 35144
Term loans A& 753.1 2499.7 205.5 - - 34583
Short-term pledged hank deposits JE &7 5t 1.2 - - - - 1.2
Bank deposits, cash and BTk He kB
cash equivalents Sl 17728 4875 - - - 22603
(Bank borrowings)unamortised  (BYf71E) /A
arrangement fee THE (13.0) - - - 210 8.
Notes issued BEIER - (10639 (6,6943) - - (7,758.2)
At 31st December, REZE—AE
2016 TZAZT-H
Amounts due from associates  BEA /AT = 4.1 - - - 441
Loans and advances to consumer kA& F &5}
finance customers #K 2,070.4 3,265 1,825.8 734 = 71961
Mortgage loans HiRE 432 2078 126.8 150 - 392.8
Debt securities included in AW fki
availablefor-sale financial ~ &REEZ
assels s - - 2787 8.7 - 2874
Bonds inclued in financial assets 7 A&
atfairvalue through profit —~ HATEEEEZ
o loss SHEELES 3908 2118 456.8 - - 1,059.4
Term loans A& 540.8 2,180.5 343.7 - = 3,005.0
Notes included in trade and other 71 A% 5 RHA MR
receivables L - - 1474 - = 1474
Bank deposits, cashand cash SBT3 B& R
equivalents HE%EY 44571 7115 - - = 5,168.6
Notes issued EETER (483) (2,214.1) (2,751.7) = = (5,014.1)
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
B A ER A A — % — & R
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings
or capital arising from movements in foreign
exchange rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily
arises from currency exposures originating from
proprietary trading positions, and loans and
advances denominated in foreign currencies,
mainly in Australian dollars, British pound,
Japanese yen, Malaysian ringgit, New Taiwan
dollars, Singapore dollars, Renminbi and Thai
Baht. Foreign exchange risk is managed and
monitored by senior management of the relevant
group companies. The risk arises from open
currency positions are subject to management
approved limits and are monitored and reported
daily.

At 31st December, 2017, assuming that the
foreign exchange rates moved 5% (2016: +5%)
with all other variables held constant, the profit
before taxation for the year for the Group would
be HK$48.2 million lower/higher (2016: HK$7.5
million higher/lower).

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or
counterparty to meet settlement obligations. As long as
the Group lends, trades and deals with third parties,
there will be credit risk exposure.

The Group’s credit procedures, governed by the
relevant executive committee of the relevant group
companies, sets out the credit approval processes
and monitoring procedures, which are established in
accordance with sound business practices.

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@)

(b)

T i A ()

(iii) S FER 7
471N R JoRL gz 77 411 I 2R 4k o 36 221 )
& A 2 AR
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A PG A A R Y SR o RS
W & %2 A 2 A1 HE Ja B 78
3% o A8 PR At 2 BRAE R ] - S
JEA H 3 HL A R e TR o
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% A1 BB = R 4 5% (—
F—NF 0 B EREA5%) o BT
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

The table below shows the maximum exposure
to and concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure is shown in gross value before the effect of
mitigation through the use of collateral agreements.
The percentage figure next to the gross value reflects
its concentration.

Maximum credit exposure BaEAR
Loans and advances to consumer finance customers —  ARTHF & F &3 R #3K
Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents /it Re kB2 E

Trade and other receivables 85 KR

Bonds included in financial assets AABRERERATEE
atfair value through profit or oss RR GHEE 5

Mortgage loans e

Loan commitments ke

Amounts due from brokers FEE

Amounts due from associates LN

Guarantees s

Amounts due from joint ventures HELTRH

Short-term pledged bank deposit RN

The maximum credit exposure at the Group level is
spread between “loans and advances to consumer
finance customers”, “bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents” and “trade and other receivables”, which
represent more than two thirds of the total exposure.
The breakdown and aging analysis of “loans and
advances to consumer finance customers” and “trade
and other receivables” and the breakdown of “bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents” are disclosed
in note 26, 30 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Loans with strategic clients are all properly authorised
by the relevant executive committee of the relevant
group companies and with other controls in place to
monitor their performance.

BE-F—LE+A=+—HILFEE
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(b) FERE(E)
TR = B LR PR o
Fe e JEU B AR BB - R R B
I o e o R PO S - MB{ELSE Y
O BT AR R

2017 2016

Z8-tf “EpE

HK$ Million % HKS Million %
AEET (L

9,163.6 36% 7,600.3 33%
41180 16% 7,553.8 32%
3,681.4 15% 33723 14%
35144 14% 1,059.4 5%
21204 8% 613.1 2%
12824 5% 14125 6%
728.7 3% 1,059.9 5%
518.6 2% 378.4 2%
1319 1% 186.6 1%
9.1 0% 1.1 0%
1.2 0% = 0%
25,269.7 100% 23,3074 100%

S5 [ P T S 0 B e A 0SB o A
[FANBARS 5 P Bk I gk |~ T4RAT
Tk~ Be MIREZEY | N E5 K
HoAth FE WK IE ) 2 R > A 48 L B R AR
=02 o [FANMB B S M
K el E 5 Je HoAth e Wk TE | 2 A H
Ko SR AT B[R AT A7k~ B Bl
SEEEY) | Z 40 B 4 A 95 iR G A
R EMEE26 ~ 30432 o

BT AL RS 2 B R £
NFZMBPATZ B g R > I
e S At A A 4 it DA B 5 HL A 1
UL o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(0

Concentration risk of loans and advances to consumer
finance customers is managed by reference to
individual customers. The aggregate credit exposure
in relation to the ten largest outstanding consumer
finance customers, including corporate entities and
individuals, before taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements, at 31st December,
2017 was HK$930.7 million (2016: HK$662.5
million) of which 85.8% (2016: 47.1%) was
secured by collateral. There was no recent history of
individual impairment allowance recognised.

The bonds included in financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss is monitored by the management
according to its geographic locations and industries.

The unsecured mortgage loans include second
mortgage loans in respect of which the Group are
not entitled to the first charge of relevant mortgage
properties. The management considers that the second
mortgage loans are classified as unsecured loans due
to the impediment in repossession of the mortgage
properties and the practical difficulties to ascertain the
residual collateral value after claim by first mortgagee.
The carrying amount and the loan commitments of
the second mortgage loans are as follows:

Carrying amount MR T
Loan commitments BRI

Short-term pledged bank deposit, bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents is maintained in reputable banks
with high credit rating, the credit risk is considered as
remote.

Liquidity Risk

The goal of liquidity management is to mitigate risk
that a given security or asset cannot be traded quickly
enough in the market to prevent a loss or make the
required profit. Another goal is to enable the Group,
even under adverse market conditions, to actively
manage and match funds inflow against all maturing
repayment obligations to achieve maximum harmony
on cash flow management.

The Group manages its liquidity position to ensure a
prudent and adequate liquidity ratio. This is achieved
by a transparent and collective monitoring approach
across the Group involving the management of the
relevant group companies.

ALLIED GROUP LIMITED
BEeEREERALA

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)
b) SERRE)

(c)

FLNSA TS 2 5 R S ek 2 4 v Fe
FIHEMR A % F &3 o R = F — b4
T A=Z+—H > EARRERRA
W EF (5 7B LW A) AR
(15 B JEL B 48 %8 CR HS A Z AT 3K
5 B At 5 {F SR i) 45 930.7
HEBIT (T —NF  662.50
#t) > HF85.8% (- FE—/N4F
47 1%) F AR S VEYE (R o #r 304 J
TR AW P e (B4 A o

At A R 35 MR AN B (E R B 2 &
il 7 A 5 B AR L b [ R
FTHIEATRIEE -

SR 1 B A 3 >
A5 1 SR H A B A Fm ) SE R 2 —
R o B A R ERAEN B
MEACHR K > PR 2 i ml ¥ 48 1) SE A7 AE
3 > RAES— MR ARERE
BRSO B AR E BR IR EE - —
R IR B X EFORIEI T -

2017 2016

e e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT  AMiEL
302.8 380.0

23.0 15.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

The exposure of the Group’s contractual undiscounted
cash flow for financial liabilities and their contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

BE - F—tLF+_H=1+—HIFF
42, TRIEBERE (&)
(0 "EBELERE(E)

AR ) 2 4 Pl T 3B PR ) R R T B
BlamE L HAEIM AT

On demand
or less than
90 days 91 days 1 year
REREE to year to5years  Over5years Total
FOR0A  9AZEIE 16255 SENE a5t
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS Million
BE®T Bk BEBT BE®T BEET
At 315t December, 2017 R=B-tF+=A=1-8
Bank and other borrowings* BT R 23703 5200 17534 - 46437
Trade and other payables 85 B A TR 6.7 - - - 26.7
Financial liabilities for repurchase EE = I
agreements Ak 1,071.0 - - - 1,071.0
Amounts due to associates Yo =UNTE 74 - - - 74
Amounts due to joint ventures RABNAFHE 0.1 - - - 0.1
Notes issed RETES 98.3 12187 77799 - 9,096.9
Indemnities on banking faciity made ~ §t F & A7
available to joint venture' RiRERZRE 1127 - - - 1127
Guarantees* fRa 10.2 8.6 0.6 - 194
Financial liabilities at fair value FRRRREATEA
through profitor loss RHZERARE 161.1 - - - 161.1
At 31st December, 2016 R-FZ—AETZR=1—H
Bank and other borrowings* AT RS 19785 885.8 29202 - 5,784.5
Trade and other payables " %&ﬁfﬁﬂéﬁﬁ 1818 s = = 181.8
Amounts due to associates ¢ ¥ NG 73 = = = 73
Amounts due to joint ventures I {%’%/AT 0.1 = = 0.1
Notes issued B8R 627 23647 3,1300 - 5,557.4
Indemnities on banking facility made ~ #4 T &L
available to joint venture RTFER R 1047 - - - 1047
Cuarantees* [ 335 40.0 9.5 - 83.0
Financial liabilities at fair value FRARREATHEE
through profit o loss R ERAR 1153 - - - 1153
+ Bank and other borrowings with repayment on demand clause * B i BRI AR S0 2 ST S A £

are classified as on demand in the above analysis although the
demand clause has not been exercised.

The amount represents the maximum amount the Group
could be required by the counterparty bank to indemnity for
the loans drawn by a joint venture under a banking facility
guaranteed by the Group. Based on the expectation at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is remote
for such contingent liabilities to be materialised.

The amounts included above for guarantees are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantees.

T bRl 53 T e ST e SR A - AR
2R SC I RAATE -

. DA SRR 415 35 Oy SR AT B 5 8 mDAR
?J%EEZF% 4% {2 SRAT (5 AR B L 2 A

KL SR A A [ B 2 Fo e R A o A R
i%*éﬁ% AL Lk sk E
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
At 1st January, 2017 A E—tE—H—H
Financing cash flow: mﬂ,%ffﬁﬁmui
~ Repayment of bank and other —fERAT
borrowings RHAbfE &
— New bank and other borrowing ~ — S4Bk a7
raised B 55
— Proceeds from issue of notes — BT R E
— Repurchase of notes issued — [ BT
— Redemption of notes —
~ Repayment of notes — RS
- Disposal of notes held by — HEAL RN A A
subsidiaries of the Company e 245
— Amounts advanced from -V
associates K
Accrual interest SFFIR
Interest paid ERFE

Loss on redemption of notes issued

WE BT R R

Effect on foreign exchange M58
rate changes 2
Others Hit
At 31st December, 2017 —Z—tE+-A=+—H

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

43.

BMEXBELEZEBEHR

N R FEH AN S B O SERS A 2 A fE )
(BB A K IR 5 dh) o BV SERS = A
2 BEIRH B AR R R S &A%
BB AR L 47 A B TR 3R N 1) Rl 2E TS
IS Bl & -

Bank and other

borrowings
Note 38  Notes issued  Amounts due
BIR Note 39 to associates
HitfEE  ERTZEE R Total
HizE38 MiEE39 ARRE @t
HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
A& AETT HEHIT HEHIT
5,612.3 5,017.8 7.3 10,637.4
(2,800.6) - - (2,800.6)
1,695.5 - - 1,695.5
- 4,694.6 - 4,694.6
- (37.7) - 37.7)
- (60.5) - (60.5)
- (2,300.8) (2,300.8)
- 334.9 - 334.9
- - 0.1 0.1
181.9 330.9 - 512.8
(156.1) (299.9) - (456.0)
- 0.8 - 0.8
13.7 78.1 - 91.8
(21.4) - - (21.4)
4,525.3 7,758.2 7.4 12,290.9




for the year ended 31st December, 2017

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
guarantees as follows:

BE - F—tFE+ - HA=1+—HI4FE
44, HAREE
AIREEHIR > AREEEL Z AR ¢

2017 2016
—F—tF “ERE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET L

Indemnities on banking facility made BT aE s AR SReT
available to joint venture PRAE TR R R 112.7 104.7

Financial guarantees under loan B OR S S5 2 S

guarantee business* PE* 19.2 81.9
131.9 186.6
i The Group has provided guarantees to lenders of its loan guarantee * AREFPE IR E T EREBEF 28T - DR

customers to guarantee the repayment of debts owed by the loan
guarantee customers to their lenders. At 31st December, 2017,
the outstanding guarantee amount was HK$19.2 million (2016:
HK$81.9 million).

PRI R P R T R T ZA8H - iR
F—bEFA=+—H  ZEREZLRA
19.2H BT (& /N4 - 81.9F kL) o

45. COMMITMENTS 45. EiE
(@) Operating Lease Arrangements (a) REHNZHE
As lessee TEAATAN
2017 2016
—EB—+tF TENE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A E#HETT
Minimum lease payments under JAAS A B e R
operating leases recognised ARAKEHRL Z
for the year s AR £ 3KH
Land and buildings b P A 197.9 173.4
Others At 0.1 0.1
198.0 173.5
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45. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) Operating Lease Arrangements (Cont’d)
As lessee (Cont’d)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due
as follows:

R4
F BRI (EEERE)

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for its office premises and office
equipment. Leases are generally negotiated for
terms ranging from one to five years. The lease
commitments include rental payable to an associate
of HK$1.6 million (2016: HK$5.0 million) and a joint
venture of HK$67.6 million (2016: HK$15.2 million).

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$222.7 million (2016: HK$211.1 million). The
property held has committed tenants with lease terms
and rentals are fixed at one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

BE_ZEZ—-tE+_A=+—HILFEEF
45, A¥E(E)

(@ MEHENOZH(E)
FERARN ()
TR IR - ARG BAREAS A S A8
BALAT R T 5 N ST 2 Rk
RS B ARAR A E AR

2017 2016
—E-tF “ERE

Land and Land and
buildings Others buildings Others
T RET Hity TH LT Hih
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
BEET BEAT HEkT H#EBT
160.4 0.9 147.1 0.1
156.8 0.4 89.9 0.1
317.2 1.3 237.0 0.2

REEAL ARG A 4 B L N =)
EISE VNG ) AN P AR ik
FEY—-BEE R EREAE - M
BRBEOEEMS —MBE LR M

1.6 BB IL(ZE— Aﬁisoﬁ
BT M EA— ﬁ /N P
67.6 H B IL( & /ﬁﬁ 152 H
HVETD) o
1EL N

ER B W EMH WA F222.7 A
BT (B —N4FE 0 2110 @ S

) o TR 2 W B A T RS
F > FH B A R R AoRE A [ 2 A — 2
E’Eo

TR IR - AL C T FIARA A
AR A BRI B /TS A 4 -

2017 2016

—E—+F TR

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAT H B

Within one year TA—4FE A 173.3 172.0
In the second to fifth year inclusive 45 — 2555 FL4F (G145 & BB Wi 4E) 118.2 132.3
291.5 304.3

The lease commitments include rental receivable from THEAE IR EIWE S NG 214

associates of HK$3.1 million (2016: HK$0.5 million)
and a director of the Company of HK$7.4 million
(2016: HK$3.6 million).

BAHEEBIIL(EF /M 0588
z&n&ﬁ%$“? HERZHE
745%{%713 TERNE 36HE
VESTH)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

45. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Loan Commitments

Within one year

(c) Other Commitments

Capital commitments for funds
Other capital commitments

4R
B FATRYE
Hoph AR

BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

45. AIE(E)

(b) EFEIE

(o HAtEiE

2017 2016
—Z2—tF TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HEHIT
1,282.4 1,412.5
2017 2016
—2—tF CRINE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT [ER: A
3329 457.6

2.0 4.9

334.9 462.5
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46. EEREA

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

46. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group under provident funds managed by independent
trustees.

The retirement benefits cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents contributions paid
and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the terms of the schemes,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

The scheme has been closed in December 2000 to new
employees as a consequence of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance introduced by the Hong Kong
Government.

From 1st December, 2000 onwards, new staff in Hong
Kong joining the Group are required to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The Group
is required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
while the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
salaries to the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state—managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

ARLE I T i 5 B AR R B PR O A A
FORRAR AN # o 5255 5l 2 B BAC AR
PR S PR > B AR IR B S AR REA
PR B2 AR -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

46. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONT’D)

Expenses recognised in profit or loss for the contributions
to retirement benefit schemes for the current year
amounted to HK$87.2 million (2016: HK$95.3 million).
The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in the course
of the year ended 31st December, 2017 was HK$0.2
million (2016: Nil).

Under the employee ownership scheme of SHK (“EOS”),
which was formally adopted by SHK on 18th December,
2007, selected employees or directors of SHK group
(the “Selected Grantees”) were awarded shares in SHK.
Following management’s recommendation of SHK, shares
of SHK were granted to the Selected Grantees subject to
various terms including, amongst other things, the vesting
scale whereby awarded shares of SHK will vest and
become unrestricted in various vesting periods. During the
year, 1.2 million shares (2016: 0.8 million shares) of SHK
were awarded to Selected Grantees under the EOS. The fair
value of the services rendered (by reference to the market
value of awarded shares at grant dates) as consideration of
the shares awarded during the year was HK$6.1 million
(2016: HK$3.8 million) which will be amortised to profit
or loss during the vesting period. The amount expensed
during the year in respect of shares awarded under the
EOS was HK$6.4 million (2016: HK$2.8 million).

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 23rd July, 2012, it was resolved that a director’s service
agreement entered between SHK group and a director
of SHK’s subsidiary for a term of ten years be approved.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement,
SHK group has granted the director of a subsidiary an
option (“Option”) to subscribe for or purchase up to 20%
of the issued capital of a new company (“Newco”) to
be established to hold all equity interests in subsidiaries
incorporated or to be incorporated in the PRC for money
lending businesses in the PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) at an
exercise price which is determined based on the aggregate
carrying amount of shareholders equity and shareholders
loans proportional to the shareholding to be taken up by
the director of a subsidiary at the time of exercise of the
Option. Prior to the period before the Option becomes
vested, the director of a subsidiary is also entitled a
bonus calculated based on the performance of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The transaction constituted a very substantial
disposal and a connected transaction and its details were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 29th June,
2012.

BHE_F-LF T A=+ —HIEFE
46. EERA(E)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

46. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONT’D)

47.

The fair value of the Option on grant date of 23rd July,
2012 was HK$255.1 million which was calculated using
the Black-Scholes pricing model and carried out by
Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and
qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group. The inputs into the model include an underlying
asset value of PRC Subsidiaries as at the grant date of
HK$1,018.1 million, risk free rate of 2.74%, volatility of
39.25% and expected option life of 5 years. No share
based payment expense is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December,
2017 (2016: Nil) since one of the vesting conditions for the
Option is the successful completion of the establishment
of the Newco, the date of which, in the opinion of the
management, could not yet be estimated with reasonable
certainty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
investment properties, land and buildings and properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$7,766.9 million (2016: HK$6,827.4 million) together
with certain securities in respect of a listed subsidiary with
investment cost of HK$276.6 million (2016: HK$276.6
million) were pledged to secure loans and general banking
facilities to the extent of HK$2,428.5 million (2016:
HK$1,802.3 million) granted to the Group. Facilities
amounting to HK$990.0 million (2016: HK$840.8 million)
were utilised at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, a bank deposit of
HK$1.2 million (2016: Nil) was pledged to secure a
guarantee issued to third parties by a bank in favour of a
subsidiary to the extent of HK$1.2 million (2016: Nil).

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

46.

47.

EBEER (&)

WA 2 N TAEE AR B = — 4
LH - +=HA255.1 4 8T » il #R
A (5] NIf7 4 B A 2 M N A B (H A F
o 2B R REA A R AN J LAAA 1 7 — &7 TR
W A T o AR 2 A S
FF [ B B S DA B2 H B 22 MR B
1,018.1 H &I ~ MEFEAI 2. 74% ~
% 39.25% K TE 51 s S HE HA BR 2% 1L 47 - A%
E R —LFET A=+ B IR
R EEE MR R TR B 45 BB S (=&
—ONAE A o [H] A E RE L o — TE R
MG BN T8 RN 7 2 BRAE - T4 28
R SERUNOL 2 H AL A AT o

BEEEHA

RHAEWIR > AEEREAME7,766.9H
B (& — N4 16,8274 B T)
ZHETREYE - L R E R e
Wy (R — [ bR S m R AR
276.6 F B ITE (/N4 1 276.6 A &
Wt 2 TR - ERELE2,4285H
B OG (& —754 1 1,802.3 A &t oT)
BT AREE 2 Sk —BRAT R B 2K
o A HIR > B4R IS H%E990.0
BT (& —/N4F  840.8F EH L) ©

R AR > SRATAFE 270 E o (%
—ONARE ) E AR SRAT A% — T BB 2 W 1)
BTN ZEI2A BET(CE N
A M) IR AR Z SEAT o



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  48.

During the year, the Group entered into following
significant transactions with related parties.

BE_F-EFE+_A=t—HILFE

BEBEALXRFGRERR
AN > AR B B ERTSL LR ER

25 -

Rent, property management and
air—conditioning fee

(@ Summary of transactions
Associates N
Management services fee B S
Loan referral fee and participation — EEHfEA % K&
fee income Z BB
Service fees income s W A
Manager’s fee HEHAEH
Consultancy fee received S sk
Interest income FEHA
Rent, property management and M4 - WK
air-conditioning fee income ZE B
Interest expenses HE &M
Service fees expenses 5 2
Insurance premiums paid et RBR
Rent and property management fee  FH 4 & 4 3 3 4%
Brokerage expenses LB
Proceeds received on disposal of HEME A A 2R
subsidiaries B skIE
Joint ventures NN
Administration, management, B~ B R K
consultancy and agency fee income  fRIRE LA
Manager’s fee EHAEH

- s &

Director of the Company AAREE

Rental income B A

Entities controlled by a director ARRARESEH 2
of the Company B

Rental income WA

Logistics and warehouse services fee 43 b & B IR 5 22

Note: Apart from the tenancy agreements and a logistics and
warehouse services agreement entered into by a subsidiary
of the Company with entities controlled by a director of
the Company, none of the above related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined in

the Listing Rules.

@ XZHME
(Income)/Expense
(IA),/ X

2017 2016
—E-tF “FREE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET A E#IT
(59.1) (34.6)
(36.7) (6.6)
(5.3) (7.8)
(2.6) (2.5)

(2.5) -
(2.4) 3.1
(1.4) (2.5)

9.0 2.8

5.0 4.7

4.2 1.9

4.1 4.1

3.4 1.4
- (100.7)
(10.7) (10.4)
(1.3) (1.3)

33.1 30.9

4.1) (4.1)

(14.1) (0.4)

0.3 —

BT < A/l — W 24 7 Bt A2
212 B8 T < LB s S
IS ksl LA B A+ 5
WEASHE L i 48 LT 5 2 2 T 5
T
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE
48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 48. EBEA TR S R &L (E)
(CONT’D)
(b) Key management personnel compensation b EREEBEASHS
2017 2016
—E—tHF e AN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET A E##ETT
Short-term benefits R AR A 155.0 109.4
Post-employment benefits IRARAEF 0.9 0.9
155.9 110.3
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had (0 RB|EPR XEEEREREALE
the following material balances with related parties: UTEKRGERR
2017 2016
—B—tF TE R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A E#WETT
Associates /N 409.6 268.8
Joint ventures BTl 9.0 11.0
Director of the Company RN T E S (0.9) (1.2)
Entities controlled by a director AN T HE A
of the Company ZER (2.6) (2.0)
415.1 276.6
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following material balances with related parties:
(Cont’d)

The above amounts are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group in the
following ways:

Trade and other receivables B 5 K HoAh SR T
Amounts due from associates B 8 T R K
Amounts due from joint ventures &7/ 7 KK

Trade and other payable B 5y e oA A 2 TE
Amounts due to associates RN T KT
Amounts due to joint ventures N /NI @ |
Notes issued A TR

Notes:

i) As at 31st December, 2017, the amounts due from (to)
associates are unsecured, non—interest bearing and repayable
on demand, except for (i) an unsecured short-term loan to
an associate of HK$46.0 million, which bears interest at
7.75% per annum for the first month and 4.6% per annum
thereafter and is due for repayment on 30th April, 2018; and
(i) an unsecured short-term loan to an associate of HK$35.0
million, which bears interest at 3% above HIBOR per annum
and is due for repayment on 30th October, 2018.

(i) As at 31st December, 2017, the amounts due from (to) joint
ventures are unsecured, non—interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

(d) During the year, loans of HK$81.0 million (2016:
HK$491.6 million) was advanced to associates and
HK$44.0 million (2016: HK$290.8 million) were
repaid by associates.

BE_F—LF+_H=1t—HIFE
48. FREANIRZ REHH(E)
(0 RBEEHER FEEREREALE
BUTERGS - ()
FAtRE T AR 5 75 SR AR 1 2 &5

G MFARNERAALR
2017 2016
—E2—+F RN
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
A figt BEBT H# T
14.9 15.3
(i) 518.6 378.4
(iii) 9.1 11.1
(3.5) (4.5)
(i) (7.4) (7.3)
(iii) 0.1) (0.1)
(116.5) (116.3)
415.1 276.6

.

i M-E—tE+-A=Z+—H  Z%EX
B () B8 N 7] 308 2y BT ~ S B &
JEUA BRI AR » (D)3 T — B
) [ S 4 R K 46.0 F BT R
{8 A G4 7. 75 JE R R K B A% 11
4.6 H R KA = F— /\FEMNA =+
HE 5 B(ii) T — MBS A A B S
5 HA 2 3K35.0 A B UG - FEE WS ERAT
[ii) ZE47 B 3 JE 9 AR A R 5T B ZE R
—/)\4E+H =+ HERERS -

iy R-F—LHET+_HA=1T—H0 %
B (R) A8 Fl30E 5 IR - 5
JAABE SR IR fE v o

(d) FN o> B SN RS ERST.0H
B IT (S —NAE 1 491,60 Bk
Jo) MRS A ER R K 44.0H B
T (CF— N4 1290.8 0 BHET) ©

£ N
B &
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Non-current liability
Amount due to a subsidiary

wE_F-EF+_A=t—HILFE

ERBEE
VI - B R
] UNGERIS
B 24 ) 2K
REEE

5 LA SR
B 24 7 2K

B KRS EY
HER

B 5y T A e 5KIH
]

RBEEFE
REERRBAE

RA R
JheAs
i

REEARE

FRBEME
IR — [ g 2 i I

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26th March, 2018, and is signed on its behalf

by:
Arthur George Dew
EE
Director
HF

49. ARQTRZBBRRE

2017 2016
—E—+tF “E N
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EX: Yoo
2.5 1.7
1,356.6 1,300.3
2,415.1 2,843.2
3,774.2 4,145.2
25.9 17.8
572.8 502.7
199.4 69.4
798.1 589.9
5.6 4.8

0.4 0.4

6.0 5.2
792.1 584.7
4,566.3 4,729.9
2,221.7 2,221.7
1,441.9 1,332.0
3,663.6 3,553.7
902.7 1,176.2
4,566.3 4,729.9

AN BRI R E g — T — 4
Z A AN HHHE R AT > A T 5

EHAREE

Edwin Lo King Yau
BRth
Director
=



for the year ended 31st December, 2017

50. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 1st January, 2016 WZE—NE—H—H
2016 interim dividend ZENERHRE
Dividend paid EARBRE

Second interim dividend declared BRI AR
Share repurchased and cancelled S o B A

Profit and total comprehensive income 2/ ) I SRR 365 A1) 1%
attributable to owners of the Company 2 it 4 4848

At 31st December, 2016 REE—NE+_H=1+—H
2017 interim dividend “E—LERRE
Dividend paid AT

Second interim dividend declared HIRSE RS

Share repurchased and cancelled ] 2 A

Profit and total comprehensive income 7/ 7] S REAS U A1
attributable to owners of the Company 2Tk 45 424

At 31st December, 2017 R_E—tFE+_H=1+—H

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
owners of the Company at 31st December, 2017 are
represented by accumulated profits and dividend reserve
totalling HK$1,441.9 million (2016: HK$1,332.0 million).

279
RE_E—LHFE+ A =+—H I
50. ARQTE 2 i#EE

Accumulated Dividend
profits reserve Total
KRR RERE At

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBIT HEBIT AEET

805.1 285.2 1,090.3
(26.7) 26.7 -

- (311.9) (311.9)
(327.1) 327.1 -
(57.3) - (57.3)
610.9 - 610.9
1,004.9 327.1 1,332.0
(26.4) 26.4 -

- (353.5) (353.5)
(413.0) 413.0 -
(52.5) - (52.5)
515.9 - 515.9
1,028.9 413.0 1,441.9

W oE—tFEFH=+—H  BAAH
Al R B T AN R 2 R UL A 3L
1,441.98 B0 (—F 784 1 1,332.00
B ) 1 BT R K B A 2 o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

51. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
that have material non-controlling interests

The consolidated profit or loss allocated to non-controlling
interests during the year and the accumulated non-
controlling interests in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December, 2017 are as
follows:

Profit (loss) allocated to
non-controlling interests

BE_F-LFTA=+—HLEFE
51. REIBARZRE

AEEEREAFEZRESNFEZENE
DNEWFHIE

N > BT R IO a2 AR S 4R AR SR
“F -t A= HZESMER
RN AT BRI T

Accumulated
non-controlling interests

PERFIFERER 2 25t
(F#8) FERES

2017 2016 2017 2016

—B-tE  ZEFRF ZB-tE ZERHF

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million

BEER H & BEET HEBTT

APL and its subsidiaries Tt e L A ) 2,273.2 1,836.4 20,842.7 19,052.1
Other subsidiaries having oA R AR 2

non-controlling interests it &g 2 ) 4.7 (18.4) 348.4 301.2

2,314.9 1,818.0 21,191.1 19,353.3

Summarised consolidated financial information of APL is

set out below.

ey

W R &R A B BRI RS T -

2017 2016

—E—tF e SANG

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT H BTG

Current assets SR 21,247.7 19,925.9

Non-current assets IE T E) & 40,818.5 34,425.3

Current liabilities T A & (5,769.2) (5,676.6)

Non-current liabilities JE B & i (9,002.7) (6,199.0)

Dividend distribution to non-controlling 7RIS T JE 2 1%

interests Wi 454.9 321.3

Revenue N 4,374.3 3,974.6

Profit for the year A4 JE Y3 ) 5,267.5 5,099.8
Other comprehensive income (expenses) A4 & Ho Al 4 1 i #5

for the year (&) 876.7 (1,025.4)




for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2017 which have their principal place of

operations in Hong Kong are set out below:

281

BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

B

Proportion of ownership interest

52. TEMBLARER

WoFE—tHE+H=+—H » AQNHEE
FLIEWE T AE MO A T s 2 BB A 7 A

Paid up HERER LA
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries BROBT subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
WELH EERE  A0E/MELERE AEEES IERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB-tE CEFRE ZF-tF CERE
HK$ % % % %
T
Admiralty Eight Limited 1 100 100 43 42 Property holding
ELVES
Admiralty Eleven Limited 1 100 100 43 42 Property holding
EL/ES
AG Capital Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Securities trading, money
BamEARAR lending and business of
consultancy
HARE  fER
ClEERE
AG Investments Limited 50,000,000 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
B
Alaston Development Limited US$1 100 100 75 75 Property holding
1% EL/ES
Allied Capital Management Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Securities trading
wHAH
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited ** 4,250,524,762 14* 14% 75 75 Investment holding
IaIhE (i) AR fEHR
61 61
Allied Properties Investments (1) US$1 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
Company Limited 157 REHER
Allied Real Estate Agency Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Real estate agency
BAmE A RA R W
AP Administration Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Provision of management
and consultancy services
SRAETE TR
AP Corporate Services Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Provision of corporate
services
Pk meEs
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

Proportion of ownership interest

52. TEMBEQRER (&)

Paid up BERERR LA
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERf subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR EERE  ADF/MEAARE AREEE IERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
e e L T
HKS$ % % % %
T
AP Development Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
BaERRARAA Ed el
AP Diamond Limited USs1 100 100 75 75 Property holding and
B3 investment holding
LI e 8 el
AP Emerald Limited US$1 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
1%7 B
AP Finance Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Money lending
fi§
AP Property Management Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Building management
BTEH
Best Melody Development Limited 5,000 100 100 75 75 Property holding
AR EARAR ERCLE S
Capital Sharp Investment Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
BREEHRAT BB
Capscore Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
e el
Charm Force Investment Limited 18,155,000 57 57 43 43 Investment holding
BB AR R AR Edceidls
Citiwealth Investment Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
B E AR AT e eidie
CMS Investments Limited 1 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
Ehaced
Conrad Security Limited 1 100 100 75 75 Security and guarding
EBREARAT services
ST Lo
First Asian Holdings Limited 2 100 100 25 25 Investment holding

I EEARAR

e e
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52. TEMBATER(H)

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Proportion of ownership interest

Paid up BRERESR LA
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR LERA  A0E/MELREE AREES IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
e e L T
HKS % % % %
B
Florich Development Limited 10,000 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
RERRARLA e el
Front Sail Limited 5,000 100 100 75 75 Property holding
AR ERCLES
Gilmore Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Property holding
ERCLES
Hillcrest Development Limited 20 100 100 75 75 Property holding
HAW=
Hi-Link Limited 200 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
e el
Hong Kong Dementia Services Limited US$1 100 100 75 75 Provision of elderly care
Fi L ERRERB AR AR 1% services
SRt My
Integrated Custodian Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Property holding
ERCLIE S
Itso Limited 2 100 100 43 42 Investment holding,
financial services and
securities trading
G SRR
Jaffe Development Limited US$1 100 100 75 75 Property holding
(E ERCLE S
Kalix Investment Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Property holding
ERCLIES
Long Rainbow Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
KA R Eeced
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 52. X EMBATER (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Paid up RERER LA
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERf subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR EERE  ADF/MEAARE AREEE IERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
B+ “ZRF Bt _FAF
HKS$ % % % %
T
Long Set Investments Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
WA EARAA Ed el
LYNX Technology Limited 1,000,000 100 100 75 75 Medical equipment and
REEAHRAT supplies distribution
B SO 8
Mainford Investment Limited 1 100 100 75 75 Property holding
SERECEA A ELVES
Mightyton Limited 10,000 100 100 75 75 Property holding
HaE
Oakfame Investment Limited 2 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
BEBEARAA e e
Ontone Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Hotel operations and
LREEEARAR property holding
IR R AR
Pioneer Alliance Limited 10,000 100% 100* 100 100 Investment holding
BURREA R Edceed
Plentiwind Limited 15,000,002 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
Erd el
Polyking Services Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Building maintenance and
HEMAARA R cleaning services
T (R S RS
Protech Property Management Limited 5,000 100 100 75 75 Building management and
R ERARAR security guarding services
LSV E LT
Rank Crown Investment Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
FBEAR AR fEHER
Rodril Investments Limited 1 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
e e
San Pack Properties Limited 10 100 100 75 75 Property holding
W EFARAT ERCLIE S
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

Proportion of ownership interest

52. TEMBEQREFR (&)

Paid up BERERR LA
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries RRERT subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR LERA  A0E/WELREA AREEL IERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt “ZF Bt _FAF
HKS % % % %
w7
Scienter [nvestments Limited 20 100 100 43 42 Investment holding and
provision of loan finance
SRR RS AE
Senior Care Elderly Limited US$1 100 100 75 75 Provision of elderly care
B3 services
FeftiEE
Senior Care Limited 1,000 100 100 75 75 Provision of elderly care
EEERARAA services
PR s
Senior Care Nursing Home Limited 1,000 100 100 75 75 Provision of elderly care
HHEELARAH services
PRt My
SHK Bullion Company Limited 10,000 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
e e
SHK Commodities Limited 10,000 100 100 43 42 Investment portfolio
HEA S
SHK Finance Limited 150,000,000 100 100 25 25 Money lending
MBAERH AR (18
SHK Hong Kong Industries Limitec** 918,978,271 75 75 75 75 Investment holding
WIBEARA R e e
SHK International Limited 10,000 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
e e
SHK Investment Services Limited 1,000,000 100 100 43 42 Asset holding
BERH
SHK Pearl River Delta Investment Issued share 100 100 43 42 Provision of loan finance

Company Limited
BRI = AN E AR AT

capital:
C#A
100,000,000
Paid up
share capital:
BRI -
75,000,000.5

RUEETRE
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52. TEMBEATER(H)

for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Proportion of ownership interest

Paid up BEERL 2 LAl
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR EERE  ADF/MEAARE AREEE IRRH
2017 2016 2017 2016
S e -
HKS % % % %
o
SHK Securities Limited 20 100 100 43 42 Asset holding
HERE
Sierra Joy Limited 2 100 100 75 75 Property holding
ERCLE S
Sunhill Investments Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding
BB E AR fgHE R
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited** 8,731,004,462 57 56 43 42 Investment holding
HEAA R A e el
Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited 450,000,000 100 100 40 36 Mortgage financing
MBI AR (2016: Hel
250,000,000)
(ZF—RE:
250,000,000)
Sun Hung Kai Fintech Capital Limited 3,000,000 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
(formerly known as SHK Insurance BGFE
Consultants Limited)
(IR HE R R A RAH)
Sun Hung Kai Securities (Overseas) Limited 60,000 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
MBS (N HRAF e el
Sun Hung Kai Strategic Capital Limited 2 100 100 43 42 Investment holding, securities
BRI EAHRAR trading and financial
services
SRR BREER
SR
Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance Limited 137,500,000 100 100 43 42 Securities trading and
ML A AR AT provision of loan finance
w4 EE LA E
Sun Hung Kai Venture Capital Limited 2 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
e e
Texgulf Limited 20 100 100 43 42 Property holding
ERCLE S
The Hong Kong Equity Guarantee 2 100 100 75 75 Investment holding

Corporation Limited

BB
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 52. X EMBATER (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Paid up BERELR LA
issued ordinary Held by
share capital the Company/ Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR LERE  ADE/WEATRA AREES IRRH
2017 2016 2017 2016
8-t ZTRF ZR-tE “FTF
HKS % % % %
o
Tung Wo Investment Company, Limited 10,000 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
FRBEAHRAT Eaeide
United Asia Finance Limited 1,502,218,417.8 58 58 25 25 Consumer financing
S B A R ) YNy
Wah Cheong Development Company, 25,100,000 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
Limited HEH
ERRFEARAA
Wineur Secretaries Limited 2 100 100 43 42 Secretarial services
R HEARA A HEmR B
Yee Li Ko Investment Limited 58,330,000 100 100 43 42 Property holding
[EHF R EARAR EECE/ES
Yu Ming Investment Management Limited 10,000,000 100 100 100 100 Management and investment

B EERARAT

With the exception of Alaston Development Limited,
Allied Properties Investments (1) Company Limited,
AP Diamond Limited, AP Emerald Limited, Hong Kong
Dementia Services Limited, Jaffe Development Limited and
Senior Care Elderly Limited, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, all the above subsidiaries were

incorporated in Hong Kong.

advisory services

B R

FrAlaston Development Limited ~ Allied
Properties Investments (1) Company
Limited > AP Diamond Limited > AP
Emerald Limited ~ 72 45 R AE B
AR HE - Jaffe Development Limited &
Senior Care Elderly Limited i % & 5 4 ff
EREMALAN > DLE BT A Y A RIS TE R

R L -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
December, 2017 which were incorporated and have their
principal place of operations outside Hong Kong are set

WE=F LA Et— H
52. TEMBEATER(H)
BBt A=t —H AL

A vs DA St B T S M HE T S P e
M TR TE A U AP b i 2 2 B JB 2 W) R

out below: o
Proportion of ownership interest
Place of VL] { Shd]
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries R/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
HEAR RRAEY BRERTEERE  A0T/MELERE AR IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE CENF ZR-tE CE
% % % %
Allied Properties China Limited Cayman Islands US$1,000 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
M 1,000 B
Allied Properties Resources Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
FRELRE 1% BRER
Boneast Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Uss$1 100 100 4 42 Investment holding
ERELHE B3 BRER
Bronwood Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 - 43 - Investment holding
EBELHE X1 BRER
Bright Clear Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
EREARE 1% BRER
Cautious Base Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,001 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
FRRLRS 10,001 #7E A
Champstar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 43 42 Investment holding,
ERELHE 1% securities trading and
financial services
SR
Doco Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
EREARE X1 BRER
Fine Era Limiteds British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
ELARAT FRELHE 1% Bk
Gilbrook Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - 75 - Property holding
ERELHE B3 LS
Kenworld Corporation Republic of Liberia Us$t 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
HIL B AR 1% Bk
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

WE_F—LFE+_H=1t—HI4E
52. XEMBATRER(H)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of L { Sl
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries HEL/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
HEAR S Vi HREBRAEERE  ALA/MELERE AR IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
8-t ZFNF ZR-tE ZE 0k
% % % %
Sun Hung Kai Global Opportunities ~ Cayman Islands Investment fund
Fund (formerly known as KIMA B Bt 40 5
Pan Asia Offshore Fund)
(Hi#BKIMA Pan Asia Offshore Fund)
- Management shares 1,000 US$1 shares 100 100 43 4
B 1,000t %7c
- Participating shares 7,392.805 100 100 4 4
Sk USS0.001 shares
7,392.803%
fRo.01E
- Class B6 participating shares 182,255.1444 100 100 43 4
BokHIZ Ak (016:
223,060.3644)
US$0.001 shares
182,255.1444/f%
(CF-RE:
223,060.3644f)
0001 %
- Class B3 participating shares 7,581.95 100 100 43 4
BISMIA AN US$0.001 shares
7,581.95/
fRo.00E
Lakewood Development United States of America US$1,000 100 100 75 75 Property holding
Corporation E] 1,000%7¢ EIE
LHY Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
KRELHE 1% BRER
Paignton Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 - 43 - Investment holding
EBELHE X1 BRER
Razorway Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
EREARE X1 BRER
Rossworth Global Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
ERELHE 1% BRER
Senior Care Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Usst 100 100 75 75 Investment holding
KRELHE 1% BRER
Shipshape Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
EBELHE X1 BRER
SHK Asian Opportunities Holdings  Cayman Islands US$10,000 95 95 4 40 Investment holding
Limited REMNE 10,000%7% REIER
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

Proportion of ownership interest

52. TEMBEQREFR (&)

Place of L § Sl
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries AEL/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
HEAR R BREBRTEERE  ALA/MELERE AR IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE ZZ-RF ZE-tE ZZ5F
% % % %
SHK Asset Management Holding ~ British Virgin Islands US$3,400,001 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
Limited FRRAHE 340000157 A
Sun Hung Kai (China) Investment  People’s Republic RMB50,000,000 100 100 43 42 Corporate marketing and
Management Company Limited ~ of China 850,000,007 investment consultancy
MEECHE REERARAT  PEARKR [ g sl
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 43 42 Financing
FEELHRE 1% MK
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (CP) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 - 43 - Investment holding
FREARE B3 BEER
Sun Hung Kai Capital Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
FRELHE 1% BRER
Swan Islands Limited British Virgin Islands US$503,000,001 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
KRIELNS 503,000,001 %7¢ BBt
Swanwick Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
ERELHRE 1% BRER
SWAT Securitisation Fund A Luxembourg RMB29,968,900 100 100 43 42 Securitisation fund
EkE B #29,968,9007 il £:%3
Top Marker Limited + British Virgin Islands USs1 - - - - Investment holding
FRELHE 1% BRER
Treasure Rider Limited Cayman Islands US$19,800 92 86 40 36 Investment holding
HER (2016: BEIR
US$11,000)
19,800% 7
(ZF-7E:
11,000%70)
UAF Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 43 42 Investment holding
FRELHE 1% BRER
Zeal Goal International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 4 42 Investment holding
ERELHE 1% BRER
LEEREGBIAEE  People’s Republic RMB200,000,000 70 70 17 17 Money lending
ARAHY of China AR #200,000,0007C fafE
EINTEL
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
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WE_F—LFE+_H=1t—HI4E
52. XEMBATRER(H)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of REEER LA
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries HEL/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
HEAR 3 s BROBRMEBRE  ADR/MELTRE AEBER IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt CENE CB-tF AR
% % % %

R R kA Peaple's Republic US$50,000,000 100 100 25 25 Money lending

AR of China (2016: e
I e US$60,000,000)

50,000,000 7
(ZE-RE:
60,000,000% 1c)

KHTRE G SHAERAT  People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Financial consultancy
of China ABH1,0000007C R
LEINT

RSB NEESARARY  People’s Republic HK$130,000,000 100 100 25 25 Money lending
of China (2016: [

GE N HKS$250,000,000)
130,000,000%7¢
(ZF-RE:
250,000,000%7c)

I EBE VEEHAERATY  People’s Republic RMB200,000,000 80 80 20 20 Money lending
of China (2016: ot
kI RMB500,000,000)

A 820,000,000
(ZF—RE
E#500,000,0007C)

ARG VR ARARD  People’s Republic HK$230,000,000 100 100 25 25 Money lending
of China (2016: (i1
EIN HK$350,000,000)

230,000,000
(B
350,000,000 c)

AR S KA People's Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 5 25 Financial consultancy

AR of China ABH1,0000007C RHrRIR
i A\ RALAR

TS —f Bk (R People’s Republic RMB50,000,000 100 100 % 25 Financial consultancy

AR of China ARH50,000,0007 BRI
(EINEL

SRR EHA(LBHRAFC  People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 70 70 17 17 Financial consultancy
of China AB#1,0000007C BRI

i AREHE
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE_F—tLHET_H=T—HILFE

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 52. S EMEB AT EE (E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of RRERE LA
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries AEL/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
(il P 3 s MRORAEBRE  ADR/WEATRE AREER IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE “TAE ZE-tE K
% % % %
SRR B (RANARATY  People's Republic RMB25,000,000 100 100 % 25 Financial consultancy
of China NEH25,000,0007 B
EINTE
RSB MEEFARATY  People’s Republic RMB300,000,000 100 100 25 25 Money lending
of China AB:#300,000,0007 (i1
LN
RETHUEBANERAFC  People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 5 25 Financial consultancy
of China 1,000,000 BHARY
fidf \ R
FRAMBEERIAESEL  People’s Republic RMB300,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
ARARD of China AEH300,000,0007 (i1
EINTE
BEEREHGEEAAERAT  People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Financial consultancy
of China AB#1,0000007C BRI
LN
MR NEEFARLAD  People’s Republic RMB200,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
of China E#200,000,0007 ot
fidf \ R
TR EERARAC  People's Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 25 25 Financial consultancy
of China NEH1,000,0007 B
EINTE
TAARIE B B VB People’s Republic RMB200,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Moneylending
HRARD of China AR:#200,000,0007C (i1
LN
TANEEER I SR RAT Y People's Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 I 25 Financial consultancy
of China 1,000,000 BHRRRY
fidf \ R
BEGHEVASHARATY  People’s Republic S$20,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
of China (2016: (i1
i ARALAE US$40,000,000)
20,000,000 ¢
(ZE—AE
40,000,000%7c)
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
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BE_F—LHF T _A=T—HILFE

52. TEMBEAREFR (F)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of REEER LA
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries HEL/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
HEAR 3 s BROBRMEBRE  ADR/MELTRE AEBER IERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt CENE CB-tF AR
% % % %
BETEIEESAERATY  People's Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 25 25 Financial consultancy
of China NEH1,000,0007 BRI
thif \ RAHIE
SRR VEESAERATY  People's Republic RMB600,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
of China NR:H600,000,0007 (1
LN
ZHETREVERTAERATY  People's Republic HK$350,000,000 100 100 25 25 Money lending
of China 350,000,000t [
i A RALAR
EHTRMBRE People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 25 25 Financial consultancy
AR of China NEH1,000,0007 BRI
(EINEL
FBE SN ERART  People’s Republic RMB5,000,000 100 100 25 25 Financial consultancy
of China B:#5,000,0007C BRI
o |\ AL
HEERBREREELENE  People's Republic RMBS50,000,000 100 100 43 42 Asset management
ARARY of China EH50,000,0007 HEEH
i A RALAR
TRERERRERARATNY  People’s Republic RMB300,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Loan guarantee
of China AEH300,000,0007C Bk
(EINEL
FNEBE GEAAERAT Y People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Financial consultancy
of China AB#1,0000007C BRI
LN
M R BRIV People’s Republic RMB200,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
AR of China AE:#200,000,0007 [
i A\ RALAR
i T SR R Peaple’s Republic RMB300,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
AR of China AEH300,000,0007C (i1
(EINEL
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
B A ER A A = — i
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

BE_F—LFET_A=T—HILFE

52.

FEMEBAREN (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of VL] L svhd]
incorporation/ Paid up issued Held by
operation ordinary the Company/ Attributable to
Subsidiaries AEL/ share capital subsidiaries the Group Principal activity
HELT RS BREBRTEERE  ALA/MELERE AREER IERK
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF R ZE-tF 40
% % % %

HETBIEESIERATY  People's Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 25 25 Financial consultancy

of China ABH1,000,0007 BB
& INe Rl
TR B R R AR A Y People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Financial consultancy
of China 1,000,007 BT
T ARLHE
BELAMEREETRE  People’s Republic RMB320,000,000 100 100 2% 25 Money lending
FHARATD of China ABH320,000,0007 it
iEINER I
SRS BHT R AR A 7 People's Republic RMB20,000,00 100 100 % 25 Financial consultancy
(formerly known as of China NEH20,000,0007 BRI
% ISR ERNARAR  FEARSAR
(IR VR SE R £ B
HRAF)o

g These shareholdings represent the proportion of ownership interest * S R SR R AR 2 W) B R RERE AR 1L
held directly by the Company. )

**  These subsidiaries are listed in Hong Kong and further details about o A A FR A LT > A B AE A R
them are available in their published accounts. ZHAWFEIE R Z 3R H A -

8 The subsidiary is a fund established and created under Luxembourg 8 2% BB 2 ) /7 AR AR BB TR T 1 5 2 B o
laws. As the Group holds all the issued units of the fund, it is FRS AR B A7 T AT SR AT SR B > PRI 3%
classified as a subsidiary. FeB MU — IR A A o

* Although the Group has no equity interest in Top Marker Limited, it is e HESA AL E R Top Marker Limited\if #E A
classified as a subsidiary of the Group as the Group can control the it o fELp R AR S 1B R T L R i A S MUK
composition of its board and is exposed to its variable returns. The SZHCPRE) [ PR A o S A A A T A
Group’s investment in Top Marker Limited was HK$188.9 million at Al o AR H - AR Top Marker Limited
the reporting date. ZBUEF5188.9 H BT ©

(@  These companies are sino-foreign equity joint venture. (@ EEAFERPIEERE -

(b)  These companies are wholly-foreign owned enterprise. (b)  EEAF RSN EEERE -

(c)  These companies are wholly-domestic owned enterprise. (© EEAFARAWEERE -

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company J:%zﬁﬁﬁj/\ T T B A A i S

which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion

of th

e net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Save

as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements, none of the other subsidiaries had issued any

debt

securities at the end of the year.

RAEGE > SN AL EE £ 2

ZF"?W%/\E o RS 5 A T

BTN - &

Bhar & W R L B 5L 3 9 B A1

LERRNITR -

FCAb FiY

A RURAF AL M7 T EE A T e
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st
December, 2017 are set out below:

®WEZT—LEF A=t —HIERE
53. FEBREQNTER

WoFE—tEt A=+ —H2ZA%EHEE
BRSNS FVERNR

295

Proportion of ownership
Place of interest and voting rights
incorporation/ BERRERRER LA
operation Held by Attributable
Associates TR/ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
Bend RRMEh WEAARE AEERE IERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
2Rt “TnF ZF-tE CFAE
% % % %
APAC Resources Limited** Hong Kong 34 28 25 21 Investment holding
ERERHRAT i3 TR
Dragon Mining Limited* Australia % 24 18 18 Gold producer
] REEEN
Learning Ark Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 2 21 9 9 Provision of online education services
HREARE PRk SRR s
Oriental Cashmere Limited British Virgin Islands 25 25 19 19 Manufacturing and trading of
SRELHE cashmere products
FHEREERE R
Purple Link Investment Limited Hong Kong 25 25 19 19 Investment in properties
KBS EARAT } RE R
Sun Hung Kai Financial Group British Virgin Islands/ 30 30 13 13 Wealth management and brokerage
Limited Hong Kong business
MEEEHEMARAR HRELRE/ B e E R RN
Tanami Gold NL* Australia 35 35 26 26 Gold mining operations and mineral
] exploration
R RIEH LRE R
Tian An China Investments Company ~ Hong Kong 49 49 36 36 Property development, property
Limited** s investment and property
REFB B EARAF management
SRR - IR R
& These associates are listed in Australia and further details about * FLAFIR A IR BT A B RZ S N F 2

them are available in their published accounts.

**  These associates are listed in Hong Kong and further details are
available in their published accounts.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

— RS A Z AR E A -

SR A FTERE BT ARZE A F 2
R A 2 MR E A o

BRI F) I E R S B AR R
HRHE > BN SE By
AL AT o FERD S I A
BAFRRN - GSERRRITE -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2017

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture at 31st

BE_Z—tLET A =1T—HILERE
54, TESEQATER
WoFE—tEt+ A=+ —H2ZA%EHEE

December, 2017 are set out below: BHE NIRRT
Proportion of ownership
Place of interest and voting rights
incorporation/ BERRERREE LA
Form of operation Held by Attributable
Joint ventures business structure KL/ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
RELT RHRREA EBMES WEAARE AEERE TEXH
2017 2016 2017 2016
t Sn R SN i S e S
% % % %
Allied Kajima Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 50 50 37 37 Property and investment
LA wi holding
W RAECERE

The above table lists the joint venture of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other joint
ventures would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

LRI R T E R A A
BB - BN RAS SR B A R
AL GEAT o EHGEL I HA S
BAFIRN - gL ERERITE -



Financial year ended 31st December,

BET-A=1T-BULMBEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-= “E-mE S ZE-RE ZE-RF ZE-tE
HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEET HEET HEET HE®T BEER
Results EY |
Revenue * A 5,181.4 5,766.3 5,304.4 4101.9 4,540.7
Profit for the year AR A 2,650.8 3,237.2 5,978.8 5,081.2 5,550.8
Attributable to: MG
Owners of the Company /N 1,333.2 1,655.7 2,983.2 3,263.2 3,235.9
Non-controlling interests kg 1317.6 1,581.5 2,995.6 1,818.0 2,314.9
2,650.8 3,237.2 5,978.8 5,081.2 5,550.8
Basic eamings per share BREARA HK$7.067C  HK$9.02# T HK$1633%7C HK$18.34%7C HKS$18.35% 7T
At 31st December,
R+=A=t+-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“F-SE CFNE CF-RE CFAE ZB-iE
HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEET HEET HEET HEET BBAT
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets B 43,128.4 48,777.8 49,240.7 52,651.8 60,672.7
Total liabilities AR (12,238.7) (14,871.4) (11,193.3) (11,540.2) (14,412.2)
Total equity Wz iR 30,889.7 33,906.4 38,047.4 41,1116 46,260.5
Non-controlling interests FE R (15,101.0) (16,739.0) (18,703.3) (19,353.3) (21,191.1)
Equity attributable to owners AT R RN
of the Company [N 15,788.7 17,167 .4 19,344.1 21,758.3 25,069.4
* Included revenue from both continuing and discontinued operations. * o IR E RN E RIS A
ALLIED GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2017
B A ER A A B . i
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Particulars of major properties held by the subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group at 31st December, 2017 are as set out

below:

AL 2 WA F KA B A A R R AR
ToA=t AR EEY SRR

Effective %

Gross floor held by

area (S.M.) the Group  Stage of
Name/location Lease expiry Type EEEE AEEEsR  completion
BB, B #9751 bzl (F73K) BE% THER
Hong Kong
=i
Park Place 2056 * R 3,475 75.00 Existing
7 Tai Tam Reservoir Road BAY
Hong Kong
HERAIBE
ik
RIKYEE7 9%
Allied Cargo Centre 2047 G 46,594 75.00  Existing
150-164 Texaco Road bR ERYES
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
B B E L
W
P50 — 1645%
60 Plantation Road, 2066 R 639 75.00  Existing
The Peak, Hong Kong HAaYE
AL TH
REAHZE 60 5%
Orchid Court 2049 R 791 75.00  Existing
38 Tung On Street SR ELY/ES
Mongkok, Kowloon C 201 75.00  Existing
2T ] R ERYES
JURERE F
WL 38
The Redhill Peninsula 2056 * R 596 75.00  Existing
18 Pak Pat Shan Road BAEYE
Tai Tam, Hong Kong cp A0 75.00  Existing
FARIES =) (Phase V)
A K IRERYES
FZE1LE185% EHUE))
China Online Centre 2026 *+ C 15,680 75.00  Existing
333 Lockhart Road HAYZE

Wanchai, Hong Kong
o R A%
BT

B SiAE333 %



Effective %

299

Gross floor held by

area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
Name/location Lease expiry Type EEEE AEEEZR  completion
BB R #m F5! (F7K) FHE% TRER
Hong Kong (Cont’d)
&8 ()
St. George Apartments 2081 R 10,287 75.00 Existing
No. 81 Waterloo Road BAYZE
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon cp GO 75.00  Existing
BERRE RERYES
JUREfa] SCH
HIT 2815,
Ibis Hong Kong North Point 2083 H 6,825 75.00  Existing
138 Java Road HAEYE
North Point, Hong Kong
AL AL AT
AL A
BHEIE 13858
No. 239 Jaffe Road and 2027+ P 5,083 37.50* Foundation
Nos. 10-12 Steward Road works in
Wanchai, Hong Kong progress**
LT A TR
W 2EIE239%5% [ HEAT Hrx
SR T102E 1298
241 & 243 Jaffe Road 2027+ P 2,149 37.50* Foundation
Wanchai, Hong Kong works in
BT progress**
M 241 & 2435 HiE T A

AT

No. 9 Queen’s Road Central 2854 C 1,277 75.00 Existing
Hong Kong BAYE
i
2ERE R
Allied Kajima Building 2047 C 20,452 37.50*  Existing
138 Gloucester Road BAYE

Wanchai, Hong Kong
ey 4PN

B BT

HEATHE 13858
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Name/location

B8R

Lease expiry

w5

Type
5l

Gross floor
area (S.M.)

Effective %
held by

the Group
rEEER
FH %

RAEH
(F753K)

Stage of
completion

5T P R

Hong Kong (Cont’d)
& ()

Novotel Century Hong Kong
238 Jaffe Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

A afi = Rt AL TS

A AT

w2388

Tregunter Tower 3
14 Tregunter Path
Hong Kong

R R PR R 553
il
HoFIAREEFE 1 458

Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

0 L

it

HgiE 1858

J Residence

60 Johnston Road
Hong Kong
FEH

s

HE - FE609E

2047

2051

2053 *

2054

37.50*

27,364

745 75.00

42.97

2,970 #

50 75.00

Existing
EERERE S

Existing
AW

Existing
BAM

Existing
BAY



Effective %

Gross floor held by

area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
Name/location Lease expiry Type EEEE AEEEZR  completion
BB R #m F5! (F7K) BFE% THER
Outside Hong Kong
BHBEN
FM 2100 Road and Freehold R 13,875,254# 75.00 Existing
Diamond Head Boulevard IKAERE BAYE
Harris County
Texas
United States of America
K BTEM
Cannongate House Freehold C 1,885% 75.00  Existing
62-64 Cannon Street KA ZERE BAYE
London, United Kingdom
e B i 2
Sofitel Philippine Plaza Manila 2041 H 73,866 37.50*  Existing
Cultural Centre of the BAYE
Philippines Complex
Roxas Boulevard
Pasay City
Manila, Philippines
EREREN
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park 2052 | 3,812 25.00  Existing
Futian District BAYZE
Shenzhen
People’s Republic of China
TRYIK 22 Bt Ik
e A\ R ILHE
wII
e H [
Tianjin Tian An Cyberpark 2060 I 2,040 25.00  Existing
Zhangjiawo, Xiqing District BAYZE

Tianjin

People’s Republic of China
TR R 2 ORI I
FHEE N\ R ALY

Kt

P FRGR R
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Name/location

B8R

Lease expiry

w5

Type
5l

Gross floor
area (S.M.)

Effective %
held by

the Group

BEEE rEEER
(FF53) 5%

Stage of
completion

5T P R

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
BBEINE)

Optics Valley International Plaza 2043
NO0.889 Luoyu Road

East Lake High-Tech

Development Zone, Wuhan

People’s Republic of China

et B S

e A R ILAE

EWE Y

190 T T B [

B IG #% 889 %

The Shuncheng Office 2046
Wouhua District

Kunming

People’s Republic of China

NECSH =

FEE N\ RILFIEY

B

TLHE [

Block 2 of No. 101 building 2061
Cuibai Road, Chunhuilu Street
Dadukou District

Chongging

People’s Republic of China
e N RILAEY

HE

R [

A B

HHERAA R

101 9821%

Times Centre 2046
No. 160 Zhengyang Road

Chengyang District

Qingdao

People’s Republic of China

RGP

e A\ RIEAEY

i

Ik 55 [

IE P B 160%E

1,535 25.00  Existing

BAYE

1,237 25.00  Existing

BAYE

2,978 25.00  Existing

HAYE

1,317 25.00  Existing

HAYE



Name/location

B8R

Lease expiry

#m

Type
85l

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EEMEE
(FEF3K)

Effective %
held by

the Group
rEEER
FH %

303

Stage of
completion

55 P R

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
EBFEIN(E)

43, Beizhan 1st Road
Shenhe District

Shenyang

People’s Republic of China
FHEE N\ R AL

&

{889 [

b st — 4358

Huagiang Plaza

Lixia District

Jinan

People’s Republic of China
HE R Ry
HEE A RIEAEY

bige)

J& T &

SFC Sincere Centre

No. 99 Wuyi Road
Yuzhong District
Chonggqing

People’s Republic of China
SFCHh {7 0>
EE N\ RALFE

HE

¥

995k

2044

2050

2050

2,038

1,958

1,798

25.00

25.00

25.00

Existing
R /E S

Existing
BAY

Existing
LAY
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Name/location

B8R

Lease expiry

w5

Type
5l

Effective %
held by

the Group
rEEER
FH %

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EEMEE
(FEF3K)

Stage of
completion

5T P R

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
EBFEIN(E)

Sincere Centre

No. 25 Fuqging Road Er Duan
Chenghua District

Chengdu

People’s Republic of China
fibfe L

HriE N RILAE

JHR

B2 [

JRF 5 B — Bk 259%

Yaopeng Mingzhu

Yunling Road

Creative Industrial Park
Dali City, Yunnan

People’s Republic of China
TG W 2R
FEE N\ RALFIE

ey e

Al L2 =

THKIE

2051

2046

1,929 25.00

736 25.00

Existing
R E S

Existing
SRR E S

Notes:

Types of properties: R — Residential, C — Commercial, G — Godown, H — Hotel,
| — Industrial, P — Property under construction, CP — Car

Parking Spaces

* Indicates properties held through a joint venture

**  Expected construction completion in 2020

s With option to renew for a further term of 75 years
With option to renew for a further term of 99 years

9 Saleable area

A Site area

##  Net internal area
22 Number of car parking spaces
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